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First Trust Global Funds plc

Investment Manager’s Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2022

First Trust US Large Cap Core AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF*

First Trust Emerging Markets AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF*

First Trust United Kingdom AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF*

First Trust Eurozone AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF*

First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF*

First Trust US Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF*

First Trust Global Equity Income UCITS ETF*

First Trust Germany AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF*

First Trust US Equity Income UCITS ETF*

First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF*

First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy UCITS ETF*
First Trust Indxx Innovative Transaction & Process UCITS ETF*
First Trust Dow Jones Internet UCITS ETF*

First Trust Cloud Computing UCITS ETF*

First Trust Capital Strength UCITS ETF*

First Trust Value Line® Dividend Index UCITS ETF*

First Trust NYSE Arca Biotechnology UCITS ETF*

First Trust Nasdaq Cybersecurity UCITS ETF*

First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF*
First Trust Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate UCITS ETF*
First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Smart Grid Infrastructure UCITS ETF*

The First Trust US Large Cap Core AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF aims to provide investors with a total return, taking into account capital
and income returns, which reflects the return of an equity index called the NASDAQ AlphaDEX® Large Cap Core Index.

The First Trust Emerging Markets AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF aims to provide investors with a total return, taking into account capital and
income returns, which reflects the return of an equity index called the NASDAQ AlphaDEX® Emerging Markets Index.

The First Trust United Kingdom AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF aims to provide investors with a total return, taking into account capital and
income returns, which reflects the return of an equity index called the NASDAQ AlphaDEX® United Kingdom Index.

The First Trust Eurozone AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF aims to provide investors with a total return, taking into account capital and income
returns, which reflects the return of an equity index called the NASDAQ AlphaDEX® Eurozone Index.

The First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF aims to provide investors with a total return, taking into account capital and income returns,
which reflects the return of an equity index called the Indxx 5G & NextG Thematic Index.

The First Trust US Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF aims to provide investors with investment results that correspond generally to the
price and yield of an equity index called the IPOX®-100 U.S. Index.

The First Trust Global Equity Income UCITS ETF aims to provide investors with investment results that correspond generally to the
price and yield of an equity index called the NASDAQ Global High Equity Income Index.

The First Trust Germany AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF aims to provide investors with investment results that correspond generally to the
price and yield of an equity index called the NASDAQ AlphaDEX® Germany Index.

The First Trust US Equity Income UCITS ETF aims to provide investors with investment results that correspond generally to the price
and yield of an equity index called the NASDAQ US High Equity Income Index.

The First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF aims to provide investors with investment results that correspond generally
to the price and yield (before the First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF’s fees and expenses) of an equity index called
the Dow Jones International Internet Index.

The First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy UCITS ETF aims to provide investors with investment results that correspond
generally to the price and yield (before the First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy UCITS ETF’s fees and expenses) of an
equity index called the Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy*™ Index.

* There is no guarantee that a Fund will outperform its benchmark.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

Investment Manager’s Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

The First Trust Indxx Innovative Transaction & Process UCITS ETF aims to provide investors with investment results that correspond
generally to the price and yield of an equity index called the Indxx Blockchain Index.

The First Trust Dow Jones Internet UCITS ETF aims to provide investors with a total return, taking into account capital and income
returns, which reflects the return of an equity index called the Dow Jones Internet Composite IndexS™.

The First Trust Cloud Computing UCITS ETF aims to provide investors with investment results that correspond generally to the price
and yield (before the First Trust Cloud Computing UCITS ETF's fees and expenses) of an equity index called the ISE CTA Cloud
Computing™ Index.

The First Trust Capital Strength UCITS ETF aims to provide investors with investment results that correspond generally to the price and
yield (before the First Trust Capital Strength UCITS ETF’s fees and expenses) of an equity index called The Capital Strength IndexS™.

The First Trust Value Line® Dividend Index UCITS ETF aims to provide investors with investment results that correspond generally to
the price and yield (before the First Trust Value Line® Dividend Index UCITS ETF’s fees and expenses) of an equity index called the
Value Line® Dividend Index.

The First Trust NYSE Arca Biotechnology UCITS ETF aims to provide investors with investment results that correspond generally to
the price and yield (before the First Trust NYSE Arca Biotechnology UCITS ETF’s fees and expenses) of an equity index called the
NYSE Arca Biotechnology IndexSM.

The First Trust Nasdaq Cybersecurity UCITS ETF aims to provide investors with investment results that correspond generally to the
price and yield (before the First Trust Nasdaq Cybersecurity UCITS ETF’s fees and expenses) of an equity index called the Nasdaq CTA
Cybersecurity IndexSM.

The First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF aims to provide investors with investment results that correspond
generally to the price and yield (before the First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF’s fees and expenses) of an equity
index called the IPOX®-100 Europe Index.

The First Trust Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate UCITS ETF aims to provide investors with investment results that correspond
generally to the price and yield (before the First Trust Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate UCITS ETF’s fees and expenses) of an
equity index called the Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate Index.

The First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Smart Grid Infrastructure UCITS ETF aims to provide investors with investment results that
correspond generally to the price and yield (before the First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Smart Grid Infrastructure UCITS ETF’s fees
and expenses) of an equity index called the Nasdag OMX Clean Edge Smart Grid Infrastructure Index.

Each of First Trust US Large Cap Core AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF, First Trust Emerging Markets AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF, First Trust
United Kingdom AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF, First Trust Eurozone AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF, First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF, First
Trust US Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF, First Trust Global Equity Income UCITS ETF, First Trust Germany AlphaDEX® UCITS
ETF, First Trust US Equity Income UCITS ETF, First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF, First Trust Nasdaq® Clean
Edge® Green Energy UCITS ETF, First Trust Indxx Innovative Transaction & Process UCITS ETF, First Trust Dow Jones Internet
UCITS ETF, First Trust Cloud Computing UCITS ETF, First Trust Capital Strength UCITS ETF, First Trust Value Line® Dividend
Index UCITS ETF, First Trust NYSE Arca Biotechnology UCITS ETF, First Trust Nasdaq Cybersecurity UCITS ETF, First Trust
IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF, First Trust Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate UCITS ETF and First Trust
Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Smart Grid Infrastructure UCITS ETF (each a “Fund” and collectively the “Funds”) have pursued the objective of
replicating the performance of the relevant net total return index by seeking to hold a portfolio of transferable securities that consists of
substantially all of the component securities of that index in substantially the same weighting as the index.

The composition of the securities held by each Fund has been adjusted periodically to seek to replicate the composition and weighting of
the relevant index.

Dividends accrued on the Funds’ securities have been reinvested in accordance with the underlying indices. By reinvesting dividends,
net of management fees, in the indices, the Funds’ cash component was kept to a minimum.

* There is no guarantee that a Fund will outperform its benchmark.

First Trust Global Funds plc Annual Report 4



First Trust Global Funds plc

Investment Manager’s Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

This income reinvestment policy is designed to alleviate the effects of cash drag until the time of dividend payment because the Funds
track net total performance indices. Re-exposing cash to the index not only minimized dividend drag but also recurrent management or
transaction fees paid to counterparties outside the Funds for short-term cash management.

Moreover, full replication kept the Funds’ tracking error with the relevant underlying index within the expected levels.

Tracking error computation should be based on net total returns indices because of the Funds’ income reinvestment policy. The net total
return indices are publicly available.

Performance Update”
First Trust US Large Cap Core AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF Class A shares

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust US Large Cap Core AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF Class A shares was $50.74M. The Fund
owned 373 stocks as of 30 December 2022. There were 86,533 net shares redeemed during the period (-$5.64 million). During the
twelve months, the Fund had a net return of -12.34%, compared to the NASDAQ AlphaDEX® Large Cap Core Index performance of
-12.06%, i.e. -0.28% relative performance. During the period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.010%, which
corresponded with our expectations.

First Trust US Large Cap Core AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF Class B shares

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust US Large Cap Core AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF Class B shares was $37.49M. The Fund
owned 373 stocks as of 30 December 2022. There were 39,603 net shares redeemed during the period (-$2.42 million). During the
twelve months, the Fund had a net return of -12.31%, compared to the NASDAQ AlphaDEX® Large Cap Core Index performance of
-12.06%, i.e. -0.25% relative performance. During the period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.010%, which
corresponded with our expectations.

First Trust Emerging Markets AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust Emerging Markets AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF was $20.37M. The Fund owned 156
stocks as of 30 December 2022. There were 100,000 net shares redeemed during the period (-$2.87 million). During the twelve months,
the Fund had a net return of -14.34%, compared to the NASDAQ AlphaDEX® Emerging Markets Index performance of -14.38%, i.e.
+0.04% relative performance. During the period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.119% which corresponded with our
expectations.

First Trust United Kingdom AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF Class A shares

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust United Kingdom AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF was £12.63M. The Fund owned 76 stocks
as of 30 December 2022. There were 23,920 net shares created during the period (+£0.75 million). During the twelve months, the Fund
had a net return of -14.29%, compared to the NASDAQ AlphaDEX® United Kingdom Index performance of -13.19%, i.e. -1.10%
relative performance. During the period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.031% which corresponded with our
expectations.

First Trust United Kingdom AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF Class B shares

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust United Kingdom AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF Class B shares was £4.95M. The Fund
owned 76 stocks as of 30 December 2022. There were 55,144 net shares redeemed during the period (-£1.13 million). During the twelve
months, the Fund had a net return of -14.25%, compared to the NASDAQ AlphaDEX® United Kingdom Index performance of -13.19%,
i.e. -1.06% relative performance. During the period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.031% which corresponded with our
expectations.

First Trust Eurozone AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF Class A shares

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust Eurozone AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF was €76.98M. The Fund owned 150 stocks as of
30 December 2022. There were 760,901 net shares redeemed during the period (-€25.07 million). During the twelve months, the Fund
had a net return of -14.48%, compared to the NASDAQ AlphaDEX® Eurozone Index performance of -14.27%, i.e. -0.21% relative
performance. During the period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.010% which corresponded to our expectations.

* There is no guarantee that a Fund will outperform its benchmark.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

Investment Manager’s Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

First Trust Eurozone AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF Class B shares

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust Eurozone AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF was €15.65M. The Fund owned 150 stocks as of
30 December 2022. There were 188,969 net shares redeemed during the period (-€6.69 million). During the twelve months, the Fund had
a net return of -14.40%, compared to the NASDAQ AlphaDEX® Eurozone Index performance of -14.27%, i.e. -0.13% relative
performance. During the period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.010% which corresponded to our expectations.

First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF was $7.49M. The Fund owned 102 stocks as of 30
December 2022. There were 50,000 shares created and 50,000 shares redeemed during the period, with net value (+$0.09 million).
During the twelve months, the Fund had a net return of -24.39% compared to the Indxx 5G & NextG Thematic Index performance of
-23.76%, i.e. -0.63% relative performance. During the period, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.037% which corresponded to our
expectations.

First Trust US Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust US Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF was $8.79M. The Fund owned 100 stocks as of
30 December 2022. There were 50,000 net shares redeemed during the period (-$1.47 million). During the twelve months, the Fund had
a net return of -35.45% compared to the IPOX U.S.-100 Index performance of -35.03%, i.e. -0.42% relative performance. During the
period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.025% which corresponded to our expectations.

First Trust Global Equity Income UCITS ETF Class A shares

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust Global Equity Income UCITS ETF was $0.81M. The Fund owned 284 stocks as of 30
December 2022. There were 29,110 net shares redeemed during the period (-$1.60 million). During the twelve months, the Fund had a
net return of -7.59% compared to the NASDAQ Global High Equity Income Index performance of -7.14%, i.e. -0.45% relative
performance. During the period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.055% which corresponded to our expectations.

First Trust Global Equity Income UCITS ETF Class B shares

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust Global Equity Income UCITS ETF was $15.32M. The Fund owned 284 stocks as of 30
December 2022. There were 35,989 net shares created during the period (+$1.60 million). During the twelve months, the Fund had a net
return of -7.41% compared to the NASDAQ Global High Equity Income Index performance of -7.14%, i.e. -0.27% relative performance.
During the period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.056% which corresponded to our expectations.

First Trust Germany AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust Germany AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF was €6.62M. The Fund owned 40 stocks as of 30
December 2022. There were 200,000 net shares redeemed during the period (-€3.63 million). During the twelve months, the Fund had a
net return of -25.98% compared to the NASDAQ AlphaDEX® Germany Index performance of -25.96%, i.e. -0.02% relative
performance. During the period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.015% which corresponded to our expectations.

First Trust US Equity Income UCITS ETF Class A Shares

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust US Equity Income UCITS ETF was $234.66M. The Fund owned 115 stocks as of 30
December 2022. There were 5,428,590 net shares created during the period (+$161.74 million). During the twelve months, the Fund had
a net return of -6.90% compared to the NASDAQ US High Equity Income Index performance of -7.03%, i.e. +0.13% relative
performance. During the period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.009% which corresponded to our expectations.

First Trust US Equity Income UCITS ETF Class B Shares

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust US Equity Income UCITS ETF was $33.29M. The Fund owned 115 stocks as of 30
December 2022. There were 78,227 net shares created during the period (+$2.78 million). During the twelve months, the Fund had a net
return of -6.93% compared to the NASDAQ US High Equity Income Index performance of -7.03%, i.e. +0.10% relative performance.
During the period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.009% which corresponded to our expectations.

First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF was $4.65M. The Fund owned 40 stocks
as of 30 December 2022. There were 25,000 net shares created during the period (+$0.67 million). During the twelve months, the Fund
had a net return of -38.54% compared to the Dow Jones International Internet Index performance of -38.23%, i.e. -0.31% relative
performance. During the period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.051% which corresponded to our expectations.

* There is no guarantee that a Fund will outperform its benchmark.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

Investment Manager’s Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy UCITS ETF

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy UCITS ETF was $23.63M. The Fund owned 61
stocks as of 30 December 2022. There were 300,000 net shares created during the period (+$8.91 million). During the twelve months,
the Fund had a net return of -30.64%, compared to the Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy Index performance of -30.15%, i.e. -0.49%
relative performance. During the period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.004% which corresponded with our
expectations.

First Trust Indxx Innovative Transaction & Process UCITS ETF

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust Indxx Innovative Transaction & Process UCITS ETF was $103.93M. The Fund owned
102 stocks as of 30 December 2022. There were 750,000 net shares redeemed during the period (-$15.81 million). During the twelve
months, the Fund had a net return of -18.57% compared to the Indxx Blockchain Index of -18.25%, i.e. -0.32% relative performance.
During the period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.012%, which corresponded with our expectations.

First Trust Dow Jones Internet UCITS ETF

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust Dow Jones Internet UCITS ETF was $35.83M. The Fund owned 42 stocks as of 30
December 2022. There were 650,000 net shares created during the period (+$12.33 million). During the twelve months, the Fund had a
net return of -45.55%, compared to the Dow Jones Internet Composite Index™ of -45.28%, i.e. -0.27% relative performance. During the
period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.004%, which corresponded with our expectations.

First Trust Cloud Computing UCITS ETF

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust Cloud Computing UCITS ETF was $255.80M. The Fund owned 67 stocks as of 30
December 2022. There were 3,150,000 net shares redeemed during the period (-$116.42 million). During the twelve months, the Fund
had a net return of -44.67%, compared to the ISE CTA Cloud Computing™ Index of -44.55%, i.e. -0.12% relative performance. During
the period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.022%, which corresponded with our expectations.

First Trust Capital Strength UCITS ETF

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust Capital Strength UCITS ETF was $13.89M. The Fund owned 50 stocks as of 30
December 2022. There were 100,000 net shares created during the period (+$2.47 million). During the twelve months, the Fund had a
net return of -10.52%, compared to The Capital Strength Index™ of -10.26%, i.e. -0.26% relative performance. During the period under
review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.005%, which corresponded with our expectations.

First Trust Value Line® Dividend Index UCITS ETF

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust Value Line® Dividend Index UCITS ETF was $21.76M. The Fund owned 174 stocks
as of 30 December 2022. There were 250,000 net shares created during the period (+$5.56 million). During the twelve months, the Fund
had a net return of -5.68%, compared to the Value Line® Dividend Index of -5.35%, i.e. -0.33% relative performance. During the period
under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.237%, which corresponded with our expectations.

First Trust NYSE Arca Biotechnology UCITS ETF

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of the First Trust NYSE Arca Biotechnology UCITS ETF was $6.60M. The Fund owned 30 stocks
as of 30 December 2022. There were 450,000 net shares redeemed during the period (-$7.77 million). During the twelve months, the
Fund had a net return of -4.70%, compared to the NYSE Arca Biotechnology Index’™ of -4.12%, i.e. -0.58% relative performance.
During the period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.004%, which corresponded with our expectations.

First Trust Nasdaq Cybersecurity UCITS ETF

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of the First Trust Nasdaq Cybersecurity UCITS ETF was $459.46M. The Fund owned 37 stocks as
of 30 December 2022. There were 8,425,000 net shares created during the period (+$263.65 million). During the twelve months, the
Fund had a net return of -26.67%, compared to the Nasdaqg CTA Cybersecurity Index®™ of -25.88%, i.e. -0.79% relative performance.
During the period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.079%, which corresponded with our expectations.

* There is no guarantee that a Fund will outperform its benchmark.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

Investment Manager’s Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of the First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF was €1.53M. The Fund owned 76
stocks as of 30 December 2022. There were 50,000 shares created and 50,000 shares redeemed during the period, with net value +€0.10
million. During the twelve months, the Fund had a net return of -31.31%, compared to the IPOX®-100 Europe Index of -30.50%, i.e.
-0.81% relative performance. During the period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.069%, which corresponded with our
expectations.

First Trust Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate UCITS ETF Class A shares (Inception Date 31 March 2022)

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate UCITS ETF Class A shares was $1.69M.
The Fund owned 32 stocks as of 30 December 2022. There were 90,784 net shares created during the period (+$2.13 million). During the
period since inception, the Fund had a net return of -25.20%, compared to the Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate Index
performance of -25.01%, i.e. -0.19% relative performance. During the period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.105%
which corresponded with our expectations.

First Trust Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate UCITS ETF Class B shares

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate UCITS ETF Class B shares was $1.10M.
The Fund owned 32 stocks as of 30 December 2022. There were 59,232 net shares created during the period (+$1.45 million). During the
period since inception, the Fund had a net return of -25.13%, compared to the Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate Index
performance of -25.01%, i.e. -0.12% relative performance. During the period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.105%
which corresponded with our expectations.

First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Smart Grid Infrastructure UCITS ETF (Inception Date 21 April 2022)

As of 30 December 2022, the NAV of First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Smart Grid Infrastructure UCITS ETF was $1.47M. The Fund
owned 80 stocks as of 30 December 2022. There were 50,002 net shares created during the period (+$1.5 million). During the period
since inception, the Fund had a net return of -2.23%, compared to the NASDAQ OMX Clean Edge Smart Grid Infrastructure Index
performance of -1.69, i.e. -0.54% relative performance. During the period under review, the Fund had a tracking error of 0.018% which
corresponded with our expectations.

First Trust Advisors L.P.

1 February 2023

* There is no guarantee that a Fund will outperform its benchmark.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

Investment Manager’s Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

First Trust FactorFX UCITS ETF*

Market Commentary

Over the past year there were several factors driving a persistent strengthening of the US Dollar: the geo-political volatility from the
Russian invasion of Ukraine, rising inflation and hawkish monetary policy from the US Federal Reserve, a weakened global macro-
economic backdrop as Europe suffered through an energy crisis and softer growth in China as it felt the ramifications of their zero-Covid
policy. Monetary policy rates diverged globally but the US Federal Reserve set the tone for rising rates elsewhere. The resulting shifts in
short-term interest rates dragged the US Dollar higher versus most major currency pairs.

For the full year 2022, currency carry indices delivered muted returns however there were some wide divergences as we moved through
the year. The Bloomberg Cumulative FX Carry Trade Index for Managed G10 Currencies (the “G10 Carry Index”) ended the year up
1.52% and the Bloomberg Cumulative FX Carry Trade Index for 8 Emerging Market Currencies (the “EM Carry Index”) ended down
-0.52%. Through most of the early part of the year the G10 Carry Index rose as the trending Dollar performed well versus the other
lower yielding G10 currencies. This reversed in the last quarter of the year with a particularly strong rebound in the Euro. Similarly,
emerging market currencies were weaker for most of the year but this reversed in the fourth quarter as the Dollar sold off on signs of a
peak in inflation and monetary policy hawkishness. The US Dollar Index ended the year up 8.21% despite the -7.67% reversal in the
fourth quarter.

All of the G10 currencies were weaker versus the US Dollar over the period. The worst performers were the Swedish Krona which fell
-13.18%, the Japanese Yen -12.23% and the British Pound -10.71%. One of the better performing G10 currencies versus the US Dollar
was the Swiss Franc which fell a modest -1.25% even though the Swiss Franc is one of the lowest yielding and most overvalued
currencies relative to the Dollar. US interest rates remain at some of the highest levels we have seen for years, providing support for the
US currency relative to its developed market alternatives. The geo-political impact of the Russian war in Ukraine and its impact on
energy prices for European countries weighed on their currencies, especially in the early parts of the year but as this pressure on energy
prices eased into the fourth quarter the Euro recovered some of its earlier losses.

Emerging market currency performance was a bit more differentiated with Central and Eastern European currencies following a similar
pattern to the Euro through the year. Some Latin American currencies ended stronger versus the US Dollar over the year, like the
Brazilian Real and Mexican Peso, with these Latin American countries being somewhat insulated from the events in Ukraine, but also
able to benefit from elevated commodity prices and relatively high domestic interest rates.

Fund Commentary

For the period 31 December 2021 to 30 December 2022, the First Trust FactorFX UCITS ETF (the “Fund”) returned -0.35% on a net
asset value (NAV) basis compared to the 1.52% return of the G10 Carry Index and the -0.52% return of the EM Carry Index. An equal
weight of the G10 Carry and EM Carry Indices will have fell -0.38% over the period.

The Fund began the year with a small net short exposure to the US Dollar, primarily due to the basket of long emerging market currency
exposures versus the US Dollar as these economies began to exit Covid and were supported by rising commodity prices. However, with
the ensuing geo-political and inflation concerns growing through the year this positioning shifted to a net long US Dollar position for
most of the early part of the year. Only during the last quarter of the year did the Fund positioning move short the US Dollar again and
finished with a net long in developed market currencies of 10.6% and a net long in emerging market currencies of 61.8%. The beginning
of year exposures were net short in developed market currencies of -12.3% and net long in emerging market currencies of 21.0%.

The shorts in developed market currencies versus the US Dollar were primarily in European currencies, as the Euro weakened vs the
Dollar and the major long exposures in emerging market currencies were in the Latin American pairs. The Fund’s gross exposure (long
positions plus short positions) was 146.4% at the end of the period, primarily driven by the increase in long emerging market currency
exposures as momentum in those currencies shifted positive during the fourth quarter of the year.

The Fund did have exposure to the Russian Ruble early in the period, solely through non-deliverable forward contracts. These contracts
were all closed-out in the first quarter of the year following the Russian invasion of Ukraine and no exposure remains to the Russian
Ruble as of the end of the period.

* References to benchmarks are for illustrative purposes only. There is no guarantee that a Fund will outperform its benchmark.
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Investment Manager’s Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

First Trust FactorFX UCITS ETF* (continued)

Fund Commentary (continued)

Looking at the Fund strategy factor scores, we saw a large increase in momentum towards the end of the year, mainly due to the strong
rally in developed and emerging market currencies versus the Dollar. The strategy average momentum score for G10 currencies
increased from -67.8 to 25.0 over the period and for EM currencies it increased from -5.0 to 68.8. (The strategy momentum scores range
from negative momentum at -100 to positive momentum at +100). Average valuation scores for G10 currencies improved over the
period as these currencies cheapened versus the US Dollar on average while we saw a deterioration in the average Carry scores for both
G10 and Emerging Market currencies as the US Federal Reserve interest rate hikes outpaced those of many other countries.

The implied yield on the Fund increased substantially over the year as short-terms rates rose globally but also because of the Fund’s
increased exposure to higher carry emerging market currencies. As of the 30" December 2022 the implied yield was 9.45% versus 2.58%
at the start of the year. The implied yield is the combination of yield on the global treasury holdings in the Fund and the implied yield
across the forward foreign exchange contracts. At the end of the period, the average weighted duration of the bond holdings was 0.27
which was invested in AAA and AA rated sovereign bonds.

The year was a difficult one for traditional risk assets like equities and fixed income and the modest negative return from the Fund
highlights the benefits that alternative asset classes like global currencies can provide to diversified portfolios. Several fixed income asset
classes which were traditionally thought of as safe assets experienced significant volatility through the first part of the year and this was
matched by similarly negative returns in most major equity markets. This environment helps to highlight how alternative assets like
currencies are able to provide attractive investment opportunities for investors. Most central bank policy rates are ending the year at
higher levels however large divergences remain across countries which provides an attractive opportunity set for currency carry
strategies to take advantage of in the period ahead.

First Trust Global Portfolios Limited

1 February 2023

* References to benchmarks are for illustrative purposes only. There is no guarantee that a Fund will outperform its benchmark.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

Investment Manager’s Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)
First Trust Low Duration Global Government Bond UCITS ETF*

Market Commentary

This past year will be known as the year when inflation reared its head on a global basis. Coming out of the Covid lockdowns and hit by
supply-chain constraints, the effects of inflation were already being felt when the Russian invasion of Ukraine dealt another upward blow
to global prices, especially energy prices. The combination of these sent inflation rates to levels not seen in decades for many of the
developed market economies and set their central banks on a course to aggressively raise interest rates which also drove yields higher
across most fixed income markets.

The yield-to-worst of the Bloomberg Barclays Global Aggregate Treasuries Index rose 210 basis points (“bps”) to 3.04% over the year.
US Treasury yields were a key driver of the rise in the index yield as they are a significant weight of the market capitalisation weighted
index. The US 10-year Treasury yield rose 237 bps to 3.87% as of 30 December 2022. Bond yields rose sharply in all the major
government bond markets through the year, apart from in Japan and China. The rise in inflation was largely a global phenomenon and it
was likely more muted in places like China due to the impact on economic growth from their zero-Covid policy. The most significant
rises in yield were seen in Europe as Italian 10yr bonds rose 354 bps to 4.72% and Spanish 10yr bond yields rose 310 bps to 3.66%.
Even in Germany the 10yr Bund rose 275 bps to a yield of 2.57% ending the prolonged period of negative interest rates in German
bonds. China 10yr bond yields rose a relatively modest 6 bps and Japanese government bonds yields rose 35 bps.

A key theme through the year for most government bond yield curves was that as interest rates rose, we saw yield curves flatten. This
meant that short-term yields rose relatively more than longer term yields. This flattening of yield curves was unsurprising given the
growing hawkishness from the major central banks like the FED, ECB and BOE, which had more of a pronounced impact on shorter
bond maturities. The yield curve inverted in several markets including the United States where the yield of 2yr US Treasuries exceeded
that of 10yr US Treasuries by 55 bps as of the end of the year. This deep inversion of the US yield curve has only previously been seen
prior to economic recessions. Other inverted yield curves were the curves in Canada, Germany and South Korea. In contrast, some of the
yield curves in the European periphery like Italy and Spain remained relatively steep as well as in Australia.

The yield on the Bloomberg Barclays Global Aggregate Treasuries Index rose significantly over the year to 3.04% while the index
duration decreased from 8.51 to 7.41.

Fund Commentary

The First Trust Low Duration Global Government Bond UCITS ETF’s (“FSOV” or the “Fund”) returned -8.68% on a net asset value
(NAV) basis for the full year ending 30 December 2022. The ICE BofA 3-5 Year Global Government Bond Index hedged to Euros fell
-7.90%, and the Bloomberg Global Aggregate Treasury Index, Euro hedged, fell -12.77% over the same period.

The negative returns for the Fund and benchmark indices highlight how difficult the year was for fixed income assets. Yields rose across
the vast majority of the government bond yield curves which not only caused a repricing in government debt but in the corporate debt
that is typically priced relative to government bond yield curves. In addition, despite the generalised flattening of yield curves, on a total
return basis the longer duration assets fared worse over the year as indicated by the underperformance of the longer duration Bloomberg
Global Aggregate Treasury Index versus the shorter duration ICE BofA Global Government Bond Index.

The Fund outperformed the Bloomberg Global Aggregate Treasury Index over the period primarily due to it having less concentration in
the United States, which was a big driver of higher yields and by maintaining a lower duration than the Bloomberg Global Aggregate
Treasury Index. The Bloomberg Global Aggregate Treasury Index will have also benefitted from having a large exposure to Japan which
fared relatively well over the period while the Fund had no exposure to Japan. The impact of this was also evident in the performance of
the short duration ICE benchmark, where its large exposure to Japan helped moderate that index’s negative returns. Japan constituted
20.8% of the ICE benchmark and 22.48% of the Bloomberg index as of the 30 December 2022.

The Fund’s factor-driven process looks to maximise interest rate carry by concentrating exposure in sovereign yield curves which are
relatively steep and which compensate investors for accepting duration risk. The duration exposures of the Fund were tilted towards the
relatively steeper yield curves seen in Europe. At the end of the period the Fund’s larger duration exposures were to the Euro area,
Australia and Singapore. There were also some exposures to the steeper yield curves in investment grade rated emerging markets like
Peru, Indonesia and Mexico. The Fund remains underweight in Japan due to the relatively flat yield curve there and has short duration
exposure in the US and Canada.

* References to benchmarks are for illustrative purposes only. There is no guarantee that a Fund will outperform its benchmark.
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Investment Manager’s Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

First Trust Low Duration Global Government Bond UCITS ETF* (continued)

Fund Commentary (continued)

At 30 December 2022, the Fund’s weighted average yield to maturity was 4.24%, which increased from 2.14% at the beginning of the
year, reflecting the higher carry achievable from the now significantly higher bond yields in the strategy’s investment universe. The
Fund’s average duration was 3.47 and has been maintained between 2 and 4. The Fund was invested in sovereign bonds across 28
different yield curves with all the Fund's holdings being investment-grade rated. Bond positions not denominated in the Fund's base
currency, Euro's, were hedged using currency forward contracts. At the end of the period, the Fund's top 3 country exposures were to
government bonds in Australia, Italy and Singapore. The Fund also had short exposures through interest rate futures to US 10yr Treasury
futures and Canadian 10yr bond futures to maintain the overall duration of the Fund within the 2 to 4 target.

The Fund’s rules-based strategy focuses on selecting exposures with relatively attractive currency-hedged yields and relatively steeper
yield curves. Currency-hedged yields are the yield earned on a security after taking into account the cost of hedging the currency risk of
that security into the Fund’s base currency. We believe that focusing on these two factors with a disciplined, rules-based process will
provide positive excess returns over time, particularly versus the concentrated market capitalisation weighted indices.

First Trust Global Portfolios Limited

1 February 2023

* References to benchmarks are for illustrative purposes only. There is no guarantee that a Fund will outperform its benchmark.
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Investment Manager’s Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)
First Trust Strategic Metal and Energy Equity UCITS Fund*

Market Commentary

U.S. economic growth was mixed during the fiscal period from January 1* to December 31% 2022. Real Gross Domestic Product (GDP)
grew by a disappointing 0.89% on a year over year basis (4™ quarter GDP is expected to be 2.6% annualized). GDP growth was
unevenly distributed during the year with a shrinking GDP in the first half of the year followed by a robust GDP bounce back in the 2™
half of the year. The U.S. Labor market, as measured by the Bureau of Labor Statistics Non-Farm payroll release, showed strong
employment growth in both halves of the year. 2.66 million jobs were created in the first half of the year and an additional 1.84 million
jobs were created in the second half of the year. Job growth was positive in all 12 months of the year.

Good news on the jobs front was partially offset by bad news on the inflation and consumer earnings front. After years of declining
and/or low inflation, as measured by the consumer price index (CPI), inflation surged from the pandemic lows of 0.1% year-over-year
(YOY) in May of 2020. After jumping to 7.0% YOY at this time last year, CPI maintained its upward trend, reaching a cycle high of
9.1% YOY in June of 2022. Subsequently, with a decline in energy prices, CPI has fallen back to “only” 6.5% as of the December data
release. Inflation erodes the purchasing power of the U.S. dollar and employee earnings, resulting in a decline in real living standards. To
see the negative and sizable impact of inflation, one needs to look no further than employment earnings. On the surface, employment
earnings growth looked attractive in 2022, up +4.6% for the fiscal period. However, after adjusting for inflation, U.S. real average
weekly earnings declined by -3.1% during the fiscal period, meaning that on average, U.S. workers took a big pay cut in 2022.

The U.S. Federal Reserve (Fed), aggressively hiked interest rates in 2022 to quell inflation. The Fed raised its benchmark short term
interest rate by 0.25% in March, 0.50% in May, and then by 0.75% in June, July, September, and November. The Fed finally slowed the
pace of interest rate increases at the December Federal Open Market Committee meeting, raising rates by 0.50%. Current market
expectations, based upon Fed Funds futures contracts, are for another 0.50% increase in in the first half of 2023 followed by rate cuts in
the second half of the year. With the increase in the Federal Reserve short term interest rate, interest rates for U.S. consumers have also
risen. One common and very impactful rate, the 30-year mortgage rate as measured by Freddie Mac, increased from 3.11% one year ago
to 6.41% as of 31 December 2022.

The U.S. equity market, as represented by the S&P 500® (the “Index”), sold off during the fiscal period, down -18.11%. U.S. Treasury
rates rose significantly during the year with five-year treasury rates ending the year at 4.00%, up 2.74% during the year. As a result of
higher rates, the Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index total return for 2022 was -13.01%, the worst calendar year return ever for the
index. Commodities were a bright spot during the year for investors with the Bloomberg Commodity Total Return Index up 16.09% for
the year.

Fund Commentary

The First Trust Strategic Metal and Energy Equity UCITs Fund returned +31.23% for the annual period ended on 31 December 2022.
The Fund’s unmanaged benchmark (50% NYSE Arca Gold Miners Index/50% S&P Oil & Gas Exploration & Production Index)
returned 19.62% for the same period. For the year, oil stocks within the portfolio have been the primary driver of returns with the S&P
Oil & Gas Exploration & Production Index up 45.72% while the NYSE Net Total Return Arca Gold Miners Index was down -8.63% for
the year. Gold and oil stocks are following the path of their respective underlying raw materials as the Bloomberg Commodity total
return sub-indexes for Brent Oil and Gold are up 38.92% and down -2.74%, respectively.

The Fund’s absolute and relative returns have been positively affected by the performance of the oil portfolio allocations, where the
Fund’s construction methodology has outperformed the S&P Oil & Gas Exploration Index. The Fund’s gold portfolio allocation has
marginally underperformed the NYSE Arca Gold Miners Index. The process of allocating to the oil and gold portfolio has switched
during the year, with a general trend toward either a 50/50 weighting or a 70% oil and 30% gold weighting. The only time the Fund
overweighted gold stocks during the calendar year was the mid-January to mid-February period, which was a fortuitous allocation tilt as
gold stocks outperformed oil stocks during that one-month time period. Overall, relative and absolute returns during the calendar year
were excellent, buoyed both by the oil and gas portfolio construction methodology (modified market cap weighting), and the capital
allocation process which determines whether to tilt the portfolio toward oil or gas stocks or whether to have no tilt at all.

Outlook

We believe that the Fund is well positioned to achieve its investment objective of long-term returns, through capital growth. As of year-
end, the Fund allocation is 49.29% oil stocks, 47.66% gold stocks, and 3.05% cash. We believe the prospects of higher inflation globally
due to a decade of aggressive fiscal and monetary policies is a positive for the First Trust Strategic Metal and Energy UCITS Fund
forward return potential. Gold and oil are both physical commodities, which should appreciate versus the U.S. dollar in a high
inflationary environment. All else being equal that should be beneficial for the underlying companies that mine or extract physical gold
and oil from the ground.

First Trust Advisors L.P.
1 February 2023

* References to benchmarks are for illustrative purposes only. There is no guarantee that a Fund will outperform its benchmark.
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Investment Manager’s Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

First Trust Global Capital Strength ESG Leaders UCITS ETF*
Market Commentary

For 2022 the S&P 500 Index returned -18.11% while the MSCI All Country World Index returned -18.36%. Global equity markets came
under pressure over the period as forecasted economic growth was lowered by several factors. First, geopolitical tensions in Europe
between Russia and North Atlantic Treaty Organization (“NATO”) centered around the invasion of Ukraine by Russia led to a
significant rise in the price of oil as Russia is a significant exporter of oil to Europe. The price of oil rose significantly during the first
half of 2022 from $75.21 per barrel on 31 December 2021 to $105.76 on 30 June 2022, before settling back at $80.26 on 30 December
2022. This led energy to be the best performing sector in 2022 by a significant margin.

Second, significant inflation led to higher interest rates which increased recession fears. The year-over-year increase in the US consumer
price index exceeded 7.0% every month of 2022, peaking at 9.1% in June and coming down to 7.1% for November, leading the Federal
Reserve to drastically increase the federal funds rate. The Federal Reserve increased the Federal Funds Target Rate 7 times during 2022,
from 0.25% to 4.50%. The Fed is expected to increase the federal funds rate multiple times again in the upcoming first quarter of 2023,
but it is uncertain by how many basis points. The market implied change in the federal funds rate is an increase of close to 50 basis
points by the end of the first quarter of 2023. This has caused a significant increase in the 10-year Treasury yield as it rose from 1.51%
on 31 December 2021 to 3.87% on 30 December 2022. This helped the financials sector to outperform the benchmark, as it tends to
outperform during periods of rising interest rates.

European markets are facing similar inflation pressures as year-over-year increases to the Euro Area Harmonised Index of Consumer
Prices started the year at 5.1% in January, rising to a high of 10.6% in October before declining slightly to an increase of 10.1% in
November. The European Central Bank increased interest rates 4 times during 2022, from 0.00% to 2.50%.

Fund Commentary

The First Trust Global Capital Strength ESG Leaders UCITS ETF returned -14.14%, outperforming both benchmarks, the MSCI All
Country World Index -18.36% return and the MSCI All Country World ESG Leaders Index -19.96% return, from 31 December 2021 to
30 December 2022.

The portfolio benefitted from being significantly underweight the communication services, consumer discretionary and information
technology sectors, which were the three poorest performing sectors during 2022. However, the portfolio was also significantly
underweight the energy sector, which was the best performing sector during 2022 by a wide margin.

The portfolio was significantly overweight in the health care, consumer staples, financials and industrials sectors, which helped
performance as these sectors outperformed the benchmark. However, security selection within the sectors provided mixed results. The
top performing stock, Trane Technologies plc (TT US) with a 19.19% return, was from the industrials sector, but 4 of the 10 poorest
performing stocks came from this sector. The poorest performing stock, Zoetis Inc (ZTS US) with a -36.56% return, came from the
health care sector, but 3 of the top 10 performing stocks came from this sector.

As the equity market dropped significantly during the period, dividend yield and low-volatility were two of the best performing factors,
which helped performance as the portfolio had positive exposure to these factors. However, the portfolio had a negative exposure to
value, which outperformed the market during 2022. The portfolio also had positive exposure to small size, which was the poorest
performing factor.

The portfolio was reconstituted and rebalanced in early June and again in early December. The weight in U.S. stocks decreased from
52.7% to 46.0% while developed markets stocks decreased from 86.1% to 81.6% over the course of the two rebalances. Weight in the
health care sector increased 5.5% to 21.7% and is now the largest sector weight in the portfolio. Consumer staples increased 4.1% to
become the second largest sector weight in the portfolio at 20.1%. Financials had the largest decrease in sector weight as it dropped
11.0% to 12.1%. Industrials was previously the largest sector weight but it dropped 4.8% to 19.9%. Consumer discretionary rose 4.5% to
a 6.0% sector weight, while materials dropped 4.1% to 0.0% sector weight.

Consumer staples and industrials were the sectors with the largest overweight compared to the benchmark at period end while
information technology and consumer discretionary had the largest underweight. With the rebalance, the largest change in ESG rating
weight was at the A-rating category which increased 12.4%, while the BBB-rating weight decreased 12.0%. The AAA-rating weight
dropped by 3.9% while the AA-rating weight increased by 5.4%. The BB-rating weight dropped from 2.0% to 0.0%. At the end of 2022,
the weight in each ESG rating were 17.7% in AAA, 49.6% in AA, 30.1% in A and 2.1% in BBB.

First Trust Advisors L.P.

1 February 2023

* References to benchmarks are for illustrative purposes only. There is no guarantee that a Fund will outperform its benchmark.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) submit its annual report together with the audited financial statements of First
Trust Global Funds plc (the “Company”), an umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds for the financial year ended 31
December 2022 (the “Reporting Period”).

Directors’ Responsibilities Statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Companies Act
2014 (the “Companies Act”) and the applicable regulations.

Irish company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under the law, the Directors have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”). Under company law, the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the Company as at the financial year end date and of
the profit or loss of the Company for the financial year and otherwise comply with the Companies Act.

In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are required to:
e select suitable accounting policies for the Company’s financial statements and then apply them consistently;
e make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e state whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards, identify those
standards, and note the effect and the reasons for any material departure from those standards; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue
in business.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Company keeps or causes to be kept adequate accounting records which correctly
explain and record the transactions of the Company, enable at any time the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the
Company to be determined with reasonable accuracy, enable them to ensure that the financial statements and Directors’ Report comply
with the Companies Act, FRS 102, the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities)
Regulations 2011, as amended (the “UCITS Regulations”), the Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1))
(Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019, (the “Central Bank UCITS Regulations”) and the
relevant Listing Rules of the Euronext Dublin, Amsterdam and Paris Stock Exchanges, London Stock Exchange, Deutsche Boerse and
Borsa Italiana and enable the financial statements to be audited. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The financial statements are published at https://www.ftglobalportfolios.com. The Directors, relying on the assistance of the Manager
and the Investment Manager are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information related to the
Company included on https://www.ftglobalportfolios.com. Legislation in the Republic of Ireland governing the presentation and
dissemination of the financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Statement of Relevant Audit Information

So far as each person who is a Director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant audit information, being
information needed by the auditor in connection with preparing their report, of which the auditors are unaware. Having made enquiries
of fellow Directors and the Company’s auditors, each Director has taken all the steps that he/she is obliged to take as a Director in order
to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of the information.

Directors’ Statement of Compliance

It is the policy of the Company to comply with its relevant obligations (as defined in the Companies Act). As required by Section 225(2)
of the Companies Act 2014, the Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for securing the Company’s compliance with the
relevant obligations. The Directors have drawn up a compliance policy statement as defined in Section 225(3)(a) of the Companies Act
2014 and a compliance policy which refers to the arrangements and structures that are in place and which are, in the Directors’ opinion,
designed to secure material compliance with the Company’s relevant obligations. These arrangements and structures were reviewed by
the Directors during the financial year. In discharging their responsibilities under Section 225, the Directors relied upon, among other
things, the services provided, advice and/or representations from third parties whom the Directors believe have the requisite knowledge
and experience in order to secure material compliance with the Company’s relevant obligations.

Accounting Records

The measures that the Directors have taken to secure compliance with the requirements of Sections 281 to 285 of the Companies Act
2014 with regard to the keeping of accounting records is the appointment of an experienced administrator — BNY Mellon Fund Services
(Ireland) Designated Activity Company (the “Administrator”’). The Company’s accounting records are maintained at the Administrator’s
registered office at One Dockland Central, Guild Street, International Financial Services Centre, Dublin 1, Ireland.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Review of the Business and Future Developments

The results of operations are set out on pages 40 to 46. A detailed review of the performance of the Company and future developments is
contained in the relevant Investment Manager or Sub-Investment Manager’s reports on pages 3 to 14. The Company intends to continue
promoting and generating interest in its business in the future. As at 31 December 2022, the Company had no employees.

Price movements of securities invested in by the Company’s sub-funds are difficult to predict and can be influenced by, among other
things, uncertainties related to climate change and certain macroeconomic conditions (including changing supply and demand
relationships; governmental trade; fiscal, monetary and exchange control programs and policies; national and international political and
economic events; exchange rates of currencies; changes in interest rates; and the inherent volatility of the market place). During periods
of uncertain market conditions the combination of price volatility and the less liquid nature of securities markets may, in certain cases,
affect the ability of the Company’s sub-funds to acquire or dispose of securities at the price and time they wish to do so, and
consequently may have an adverse impact on the investment performance of the Company.

Certain force majeure events (i.e., events beyond the control of the party claiming that the event has occurred, including, without
limitation, fire, flood, earthquakes, outbreaks of an infectious disease, pandemic or any other serious public health concern, war,
terrorism and labour strikes, major plant breakdowns, pipeline or electricity line ruptures, failure of technology, defective design and
construction, accidents, demographic changes, government macroeconomic policies and social instability) may adversely affect the
ability of the Administrator, Depository, Investment Manager, Distributor and other service providers to perform their obligations to the
Company until they are able to remedy the force majeure event. While it is expected that such service providers will implement
contingency plans for addressing force majeure events it is possible that such force majeure events exceed the assumptions of such plans.
Certain of these events may also have a broader negative impact on the world economy and international business activity generally, or
in any of the countries in which the Company may invest specifically. The nature and extent of the impact of such events is uncertain but
they may adversely affect the return on each of the Company’s sub-funds and their investments.

Due to the developing nature of the countries in which certain of the Company’s sub-funds may invest their markets are similarly of a
developing nature. Accordingly, these markets carry additional uncertainties related to their liquidity and levels of volatility in price
movements as compared to markets in more developed economies and markets. The value of the assets of each of the sub-funds referred
to above may be affected by uncertainties, such as political developments, changes in government policies, taxation and currency
repatriation and restrictions on foreign investment in some of the countries in which the sub-funds referred to above may invest.

Impact of Ukraine & Russia conflict

In February 2022, Russia launched a significant invasion of Ukraine. In response, the U.S, Canada, the U.K., the EU and many other
countries imposed sweeping sanctions and export restrictions targeting Russia. A number of businesses and corporations suspended or
wound down operations in Russia, Belarus, Ukraine and other impacted regions. The war and the resulting actions taken by world
governments created turbulence in the financial markets across the globe. These events have had, and could continue to have, an adverse
effect on the value and liquidity of a Fund’s investments and make it difficult to price or divest certain securities that are subject to
sanctions and restrictions. The volatility and uncertainty caused by such events may also adversely affect the ability to achieve the
investment objective of a Fund.

Although the full effect of the continued war is difficult to predict, the war has had, and is likely to continue to have, a significant
adverse impact on global macroeconomic conditions and have led to prolonged political, legal, regulatory and economic uncertainty.
This uncertainty has impacted, and could continue to impact, the global economic climate and impacted opportunities, pricing,
availability and cost of bank financing, regulation, values or exit opportunities of companies or assets based, doing business, or having
service or other significant relationships, in Russia and/or Ukraine, and their surrounding regions, including companies or assets held or
considered for prospective investment by a Fund.

Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Investment in the Company carries with it a degree of risk, as referred to in Note 11 of these financial statements and in the Company’s
prospectuses.
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Results and Dividends
The results for the Reporting Period are set out in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on pages 40 to 46.

There were no distributions declared or paid by the Funds for the Reporting Period except for the First Trust US Large Cap Core
AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF, First Trust United Kingdom AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF, First Trust Eurozone AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF, First
Trust Global Equity Income UCITS ETF, First Trust Germany AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF, First Trust US Equity Income UCITS ETF,
First Trust Low Duration Global Government Bond UCITS ETF and First Trust Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate UCITS ETF
which have quarterly distributing share classes. These are detailed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on pages 40 to 46.

Related Party and Connected Person Transactions
The Directors are satisfied that:

(1) in accordance with the Central Bank UCITS Regulations, any transaction carried out between the Company or The Bank of New
York Mellon SA/NV, Dublin Branch (the “Depositary”) and the delegates or sub-delegates of the Company or the Depositary
(excluding any non-group company sub-custodians appointed by the Depositary) and any associated or group company of the Company,
Depositary, delegate or sub-delegate (“connected persons”) is conducted at arm’s length and is in the best interests of the shareholders;
and

(ii) there are arrangements, evidenced by written procedures, in place to ensure these obligations are applied to all connected persons
transactions and that all transactions with connected persons entered into during the financial year complied with the obligations.

The Directors have documented how the Company has complied with these obligations during the financial year and the rationale for
being satisfied that the transactions conform to these requirements.

Although not deemed to be related parties under FRS 102 as they do not exercise significant influence over the activities of the
Company, Regulation 43 of the Central Bank UCITS Regulations also deems a “Depositary” and its “associated or group companies” to
be connected parties to the Company. As such, the Depositary and the Administrator are connected parties to the Company.

During the financial year, €33,789 and €12,151 (31 December 2021: €20,658 and €5,484) fees were earned for provision of depositary
and administration services to First Trust Strategic Metal and Energy Equity UCITS Fund as disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. The Administrator was selected by the Company to execute foreign exchange transactions and purchase and sell
securities on behalf of the Funds. The terms of these transactions were conducted by the Company at arm’s length and in the best
interests of the shareholders of the Company. For the ETF Funds, the Manager is responsible for discharging all operational expenses out
of its management fees.

Directors and Company Secretary

The Directors who held office during the financial year were James A. Bowen, Andy Roggensack, David G. McGarel, Bronwyn Wright,
Michael Boyce and Tom Coghlan - all serve as non-executive Directors. They served for the entire financial year. James A. Bowen
served as Chairman of the Board for the financial year ended 31 December 2022. Bradwell Limited (the “Company Secretary”) served as
Company Secretary for the financial year ended 31 December 2022. Details of the Directors and Company Secretary are listed on page 2.

The Directors who held office at 31 December 2022 and their connected persons and the Company Secretary had no interest in the shares
of the Company at that date or at 1 January 2022 or at any time during the Reporting Period. Furthermore, under the Electoral Act 1997
the Directors who held office at 31 December 2022 did not make any political donations.

Going Concern

The Company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, its financial position, financial risk
management objectives, details of its financial instruments and derivative activities and its exposures to price, credit, liquidity and cash
flow risk are described on pages 116 to 153. The Company has considerable financial resources in the form of highly liquid investments
and cash balances. As a consequence, the Directors believe that the Company is well placed to manage its business risks successfully
despite the current uncertain economic outlook.

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt a going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Independent Auditors

The Independent Auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm were appointed by the Directors
of the Company on 13 September 2022 and have indicated their willingness to remain in office in accordance with Section 383(2) of the
Companies Act 2014. Deloitte Ireland LLP had served as auditors for 10 years until 13 September 2022. Under SI 312/2016 European
Union (Statutory Audits) (Directive 2006/43/EC, as amended by Directive 2014/56/EU, and Regulation (EU) No 537/2014) Regulations
2016, mandatory 10 year auditor rotation is required.
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Significant Events during the Financial Year

Please refer to Note 19 for details of significant events during the financial year.

Significant Events after the Financial Year End Date

Please refer to Note 20 for details of significant events after the financial year.

Corporate Governance Statement

A. General Requirements

The Company is subject to the requirements of the Companies Act and the Central Bank of Ireland (the “Central Bank”) as an
Undertaking for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities (“UCITS”) pursuant to the UCITS Regulations and the Central Bank
UCITS Regulations. The Board has assessed the measures included in the voluntary Corporate Governance Code for Collective
Investment Schemes and Management Companies as published by the Irish Fund Industry Association in December 2011 (the “IF
Code”). The Board has adopted all corporate governance practices and procedures in the IF Code with effect from 31 December 2012.

The IF Code can be obtained from the IF website at http://www.irishfunds.ie. The Company is also subject to corporate governance
practices imposed by:

(i) the Companies Act which can be obtained from the Irish statute book website at www.irishstatutebook.ie and is available for
inspection at the registered office of the Company.

(ii) the constitution of the Company (the “Constitution”) which is available for inspection at the registered office of the Company and
may be obtained at the registered office of the Administrator or at the Companies Registration Office in Ireland.

(iii) the Central Bank in the UCITS Regulations and Central Bank UCITS Regulations which can be obtained from the Central Bank’s
website at: http://www.centralbank.ie/regulation/industry-sectors/funds/Pages/default.aspx.

(iv) Euronext Dublin through the Euronext Dublin Code of Listing Requirements and Procedures for Investment Funds which can be
obtained at http://www.ise.ie

(v) the London Stock Exchange through its Rule Book which can be obtained from its website at: http://www.londonstockexchange.com.

(vi) the Euronext Amsterdam and Paris Exchanges through their Rules and Regulations which can be obtained from the Euronext
website at: https://www.euronext.com.

(vii) the Deutsche Boerse through its Rule Book which can be obtained from its website at: http://deutsche-boerse.com/dbg-en/.

(viii) the Borsa Italiana through its Rules which can be obtained from its website at: http://www.borsaitaliana.it/homepage/homepage
en.html.

B. Board of Directors

In accordance with the Companies Act and the Constitution, unless otherwise determined by an ordinary resolution of the Company in
general meeting, the number of Directors may not be less than two. The Board currently comprises of six Directors, three of whom are
related to the Investment Manager of the Company and three of whom are independent. Details of the current Directors are set out in the
“Directors and Other Information” section on page 2, under the heading “Board of Directors”.

The Board meets on at least a quarterly basis to fulfil its responsibilities to the Company. However, additional meetings in addition to the
quarterly meetings may be convened as required and the Board may meet more frequently in general sessions of the Board to discuss
matters of general importance to the Company.

The Board has delegated management of the Company to certain service providers. These service providers are set out in the “Directors
and Other Information” section on page 2.

Board materials, including a detailed agenda of items for consideration at each Board meeting, minutes of the previous meeting and
reports from various internal and external service providers are generally circulated in advance of the meeting to allow all Directors
adequate time to consider the material.

The quorum necessary for the transaction of business at a meeting of Directors is two. Directors generally attend all Board meetings.

The Board has regular direct contact with the delegated service providers and thus delegated responsibilities to committees are not
deemed necessary.
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Corporate Governance Statement (continued)
C. Internal Control and Risk Management Systems in Relation to Financial Reporting

The Board, by delegation, is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control and risk management systems of the
Company in relation to the financial reporting process. The Board has entrusted the administration of the accounting records to the
Administrator. The Board, through delegation to the Administrator, has put in place a formal procedure to ensure that relevant
accounting records for the Company are properly maintained and are readily available, and includes the procedure for the production of
audited annual financial statements and unaudited semi-annual financial statements for the Company. The annual and semi-annual
financial statements of the Company are prepared by the Administrator and presented to the Board for approval, prior to applicable filing
such as with the Central Bank.

The Board has appointed an independent external audit firm to audit the annual financial statements in accordance with the Companies
Act. The auditors’ report to shareholders, including any qualifications, is reproduced in full in the annual report.

D. Shareholder Meetings

All general meetings of the Company shall be held in Ireland. Each financial year the Company shall hold a general meeting as its annual
general meeting. Reasonable notice shall be given in respect of each general meeting of the Company. The notice shall specify the venue
and time of the meeting and the business to be transacted at the meeting. A proxy may attend on behalf of any shareholder of the
Company (a “Shareholder”). An ordinary resolution is a resolution passed by a simple majority and a special resolution is a resolution
passed by a majority of 75% or more of the votes cast. The Constitution provides that matters may be determined by a meeting of
Shareholders on a show of hands unless a poll is requested by five Shareholders or by Shareholders holding 10% or more of the shares or
unless the Chairman of the meeting requests a poll. Each share (including the subscriber shares) gives the holder one vote in relation to
any matters relating to the Company which are submitted to Shareholders for a vote by poll.

E. Diversity Report

The Company is established as an investment fund and has no employees. As with many similarly structured companies, the Board does
not have a formal diversity policy in place because any such policy would apply only to the Board itself. While the Board has not set
specific targets in respect of gender diversity, the Board’s succession plan addresses the need to consider diversity and it acknowledges
its importance in enhancing its operation. During any selection process for Directors, the Board is committed to selecting those with
diversity of age, gender, educational or professional background, business skills and experience and the candidates for appointment are
selected on the basis on these factors. The Board will ensure that all selection decisions are based on merit and that recruitment is fair
and non-discriminating.

F. Audit Committee

Per the Companies (Statutory Audits) Act 2018, when a Public-Interest Entity (“PIE”) is a UCITS and a Company, Section 1551(18)
disapplies S167 and S1551(11)(b) disapplies the requirement in S1551(1) for a PIE to have an audit committee. Accordingly, the
Company is not required to have and therefore does not have an audit committee.

Sustainable Finance Disclosures Regulation

Please see details of the Article 8 Fund, First Trust Global Capital Strength Leaders ESG UCITS ETF, in the accompanying Annex IV to
the financial statements.

For all Funds, excluding the Article 8 Fund, First Trust Global Capital Strength Leaders ESG UCITS ETF, please note that the
underlying investments do not take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities for the purposes of
the Taxonomy Regulation.

On behalf of the Board:
e =X RO 0%0n 5
Bronwyn Wright Michael Boyce

Date: 25 April 2023
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BNY M E LLON The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, T +353 21 900 7920
Dublin Branch F +353 1 829 1024
Riverside Two, Sir John Rogerson’s Quay
Business Park
Dublin 2, D02 KV60, Ireland.

REPORT OF THE DEPOSITARY TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
FIRST TRUST GLOBAL FUNDS PLC DATED 31 DECEMBER 2022

For the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (the “Period”)

The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Dublin Branch (the “Depositary” “us”, “we”, or “our”) has enquired
into the conduct of First Trust Global Funds plc (the “Company”) for the Period, in its capacity as Depositary
to the Company.

This report including the opinion has been prepared for and solely for the shareholders in the Company, in
accordance with our role as Depositary to the Company and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this
opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is
shown.

Responsibilities of the Depositary

Our duties and responsibilities are outlined in Regulation 34 of the European Communities (Undertakings for
Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (S.I. No 352 of 2011), as amended (the
“Regulations”).

Our report shall state whether, in our opinion, the Company has been managed in that Period in accordance
with the provisions of the Company’s constitutional documentation and the Regulations. It is the overall
responsibility of the Company to comply with these provisions. If the Company has not been so managed, we
as Depositary must state in what respects it has not been so managed and the steps which we have taken in
respect thereof.

Basis of Depositary Opinion

The Depositary conducts such reviews as it, in its reasonable opinion, considers necessary in order to comply
with its duties and to ensure that, in all material respects, the Company has been managed (i) in accordance
with the limitations imposed on its investment and borrowing powers by the provisions of its constitutional
documentation and the appropriate regulations and (ii) otherwise in accordance with the Company’s
constitutional documentation and the appropriate regulations.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has been managed during the Period, in all material respects:

(i) in accordance with the limitations imposed on the investment and borrowing powers of the Company by
the constitutional documentation and the Regulations; and

(ii) otherwise in accordance with the provisions of the constitutional documentation and the Regulations.

Soshes Von Goothert

For and on behalf of The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Dublin Branch
Riverside Two,

Sir John Rogerson’s Quay,

Grand Canal Dock,

Dublin 2,

Ireland.

Date: 25 April 2023
Registered in Ireland No. 907126, VAT No. IE9578054E

The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, trading as The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Dublin Branch is authorised by the
National Bank of Belgium.

The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, 46 Rue Montoyerstraat, B-1000 Brussels, Belgium - Tel. (32) 2 545 81 11, V.A.T. BE
0806.743.159 - RPM-RPR Brussels Company No. 0806.743.159. The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV is a Belgian limited
liability company, authorized and regulated as a significant credit institution by the European Central Bank and the National
Bank of Belgium under the Single Supervisory Mechanism and by the Belgian Financial Services and Markets Authority.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of First Trust Global
Funds plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, First Trust Global Funds plc’s financial statements:

® give a true and fair view of the Company’s and sub-funds’ assets, liabilities and financial position as at 31
December 2022 and of their results for the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland
(accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council of the UK, including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” and Irish
law); and

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014 and the
European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations
2011 (as amended).

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements, which
comprise:

e the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2022;
e the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended;

e the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares for the
year then ended;

o the Schedule of Investments for each of the sub-funds as at 31 December 2022; and

e the notes to the financial statements for the Company and for each of its sub-funds, which include a
description of the significant accounting policies.

Our opinion is consistent with our reporting to the Board of Directors.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (“ISAs (Ireland)”) and
applicable law.

Our responsibilities under ISAs (Ireland) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in Ireland, which includes TAASA’s Ethical Standard as applicable to listed public interest entities,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by IAASA’s Ethical Standard were
not provided to the Company.

Other than those disclosed in note 9, we have provided no non-audit services to the Company in the period from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2022.
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Our audit approach
Overview
Materiality
e Overall materiality: 50 basis points of Net Assets Value ("NAV") at 31 December

Akt e manage certain duties and responsib'ilities with regards to the Qay-tq-day
management of the Company. We tailored the scope of our audit taking into
account the types of investments within the sub-funds, the involvement of the
third parties referred to below, the accounting processes and controls, and the
= 2 industry in which the Company operates. We look at each of the sub-funds at an
ey audit e e .
matters individual level.

2022 for each of the Company’s sub-funds.
e Performance materiality: 75% of overall materiality.
Materiality AL SCOpe e
e The Company is an open-ended investment Company with variable capital and
engages First Trust Global Portfolios Management Limited (the “Manager”) to

Key audit matters
e Existence of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss.

e Valuation of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss.

The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements. In particular, we looked at where the directors made subjective judgements, for example the selection of
pricing sources to value the investment portfolio. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management
override of internal controls, including evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the directors that represented a
risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of
the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
(whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit
strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any
comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Existence of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss
See accounting policy 2(b) of the financial statements of the
Company for further details.
The financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss included in the Statements of
Flnaflaal Position of each sub-fund are held in the sub- For the majority of financial derivative instruments held with
fund’s name at 31 December 2022. We focused on this area counterparties, we obtained an independent confirmation
because it represents the principal elements in the financial P ’ P .

from each counterparty or performed alternative procedures

statements.
to evidence the existence of the positions.

Our audit approach sought to obtain independent
confirmation of positions held with the relevant counter-
parties. We then reconciled these confirmations to the
accounting records maintained by the Funds’ administrator
and evaluated any material differences identified.

No material issues were noted as a result of these
procedures.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair We tested the valuation of the financial assets and financial

value through profit or loss liabilities by independently obtaining price quotations for
See accounting policy 2(b) of the financial statements of the the Funds’investments included within the financial
Company for further details. statements. Our process enables us to test the values used

by the administrator, using independently obtained vendor
prices, where possible. Where not possible, we investigate
further where material.

The financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss included in the Statements of
Financial Position of each sub-fund at 31 December 2022
are valued at fair value in line with FRS 102. We focused on INo material issues were identified from the results of these
this area because it represents the principle element in the ~ procedures.

financial statements.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Company, the accounting processes and controls, and the
industry in which it operates.

As at 31 December 2022 there are 25 sub-funds operating. The Company's Statement of Financial Position, Statement of
Comprehensive Income, and Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares are an aggregation of the positions and results of the sub-funds.

The directors control the affairs of the Company and are responsible for the overall investment policy which is determined
by them. The Company engages First Trust Global Portfolios Management Limited (the '"Manager') to manage certain
duties and responsibilities with regards to the day to day management of the Company. The Manager has delegated certain
responsibilities to First Trust Advisors L.P. (the ‘Investment Manager’) and to BNY Mellon Fund Services (Ireland)
Designated Activity Company (the ‘Administrator’). The financial statements, which remain the responsibility of the
directors, are prepared on their behalf by the Administrator. The Company has appointed The Bank of New York Mellon
SA/NV, Dublin Branch (the “Depositary”) to act as Depositary of the Company’s assets. In establishing the overall
approach to our audit we assessed the risk of material misstatement at a sub-fund level, taking into account the nature,
likelihood and potential magnitude of any misstatement. As part of our risk assessment, we considered the Company’s
interaction with the Administrator, and we assessed the control environment in place at the Administrator.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for
materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature,
timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in
evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements of each of the Company’s
sub-funds as follows:

Overall materiality and how 50 basis points of Net Assets Value ("NAV") at 31 December 2022 for each of the

we determined it Company’s sub-funds.
Rationale for benchmark We have applied this benchmark because the main objective of the Company is to
applied provide investors with a total return at a sub-fund level, taking account of the capital

and income returns.

We use performance materiality to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected
and undetected misstatements exceeds overall materiality. Specifically, we use performance materiality in determining the
scope of our audit and the nature and extent of our testing of account balances, classes of transactions and disclosures, for
example in determining sample sizes. Our performance materiality was 75% of overall materiality.

In determining the performance materiality, we considered a number of factors - the history of misstatements, risk
assessment and aggregation risk and the effectiveness of controls - and concluded that an amount at the upper end of our
normal range was appropriate.
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We agreed with the Board of Directors that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above 5
basis points of each sub-fund’s NAV, for NAV per share impacting differences as well as misstatements below that amount
that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Company’s and sub-funds’ ability to continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting included:

The Company is constituted as an open-ended investment company with variable capital and is structured as an umbrella
fund. It has segregated liability between the sub-funds

The Directors provided an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

We have obtained an understanding of the liquidity risk of the Company and sub-funds and the measures to mitigate and
manage these risks (as disclosed in Note 11 Financial Instruments and Associated Risks - Liquidity Risk) over the going
concern period (12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements) by considering the Board’s assessment of
going concern (outlined in the Directors' Report).

We considered the appropriateness of the going concern assessment of the Company and sub-funds by:

e Reviewing the liquidity profile of the assets and liabilities, for any significant mismatches, as detailed in Note 11
Financial Instruments and Associated Risks - Liquidity Risk;

e Agreeing the liquidity terms surrounding the Company and sub-fund’s ability to manage liquidity risk through
redemption limits, if necessary, as per Note 11 Financial Instruments and Associated Risks - Liquidity Risk, to the
legal documents;

e Performing subsequent event testing around capital activity to determine whether material redemption requests
have been presented to the sub-funds; and

e Discussing management’s plans to assess if there is a plan to terminate any of the sub-funds.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company’s and sub-funds’ ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date on which the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the
Company’s and sub-funds’ ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements other than
the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon. In connection
with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the Companies Act 2014
have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (Ireland) and the
Companies Act 2014 require us to also report certain opinions and matters as described below:
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Directors’ Report

e In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the
Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2022 is consistent with the financial statements and has
been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

® Based on our knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Directors’ Report.

Corporate governance statement

e In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements, the
description of the main features of the internal control and risk management systems in relation to the
financial reporting process included in the Corporate Governance Statement, is consistent with the financial
statements and has been prepared in accordance with section 1373(2)(c) of the Companies Act 2014.

e Based on our knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit of the financial statements, we have not identified material misstatements in the description of the
main features of the internal control and risk management systems in relation to the financial reporting
process included in the Corporate Governance Statement.

e In our opinion, based on the work undertaken during the course of the audit of the financial statements, the
information required by section 1373(2)(a),(b),(e) and (f) of the Companies Act 2014 is contained in the
Corporate Governance Statement.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 15, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view.

The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s and sub-funds’ ability to
continue as going concerns, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (Ireland) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the Company and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with
laws and regulations related to breaches of Irish legislation and Central Bank of Ireland regulations, and we considered
the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those
laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial statements such as the Companies Act
2014 and the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations
2011 (as amended). We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial
statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to the risk of
management override of controls.

Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

e Enquiry of management to identify any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations;
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e Identifying and testing journal entries, where any such journal entries, that met our specific risk based criteria,

were identified;

Designing audit procedures to incorporate unpredictability;

Reviewing relevant minutes of the meetings of the board of directors; and

Reviewing financial statement disclosures and agreeing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with

applicable laws and regulations.
There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using data
auditing techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather than testing
complete populations. We will often seek to target particular items for testing based on their size or risk characteristics. In
other cases, we will use audit sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about the population from which the sample is
selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the IAASA website at:

https://www.iaasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-1¢f6-458b-9b81-
a98202dcoc3a/Description of auditors responsibilities for audit.pdf.

This description forms part of our auditors’ report.
Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance
with section 391 of the Companies Act 2014 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2014 opinions on other matters

e We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

e In our opinion the accounting records of the Company were sufficient to permit the financial statements to
be readily and properly audited.
e The financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

Companies Act 2014 exception reporting
Directors’ remuneration and transactions

Under the Companies Act 2014 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of directors’
remuneration and transactions specified by sections 305 to 312 of that Act have not been made. We have no exceptions to
report arising from this responsibility.

Appointment

We were appointed by the directors on 13 September 2022 to audit the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 and subsequent financial periods. This is therefore our first uninterrupted engagement.

Aoife. O Consek

Aoife O'Connor

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm
Dublin

25 April 2023


https://www.iaasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-a98202dc9c3a/Description_of_auditors_responsibilities_for_audit.pdf
https://www.iaasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-a98202dc9c3a/Description_of_auditors_responsibilities_for_audit.pdf

First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2022

Assets

Cash (Note 2F)

Margin cash (Note 2F)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5)

Variation margin receivable

Receivable on sale of securities

Receivable on capital shares

Accrued income and other receivables

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5)

Bank overdraft (Note 2F)

Margin cash (Note 2F)

Payable on purchase of securities

Payable on capital shares

Capital gains tax payable (Note 4)

Accrued expenses (Note 6)

Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable participating shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

Number of redeemable participating shares in issue
(Note 7 & 18C)

Class A

Class B

Net asset value per share attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares

Class A

Class B

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust First Trust First Trust

US Large Emerging United First Trust
Cap Core Markets Kingdom Eurozone
AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ £ €

119,812 142,378 28 110,248
88,056,971 20,203,527 17,532,877 92,467,888

107,395 45,584 79,147 106,931
88,284,178 20,391,489 17,612,052 92,685,067
- (50) (15,625) -

- (3,682) - -

(52,700) (14,584) (10,756) (54,828)
(52,700) (18,316) (26,381) (54,828)
88,231,478 20,373,173 17,585,671 92,630,239
788,469 700,002 508,922 2,319,101
635,399 - 259,858 481,033
US$64.35 US$29.10 £24.83 €33.19
US$59.01 - £19.05 €32.54



First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2022 (continued)

Assets

Cash (Note 2F)

Margin cash (Note 2F)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5)

Variation margin receivable

Receivable on sale of securities

Receivable on capital shares

Accrued income and other receivables

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5)

Bank overdraft (Note 2F)

Margin cash (Note 2F)

Payable on purchase of securities

Payable on capital shares

Capital gains tax payable (Note 4)

Accrued expenses (Note 6)

Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable participating shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

Number of redeemable participating shares in issue
(Note 7 & 18C)

Class A

Class B

Net asset value per share attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares

Class A

Class B

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust First Trust First Trust First Trust
Indxx US Equity  Global Equity Germany
NextG  Opportunities Income AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ €
47,968 19,134 57,216 5,280
7,430,119 8,774,877 16,022,176 6,590,626
- - 27,120 -
12,941 4,142 96,581 27,153
7,491,028 8,798,153 16,203,093 6,623,059
- - (52,373) -
- - (6,601) -
550 - (1,295) -
(4,822) (5,326) (8,771) (4,210)
4,272) (5,326) (69,040) (4,210)
7,486,756 8,792,827 16,134,053 6,618,849
350,002 300,002 15,892 300,002
- - 390,991 -
US$21.39 US$29.31 US$50.89 €22.06
- - US$39.20 -



First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2022 (continued)

Assets

Cash (Note 2F)

Margin cash (Note 2F)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5)

Variation margin receivable

Receivable on sale of securities

Receivable on capital shares

Accrued income and other receivables

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5)

Bank overdraft (Note 2F)

Margin cash (Note 2F)

Payable on purchase of securities

Payable on capital shares

Capital gains tax payable (Note 4)

Accrued expenses (Note 6)

Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable participating shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

Number of redeemable participating shares in issue
(Note 7 & 18C)

Class A

Class B

Class B GBP (Hedged)

Class C EUR (Hedged)

Net asset value per share attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares

Class A

Class B

Class B GBP (Hedged)

Class C EUR (Hedged)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust First Trust
First Trust Dow Jones Nasdaq®

US Equity International Clean Edge® First Trust
Income Internet  Green Energy FactorFX
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ US$

- 51,448 22,148 244227

267,717,759 4,604,314 23,614,330 2,146,563

_ — - 485,561

- - - 280,426

682,067 553 5,760 10,332

268,399,826 4,656,315 23,642,238 3,167,109

_ - - (36,475)

(312,609) (151) - -

_ — - (770,376)

(133,606) (2,917) (14,232) (1,873)

(446,215) (3,068) (14,232) (808,724)

267,953,611 4,653,247 23,628,006 2,358,385

8,228,592 325,002 1,300,002 15,002

1,078,229 - - -

- - - 10,002

- - - 100,002

US$28.52 US$14.32 US$18.18 US$20.20

US$30.88 - - -

- - - £15.51

- - - €17.51



First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2022 (continued)

Assets

Cash (Note 2F)

Margin cash (Note 2F)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5)

Variation margin receivable

Receivable on sale of securities

Receivable on capital shares

Accrued income and other receivables

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5)

Bank overdraft (Note 2F)

Margin cash (Note 2F)

Payable on purchase of securities

Payable on capital shares

Capital gains tax payable (Note 4)

Accrued expenses (Note 6)

Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable participating shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

Number of redeemable participating shares in issue
(Note 7 & 18C)

Class A

Class B GBP (Hedged)

Class C

Net asset value per share attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares

Class A

Class B GBP (Hedged)

Class C

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust First Trust
Indxx Low Duration
Innovative First Trust First Trust Global
Transaction & Dow Jones Cloud Government
Process Internet Computing Bond
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ €

502,756 7,030 872,013 565,041

- - - 113,508

103,458,753 35,838,074 254,897,279 13,581,104

- - - 4,362

- - 134,469 -

35,053 - 41,244 137,778

103,996,562 35,845,104 255,945,005 14,401,793

- - - (96,424)

- - - (275)

- - - (102,503)

(62,602) (17,287) (143,426) (6,042)

(62,602) (17,287) (143,426) (205,244)

103,933,960 35,827,817 255,801,579 14,196,549

3,950,002 2,100,002 10,550,002 -

- - - 5,002

- - - 845,002

US$26.31 US$17.06 US$24.25 -

- - - £13.74

- - - €16.71



First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2022 (continued)

Assets

Cash (Note 2F)

Margin cash (Note 2F)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5)

Variation margin receivable

Receivable on sale of securities

Receivable on capital shares

Accrued income and other receivables

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5)

Bank overdraft (Note 2F)

Margin cash (Note 2F)

Payable on purchase of securities

Payable on capital shares

Capital gains tax payable (Note 4)

Accrued expenses (Note 6)

Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable participating shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

Number of redeemable participating shares in issue
(Note 7 & 18C)
Class A

Net asset value per share attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares
Class A

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust First Trust First Trust First Trust
Capital Value Line® NYSE Arca Nasdaq
Strength Dividend Index  Biotechnology  Cybersecurity
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ US$
34,833 45,644 3,239 655,830
13,856,992 21,697,067 6,602,203 458,747,552
- 1,078,932 - -
7,188 35,725 - 310,878
13,899,013 22,857,368 6,605,442 459,714,260
- (1,078,465) - -
(7,656) (13,911) (3,598) (255,029)
(7,656) (1,092,376) (3,598) (255,029)
13,891,357 21,764,992 6,601,844 459,459,231
550,002 950,002 350,002 18,425,002
US$25.26 US$22.91 US$18.86 US$24.94



First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2022 (continued)

Assets

Cash (Note 2F)

Margin cash (Note 2F)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5)

Variation margin receivable

Receivable on sale of securities

Receivable on capital shares

Accrued income and other receivables

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5)

Bank overdraft (Note 2F)

Margin cash (Note 2F)

Payable on purchase of securities

Payable on capital shares

Capital gains tax payable (Note 4)

Accrued expenses (Note 6)

Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable participating shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

Number of redeemable participating shares in issue
(Note 7 & 18C)

Class A

Class B

Net asset value per share attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares

Class A

Class B

First Trust
First Trust First Trust First Trust Alerian
Strategic Metal  Global Capital IPOX® Disruptive
and Energy Strength  Europe Equity Technology
Equity ESG Leaders  Opportunities Real Estate
UCITS Fund UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF!
US$ US$ € US$
341,708 807,690 7,928 9,965
10,394,861 31,660,867 1,518,193 2,775,529
- - - 127
54,197 - _ _
6,375 17,247 - 9,774
4,636 — — —
10,801,777 32,485,804 1,526,121 2,795,395
- (642,441) - -
(30,686) (19,184) 917) (1,548)
(30,686) (661,625) 917) (1,548)
10,771,091 31,824,179 1,525,204 2,793,847
136,074 1,000,002 100,002 90,784
- - - 59,232
US$79.16 US$31.82 €15.25 US$18.70
- - - US$18.50

! First Trust Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate UCITS ETF was launched on 31 March 2022.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2022 (continued)

First Trust
Nasdaq®
Clean Edge®
Smart Grid
Infrastructure
UCITS ETF? Total
US$ €
Assets
Cash (Note 2F) 1,690 4,424,036
Margin cash (Note 2F) - 113,508
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5) 1,463,444 1,426,924,842
Variation margin receivable - 4,362
Receivable on sale of securities - 1,617,433
Receivable on capital shares - 313,538
Accrued income and other receivables 2,421 1,702,138
Other assets — 4,344
Total assets 1,467,555 1,435,104,201
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5) - (130,601)
Bank overdraft (Note 2F) - (360,057)
Margin cash (Note 2F) - (102,503)
Payable on purchase of securities - (1,618,649)
Payable on capital shares - (721,831)
Capital gains tax payable (Note 4) - (4,148)
Accrued expenses (Note 6) (754) (822,567)
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable participating shares) (754) (3,760,356)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares 1,466,801 1,431,343,845
Number of redeemable participating shares in issue
(Note 7 & 18C)
Class A 50,002
Net asset value per share attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares
Class A US$29.33
On behalf of the Board:
e <5 RO O20n >
Bronwyn Wright Michael Boyce

Date: 25 April 2023

2 First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Smart Grid Infrastructure UCITS ETF was launched on 21 April 2022.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2021

Assets

Cash (Note 2F)

Margin cash (Note 2F)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5)

Receivable on sale of securities

Accrued income and other receivables

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5)

Bank overdraft (Note 2F)

Margin cash (Note 2F)

Variation margin payable

Payable on purchase of securities

Payable on capital shares

Capital gains tax payable (Note 4)

Accrued expenses (Note 6)

Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable participating shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

Number of redeemable participating shares in issue
(Note 7 & 18C)

Class A

Class B

Net asset value per share attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares

Class A

Class B

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust First Trust First Trust

US Large Emerging United First Trust
Cap Core Markets Kingdom Eurozone
AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ £ €

72,346 351,885 38,164 198,331

110,149,502 26,895,465 21,217,113 145,592,915

- 5,900 - -

84,100 32,005 92,739 -

110,305,948 27,285,255 21,348,016 145,791,246

— (11) - -

- (91,434) - -

(60,423) (18,166) (11,554) (81,020)

(60,423) (109,611) (11,554) (81,020)

110,245,525 27,175,644 21,336,462 145,710,226

875,002 800,002 485,002 3,080,002

675,002 - 315,002 670,002

US$73.41 US$33.97 £28.97 €38.81

US$68.16 - £23.14 €39.06



First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2021 (continued)

First Trust First Trust First Trust First Trust
Indxx US Equity  Global Equity Germany
NextG  Opportunities Income AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF! UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ €
Assets
Cash (Note 2F) 180,840 42,302 74,822 3,163
Margin cash (Note 2F) - - - -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5) 9,778,030 15,859,048 18,258,392 15,386,328
Receivable on sale of securities - - 491,713 -
Accrued income and other receivables 15,708 1,475 27,219 -
Other assets - - - -
Total assets 9,974,578 15,902,825 18,852,146 15,389,491
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5) - - - -
Bank overdraft (Note 2F) 47) - (22,171) -
Margin cash (Note 2F) - - - -
Variation margin payable - - - -
Payable on purchase of securities 47,097) - (455,201) -
Payable on capital shares - - - -
Capital gains tax payable (Note 4) (21,095) - (5,421) -
Accrued expenses (Note 6) (6,313) (8,658) (9,210) (6,905)
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable participating shares) (74,552) (8,658) (492,003) (6,905)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares 9,900,026 15,894,167 18,360,143 15,382,586
Number of redeemable participating shares in issue
(Note 7 & 18C)
Class A 350,002 350,002 45,002 500,002
Class B - - 355,002 -
Net asset value per share attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares
Class A US$28.29 US$45.41 US$55.07 €30.77
Class B - - US$44.74 -

! First Trust Japan AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF and its functional currency

changed from Japanese Yen to US Dollar on 1 February 2021.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2021 (continued)

Assets

Cash (Note 2F)

Margin cash (Note 2F)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5)

Receivable on sale of securities

Accrued income and other receivables

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5)

Bank overdraft (Note 2F)

Margin cash (Note 2F)

Variation margin payable

Payable on purchase of securities

Payable on capital shares

Capital gains tax payable (Note 4)

Accrued expenses (Note 6)

Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable participating shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

Number of redeemable participating shares in issue
(Note 7 & 18C)

Class A

Class B

Class B GBP (Hedged)

Class C EUR (Hedged)

Net asset value per share attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares

Class A

Class B

Class B GBP (Hedged)

Class C EUR (Hedged)

First Trust First Trust
First Trust Dow Jones Nasdaq®

US Equity International Clean Edge® First Trust
Income Internet  Green Energy FactorFX
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF? UCITS ETF? UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ US$

423,171 9,272 9,066 579,510

121,454,462 6,982,914 26,205,716 6,775,843

- - - 309,632

252,860 859 9,456 34,451

122,130,493 6,993,045 26,224,238 7,699,436

- - - (226,756)

- - - (1,436)

_ _ - (312,159)

(229,190) - - -

(54,760) (3,769) (13,577) (4,545)

(283,950) 3,769) (13,577) (544,896)

121,846,543 6,989,276 26,210,661 7,154,540

2,800,002 300,002 1,000,002 115,002

1,000,002 - - -

- - - 25,002

- - - 210,002

US$31.67 US$23.30 US$26.21 US$20.28

US$33.18 - - -

- - - £15.68

- - - €17.97

2 First Trust Switzerland AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF and its

functional currency changed from Swiss Franc to US Dollar on 1 February 2021.

3 First Trust US Small Cap Core AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy UCITS

ETF on 1 February 2021.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2021 (continued)

Assets

Cash (Note 2F)

Margin cash (Note 2F)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5)

Receivable on sale of securities

Accrued income and other receivables

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5)

Bank overdraft (Note 2F)

Margin cash (Note 2F)

Variation margin payable

Payable on purchase of securities

Payable on capital shares

Capital gains tax payable (Note 4)

Accrued expenses (Note 6)

Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable participating shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

Number of redeemable participating shares in issue
(Note 7 & 18C)

Class A

Class B GBP (Hedged)

Class C

Net asset value per share attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares

Class A

Class B GBP (Hedged)

Class C

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust First Trust
Indxx Low Duration
Innovative First Trust First Trust Global
Transaction & Dow Jones Cloud Government
Process Internet Computing Bond
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ €

907,068 19,989 - 753,311

- - - 176,806

151,027,955 45,428,289 600,842,186 19,455,903

37,456 - 69,873 184,481

151,972,479 45,448,278 600,912,059 20,570,501

_ _ - (136,343)

- - (73,107) (498)

- - - (128,742)

- - - (1,634)

(23,347) - - _

(77,021) (20,483) (299,522) (7,778)

(100,368) (20,483) (372,629) (274,995)

151,872,111 45,427,795 600,539,430 20,295,506

4,700,002 1,450,002 13,700,002 -

- - - 50,002

- - - 1,050,002

US$32.31 US$31.33 US$43.84 -

- - - £14.97

- - - €18.48



First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2021 (continued)

Assets

Cash (Note 2F)

Margin cash (Note 2F)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5)

Receivable on sale of securities

Accrued income and other receivables

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5)

Bank overdraft (Note 2F)

Margin cash (Note 2F)

Variation margin payable

Payable on purchase of securities

Payable on capital shares

Capital gains tax payable (Note 4)

Accrued expenses (Note 6)

Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable participating shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

Number of redeemable participating shares in issue
(Note 7 & 18C)
Class A

Net asset value per share attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares
Class A

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust First Trust First Trust First Trust
Capital Value Line® NYSE Arca Nasdaq
Strength Dividend Index  Biotechnology = Cybersecurity
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ US$
29,660 57,091 12,756 3,837,041
12,669,673 16,933,372 15,826,837 339,720,698
- - - 88,829
9,117 23,175 - 179,669
12,708,450 17,013,638 15,839,593 343,826,237
- - - (67)
_ _ - (3,555,328)
(6,249) (9,786) (7,026) (162,151)
(6,249) (9,786) (7,026) (3,717,546)
12,702,201 17,003,852 15,832,567 340,108,691
450,002 700,002 800,002 10,000,002
US$28.23 US$24.29 US$19.79 US$34.01



First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2021 (continued)

Assets

Cash (Note 2F)

Margin cash (Note 2F)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5)

Receivable on sale of securities

Accrued income and other receivables

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 5)

Bank overdraft (Note 2F)

Margin cash (Note 2F)

Variation margin payable

Payable on purchase of securities

Payable on capital shares

Capital gains tax payable (Note 4)

Accrued expenses (Note 6)

Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable participating shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

Number of redeemable participating shares in issue
(Note 7 & 18C)
Class A

Net asset value per share attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares
Class A

First Trust First Trust First Trust
Strategic Metal  Global Capital IPOX®
and Energy Strength  Europe Equity
Equity ESG Leaders  Opportunities
UCITS Fund* UCITS ETF? UCITS ETF*¢ Total
US$ US$ € €
17,932 17,396 7,565 6,848,668
- - - 176,806
1,210,011 5,556,937 2,213,921 1,554,726,751
- - - 787,972
713 3,379 202 982,373
6,441 - - 5,664
1,235,097 5,577,712 2,221,688 1,563,528,234
_ — - (335,743)
_ (19) - (85,671)
- - - (128,742)
- - - (1,634)
- - - (3,842,617)
- - - (201,541)
- (14,893) - (137,348)
(14,819) (3,144) (1,201) (796,234)
(14,819) (18,056) (1,201) (5,529,530)
1,220,278 5,559,656 2,220,487 1,557,998,704
20,232 150,002 100,002
US$60.32 US$37.06 €22.20

4 First Trust Strategic Metal and Energy Equity UCITS Fund was launched on 8 February 2021.
3 First Trust Global Capital Strength ESG Leaders UCITS ETF was launched on 9 March 2021.
6 First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF was launched on 21 June 2021.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

Income

Income from investments at fair value through

profit or loss (Note 2C & 2D)

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (Note 3)

Total investment income/(expense)

Expenses

Management fees (Note 9B, 9C & 9D)
Administration fees (Note 9A)
Depositary fees (Note 9F)

Directors’ fees (Note 10)

Audit fees (Note 9H)

Professional fees

Other expenses

Total expenses

Less : Expenses above cap (Note 9G)

Net expenses

Finance Costs

Bank interest expense
Distributions (Note 2H)
Total Finance Costs

Capital gains tax (Note 4)
Withholding tax (Note 2C & 4)

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

First Trust First Trust First Trust
US Large Emerging United First Trust
Cap Core Markets Kingdom Eurozone
AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ £ €
2,139,502 1,588,859 803,962 4,431,803
(14,685,845) (5,201,571) (3,837,658) (23,923,391)
(12,546,343) (3,612,712) (3,033,696) (19,491,588)
(634,905) (180,760) (124,205) (747,390)
(634,905) (180,760) (124,205) (747,390)
(634,905) (180,760) (124,205) (747,390)
(313) (2,632) (23) (2,366)
(478,529) - (203,692) (410,587)
(478,842) (2,632) (203,715) (412,953)
- 50,401 - -
(289,595) (186,518) (8,624) (667,269)
(13,949,685) (3,932,221) (3,370,240) (21,319,200)

There are no recognised gains or losses in the financial year other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Income

Income from investments at fair value through

profit or loss (Note 2C & 2D)

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (Note 3)

Total investment income/(expense)

Expenses

Management fees (Note 9B, 9C & 9D)
Administration fees (Note 9A)
Depositary fees (Note 9F)

Directors’ fees (Note 10)

Audit fees (Note 9H)

Professional fees

Other expenses

Total expenses

Less : Expenses above cap (Note 9G)
Net expenses

Finance Costs

Bank interest expense
Distributions (Note 2H)
Total Finance Costs

Capital gains tax (Note 4)
Withholding tax (Note 2C & 4)

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust

Indxx US Equity Global Equity Germany
NextG Opportunities Income AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ €
221,696 134,551 1,133,331 548,978
(2,642,007) (5,671,994) (2,328,173) (5,154,631)
(2,420,311) (5,537,443) (1,194,842) (4,605,653)
(58,548) (75,102) (102,913) (78,541)
(58,548) (75,102) (102,913) (78,541)
(58,548) (75,102) (102,913) (78,541)
(289) - (319) (662)
- - (816,454) (376,696)
(289) - (816,773) (377,358)
15,048 - 2,360 -
(34,870) (19,995) (113,855) (70,385)
(2,498,970) (5,632,540) (2,226,023) (5,131,937)

There are no recognised gains or losses in the financial year other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Income

Income from investments at fair value through

profit or loss (Note 2C & 2D)

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (Note 3)

Total investment income/(expense)

Expenses

Management fees (Note 9B, 9C & 9D)
Administration fees (Note 9A)
Depositary fees (Note 9F)

Directors’ fees (Note 10)

Audit fees (Note 9H)

Professional fees

Other expenses

Total expenses

Less : Expenses above cap (Note 9G)
Net expenses

Finance Costs

Bank interest expense
Distributions (Note 2H)
Total Finance Costs

Capital gains tax (Note 4)
Withholding tax (Note 2C & 4)

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust Dow Jones Nasdaq®
US Equity International Clean Edge® First Trust
Income Internet Green Energy FactorFX
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ US$
9,295,309 19,938 199,700 64,376
(18,937,598) (2,992,150) (11,458,812) (649,054)
(9,642,289) (2,972,212) (11,259,112) (584,678)
(1,141,104) (35,288) (197,010) (41,133)
(1,141,104) (35,288) (197,010) (41,133)
(1,141,104) (35,288) (197,010) (41,133)
(269) (103) (61) (24)
(6,374,612) - - _
(6,374,881) (103) (61) 24)
(1,249,736) (776) (32,572) 462
(18,408,010) (3,008,379) (11,488,755) (625,373)

There are no recognised gains or losses in the financial year other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Income

Income from investments at fair value through

profit or loss (Note 2C & 2D)

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (Note 3)

Total investment income/(expense)

Expenses

Management fees (Note 9B, 9C & 9D)
Administration fees (Note 9A)
Depositary fees (Note 9F)

Directors’ fees (Note 10)

Audit fees (Note 9H)

Professional fees

Other expenses

Total expenses

Less : Expenses above cap (Note 9G)
Net expenses

Finance Costs

Bank interest expense
Distributions (Note 2H)
Total Finance Costs

Capital gains tax (Note 4)
Withholding tax (Note 2C & 4)

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

First Trust

First Trust

Indxx Low Duration
Innovative First Trust First Trust Global
Transaction & Dow Jones Cloud Government
Process Internet Computing Bond
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ €
4,163,288 81,791 2,393,816 258,695
(34,889,876) (21,813,701) (228,643,303) (1,821,623)
(30,726,588) (21,731,910) (226,249,487) (1,562,928)
(837,339) (186,070) (2,059,375) (78.,455)
(837,339) (186,070) (2,059,375) (78,455)
(837,339) (186,070) (2,059,375) (78,455)
451) 29) (370) (6,565)
_ - - (162,443)
(451) (29) (370) (169,008)
22,488 - - -
(585,311) (12,269) (7,219) (7,259)
(32,127,201) (21,930,278) (228,316,451) (1,817,650)

There are no recognised gains or losses in the financial year other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Income

Income from investments at fair value through

profit or loss (Note 2C & 2D)

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (Note 3)

Total investment income/(expense)

Expenses

Management fees (Note 9B, 9C & 9D)
Administration fees (Note 9A)
Depositary fees (Note 9F)

Directors’ fees (Note 10)

Audit fees (Note 9H)

Professional fees

Other expenses

Total expenses

Less : Expenses above cap (Note 9G)
Net expenses

Finance Costs

Bank interest expense
Distributions (Note 2H)
Total Finance Costs

Capital gains tax (Note 4)
Withholding tax (Note 2C & 4)

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust

Capital Value Line® NYSE Arca Nasdaq
Strength  Dividend Index Biotechnology Cybersecurity
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ US$
216,587 505,571 27,449 3,875,442
(1,389,393) (1,101,716) (1,426,354) (145,047,505)
(1,172,806) (596,145) (1,398,905) (141,172,063)
(72,301) (124,799) (54,675) (2,661,989)
(72,301) (124,799) (54,675) (2,661,989)
(72,301) (124,799) (54,675) (2,661,989)
1) - 179) (5,608)
(€)) - 179) (5,608)
(31,086) (77,266) 4,714) (456,575)
(1,276,194) (798,210) (1,458,473) (144,296,235)

There are no recognised gains or losses in the financial year other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Income

Income from investments at fair value through

profit or loss (Note 2C & 2D)

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (Note 3)

Total investment income/(expense)

Expenses

Management fees (Note 9B, 9C & 9D)
Administration fees (Note 9A)
Depositary fees (Note 9F)

Directors’ fees (Note 10)

Audit fees (Note 9H)

Professional fees

Other expenses

Total expenses

Less : Expenses above cap (Note 9G)
Net expenses

Finance Costs

Bank interest expense
Distributions (Note 2H)
Total Finance Costs

Capital gains tax (Note 4)
Withholding tax (Note 2C & 4)

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

First Trust

First Trust First Trust First Trust Alerian
Strategic Metal ~ Global Capital IPOX® Disruptive
and Energy Strength  Europe Equity Technology
Equity ESG Leaders Opportunities Real Estate
UCITS Fund UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF!
US$ US$ € US$
367,471 493,536 46,089 57,339
2,462,748 (2,289,104) (819,149) (814,782)
2,830,219 (1,795,568) (773,060) (757,443)
(62,243) (142,552) (12,602) (11,532)
(12,799) - - _
(35,590) - - -
(199) - - -
(10,883) - - —
(4,558) - - _
(12,325) - - -
(138,597) (142,552) (12,602) (11,532)
60,853 - - -
(77,744) (142,552) (12,602) (11,532)
2) (930) (56) (112)
_ _ - (12,408)
(2) (930) (56) (12,520)
- 14,893 - -
(94,556) (85,370) (8,065) (8,363)
2,657,917 (2,009,527) (793,783) (789,858)

! First Trust Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate UCITS ETF was launched on 31 March 2022.

There are no recognised gains or losses in the financial year other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

First Trust

Nasdaq®
Clean Edge®
Smart Grid
Infrastructure
UCITS ETF? Total
US$ €
Income
Income from investments at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 2C & 2D) 17,935 31,860,428
Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (Note 3) (41,372) (510,507,371)
Total investment income/(expense) (23,437) (478,646,943)
Expenses
Management fees (Note 9B, 9C & 9D) (6,734) (9,309,632)
Administration fees (Note 9A) - (12,151)
Depositary fees (Note 9F) - (33,789)
Directors’ fees (Note 10) - (189)
Audit fees (Note 9H) - (10,332)
Professional fees - 4,327)
Other expenses - (11,701)
Total expenses (6,734) (9,382,121)
Less : Expenses above cap (Note 9G) - 57,773
Net expenses (6,734) (9,324,348)
Finance Costs
Bank interest expense 2) (20,780)
Distributions (Note 2H) - (8,481,879)
Total Finance Costs 2) (8,502,659)
Capital gains tax (Note 4) - 99,865
Withholding tax (Note 2C & 4) (3,086) (3,889,887)
Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations (33,259) (500,263,972)

2 First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Smart Grid Infrastructure UCITS ETF was launched on 21 April 2022.

There are no recognised gains or losses in the financial year other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Income

Income from investments at fair value through

profit or loss (Note 2C & 2D)

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (Note 3)

Total investment income/(expense)

Expenses

Management fees (Note 9B, 9C & 9D)
Administration fees (Note 9A)
Depositary fees (Note 9F)

Directors’ fees (Note 10)

Audit fees (Note 9H)

Professional fees

Other expenses

Total expenses

Less : Expenses above cap (Note 9G)
Net expenses

Finance Costs

Bank interest expense
Distributions (Note 2H)
Total Finance Costs

Capital gains tax (Note 4)
Withholding tax (Note 2C & 4)

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

First Trust First Trust First Trust
US Large Emerging United First Trust
Cap Core Markets Kingdom Eurozone
AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ £ €
1,634,765 1,422,048 736,042 4,944,772
22,337,576 2,011,792 2,354,260 25,079,736
23,972,341 3,433,840 3,090,302 30,024,508
(654,692) (246,636) (112,918) (994,873)
(654,692) (246,636) (112,918) (994,873)
(654,692) (246,636) (112,918) (994,873)
2) (2,394) (719) (3,291)
(306,113) - (107,643) (498,482)
(306,115) (2,394) (108,362) (501,773)
- 74,121 - -
(223,560) (147,554) (6,572) (874,818)
22,787,974 3,111,377 2,862,450 27,653,044

There are no recognised gains or losses in the financial year other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Income

Income from investments at fair value through

profit or loss (Note 2C & 2D)

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (Note 3)

Total investment income/(expense)

Expenses

Management fees (Note 9B, 9C & 9D)
Administration fees (Note 9A)
Depositary fees (Note 9F)

Directors’ fees (Note 10)

Audit fees (Note 9H)

Professional fees

Other expenses

Total expenses

Less : Expenses above cap (Note 9G)
Net expenses

Finance Costs
Bank interest expense
Distributions (Note 2H)

Total Finance Costs

Capital gains tax (Note 4)
Withholding tax (Note 2C & 4)

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust

Indxx US Equity Global Equity Germany
NextG Opportunities Income AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF! UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ €
175,332 101,188 1,080,578 52,041
1,169,404 297,185 1,241,878 227,164
1,344,736 398,373 2,322,456 279,205
(45,422) (107,044) (125,897) (24,992)
(45,422) (107,044) (125,897) (24,992)
(45,422) (107,044) (125,897) (24,992)
(424) - (127) 5)
- - (687,786) (31,841)
(424) - (687,913) (31,846)
21,095 - 5,052 -
(28,075) (14,684) (112,334) (6,361)
1,291,910 276,645 1,401,364 216,006

! First Trust Japan AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF and its functional currency changed

from Japanese Yen to US Dollar on 1 February 2021.

There are no recognised gains or losses in the financial year other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Income

Income from investments at fair value through

profit or loss (Note 2C & 2D)

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (Note 3)

Total investment income/(expense)

Expenses

Management fees (Note 9B, 9C & 9D)
Administration fees (Note 9A)
Depositary fees (Note 9F)

Directors’ fees (Note 10)

Audit fees (Note 9H)

Professional fees

Other expenses

Total expenses

Less : Expenses above cap (Note 9G)
Net expenses

Finance Costs
Bank interest expense
Distributions (Note 2H)

Total Finance Costs

Capital gains tax (Note 4)
Withholding tax (Note 2C & 4)

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust Dow Jones Nasdaq®
US Equity International Clean Edge® First Trust
Income Internet Green Energy FactorFX
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF? UCITS ETF? UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ US$
4,267,983 4,676 84,386 11,944
22,593,883 (1,351,892) (279,860) (600,830)
26,861,866 (1,347,216) (195,474) (588,886)
(657,457) (29,085) (101,576) (61,828)
(657,457) (29,085) (101,576) (61,828)
(657,457) (29,085) (101,576) (61,828)
(18) (48) (1) (414)
(2,280,606) - — _
(2,280,624) (48) @ (414)
(613,211) (339) (12,997) 1,458
23,310,574 (1,376,688) (310,048) (649,670)

2 First Trust Switzerland AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF and its
functional currency changed from Swiss Franc to US Dollar on 1 February 2021.
3 First Trust US Small Cap Core AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy UCITS

ETF on 1 February 2021.

There are no recognised gains or losses in the financial year other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Income

Income from investments at fair value through

profit or loss (Note 2C & 2D)

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (Note 3)

Total investment income/(expense)

Expenses

Management fees (Note 9B, 9C & 9D)
Administration fees (Note 9A)
Depositary fees (Note 9F)

Directors’ fees (Note 10)

Audit fees (Note 9H)

Professional fees

Other expenses

Total expenses

Less : Expenses above cap (Note 9G)
Net expenses

Finance Costs
Bank interest expense
Distributions (Note 2H)

Total Finance Costs

Capital gains tax (Note 4)
Withholding tax (Note 2C & 4)

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

First Trust First Trust
Indxx Low Duration
Innovative First Trust First Trust Global
Transaction & Dow Jones Cloud Government
Process Internet Computing Bond
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ €
2,930,665 81,524 8,170,370 434,781
11,611,831 1,236,910 53,791,371 (1,988,508)
14,542,496 1,318,434 61,961,741 (1,553,727)
(688,615) (229,418) (3,715,105) (114,169)
(688,615) (229,418) (3,715,105) (114,169)
(688,615) (229,418) (3,715,105) (114,169)
(521) (218) - (4,502)
- - - (289,865)
(521) (218) - (294,367)
43,783 - - _
(463,090) (12,229) (1,248,052) (28,871)
13,434,053 1,076,569 56,998,584 (1,991,134)

There are no recognised gains or losses in the financial year other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Income

Income from investments at fair value through

profit or loss (Note 2C & 2D)

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (Note 3)

Total investment income/(expense)

Expenses

Management fees (Note 9B, 9C & 9D)
Administration fees (Note 9A)
Depositary fees (Note 9F)

Directors’ fees (Note 10)

Audit fees (Note 9H)

Professional fees

Other expenses

Total expenses

Less : Expenses above cap (Note 9G)
Net expenses

Finance Costs
Bank interest expense
Distributions (Note 2H)

Total Finance Costs

Capital gains tax (Note 4)
Withholding tax (Note 2C & 4)

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

First Trust First Trust First Trust First Trust
Capital Value Line® NYSE Arca Nasdaq
Strength  Dividend Index Biotechnology Cybersecurity
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ US$
177,783 271,638 47,698 2,834,555
2,200,220 2,254,870 (727,972) 39,758,095
2,378,003 2,526,508 (680,274) 42,592,650
(60,454) (71,781) (84,876) (1,193,770)
(60,454) (71,781) (84,876) (1,193,770)
(60,454) (71,781) (84,876) (1,193,770)
(1) - (234) (620)
@ - (234) (620)
(25,335) (42,188) (7,882) (395,428)
2,292,213 2,412,539 (773,266) 41,002,832

There are no recognised gains or losses in the financial year other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Income

Income from investments at fair value through

profit or loss (Note 2C & 2D)

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (Note 3)

Total investment income/(expense)

Expenses

Management fees (Note 9B, 9C & 9D)
Administration fees (Note 9A)
Depositary fees (Note 9F)

Directors’ fees (Note 10)

Audit fees (Note 9H)

Professional fees

Other expenses

Total expenses

Less : Expenses above cap (Note 9G)
Net expenses

Finance Costs
Bank interest expense
Distributions (Note 2H)

Total Finance Costs

Capital gains tax (Note 4)
Withholding tax (Note 2C & 4)

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

First Trust First Trust First Trust
Strategic Metal  Global Capital IPOX®
and Energy Strength  Europe Equity
Equity ESG Leaders Opportunities
UCITS Fund* UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF*¢ Total
US$ US$ € €
28,064 194,044 9,007 26,187,968
181,478 (149,545) 219,676 159,542,072
209,542 44,499 228,683 185,730,040
(5,028) (61,024) (7,435) (8,156,895)
(6,466) - - (5,484)
(24,357) - - (20,658)
(151) - - (128)
(6,502) - - (5,514)
(1,839) - - (1,560)
(8,221) - - (6,972)
(52,564) (61,024) (7,435) (8,197,211)
46,279 - - 39,250
(6,285) (61,024) (7,435) (8,157,961)
(48) (1,440) 2) (14,143)
- - - (3,714,723)
(48) (1,440) 2) (3,728,866)
- 14,939 - 134,505
(7,346) (31,678) (799) (3,780,922)
195,863 (34,704) 220,447 170,196,796

4 First Trust Strategic Metal and Energy Equity UCITS Fund was launched on 8 February 2021.
3 First Trust Global Capital Strength ESG Leaders UCITS ETF was launched on 9 March 2021.
6 First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF was launched on 21 June 2021.

There are no recognised gains or losses in the financial year other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at
beginning of financial year

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

Capital Transactions:

Issuance of redeemable participating shares

Redemption of redeemable participating
shares

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets from
capital share transactions

Currency Adjustment (Note 2I)

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at end
of financial year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust First Trust First Trust
US Large Emerging United First Trust
Cap Core Markets Kingdom Eurozone
AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ £ €
110,245,525 27,175,644 21,336,462 145,710,226
(13,949,685) (3,932,221) (3,370,240) (21,319,200)
11,794,023 1,291,350 4,470,047 14,515,888
(19,858,385) (4,161,600) (4,850,598) (46,276,675)
(8,064,362) (2,870,250) (380,551) (31,760,787)
88,231,478 20,373,173 17,585,671 92,630,239
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at
beginning of financial year

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

Capital Transactions:

Issuance of redeemable participating shares

Redemption of redeemable participating
shares

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets from
capital share transactions

Currency Adjustment (Note 2I)

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at end
of financial year

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust

Indxx US Equity Global Equity Germany
NextG Opportunities Income AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ €
9,900,026 15,894,167 18,360,143 15,382,586
(2,498,970) (5,632,540) (2,226,023) (5,131,937)
1,336,000 3,499,750 1,983,887 1,514,750
(1,250,300) (4,968,550) (1,983,954) (5,146,550)
85,700 (1,468,800) (67) (3,631,800)
7,486,756 8,792,827 16,134,053 6,618,849

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

First Trust Global Funds plc Annual Report

54



First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at
beginning of financial year

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

Capital Transactions:

Issuance of redeemable participating shares

Redemption of redeemable participating
shares

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets from
capital share transactions

Currency Adjustment (Note 2I)

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at end
of financial year

First Trust First Trust

First Trust Dow Jones Nasdaq®
US Equity International Clean Edge® First Trust
Income Internet Green Energy FactorFX
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ US$
121,846,543 6,989,276 26,210,661 7,154,540
(18,408,010) (3,008,379) (11,488,755) (625,373)
181,749,255 2,996,100 60,647,600 578,581
(17,234,177) (2,323,750) (51,741,500) (4,749,363)
164,515,078 672,350 8,906,100 (4,170,782)
267,953,611 4,653,247 23,628,006 2,358,385

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at
beginning of financial year

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

Capital Transactions:

Issuance of redeemable participating shares

Redemption of redeemable participating
shares

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets from
capital share transactions

Currency Adjustment (Note 2I)

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at end
of financial year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust First Trust
Indxx Low Duration
Innovative First Trust First Trust Global
Transaction & Dow Jones Cloud Government
Process Internet Computing Bond
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ €
151,872,111 45,427,795 600,539,430 20,295,506
(32,127,201) (21,930,278) (228,316,451) (1,817,650)
37,471,100 32,528,150 97,821,800 1,628,675
(53,282,050) (20,197,850) (214,243,200) (5,909,982)
(15,810,950) 12,330,300 (116,421,400) (4,281,307)
103,933,960 35,827,817 255,801,579 14,196,549
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF

REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

First Trust First Trust First Trust First Trust
Capital Value Line® NYSE Arca Nasdaq
Strength  Dividend Index Biotechnology Cybersecurity
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ US$
Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at
beginning of financial year 12,702,201 17,003,852 15,832,567 340,108,691
Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations (1,276,194) (798,210) (1,458,473) (144,296,235)
Capital Transactions:
Issuance of redeemable participating shares 4,990,850 7,855,150 5,117,300 353,588,925
Redemption of redeemable participating
shares (2,525,500) (2,295,800) (12,889,550) (89,942,150)
Net increase/(decrease) in net assets from
capital share transactions 2,465,350 5,559,350 (7,772,250) 263,646,775
Currency Adjustment (Note 2I) - — — —
Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at end
of financial year 13,891,357 21,764,992 6,601,844 459,459,231

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at
beginning of financial year

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

Capital Transactions:

Issuance of redeemable participating shares

Redemption of redeemable participating
shares

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets from
capital share transactions

Currency Adjustment (Note 2I)

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at end
of financial year

First Trust

First Trust First Trust First Trust Alerian
Strategic Metal Global Capital IPOX® Disruptive
and Energy Strength Europe Equity Technology
Equity ESG Leaders Opportunities Real Estate
UCITS Fund UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF!
US$ US$ € US$
1,220,278 5,559,656 2,220,487 -
2,657,917 (2,009,527) (793,783) (789,858)
17,729,332 29,779,500 898,900 3,786,630
(10,836,436) (1,505,450) (800,400) (202,925)
6,892,896 28,274,050 98,500 3,583,705
10,771,091 31,824,179 1,525,204 2,793,847

! First Trust Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate UCITS ETF was launched on 31 March 2022.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

First Trust
Nasdaq®
Clean Edge®
Smart Grid
Infrastructure
UCITS ETF? Total
US$ €
Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at
beginning of financial year - 1,557,998,704
Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations (33,259) (500,263,972)
Capital Transactions:
Issuance of redeemable participating shares 1,500,060 838,519,937
Redemption of redeemable participating
shares — (553,885,346)
Net increase/(decrease) in net assets from
capital share transactions 1,500,060 284,634,591
Currency Adjustment (Note 2I) - 88,974,522
Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at end
of financial year 1,466,801 1,431,343,845

2 First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Smart Grid Infrastructure UCITS ETF was launched on 21 April 2022.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at
beginning of financial year

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

Capital Transactions:

Issuance of redeemable participating shares

Redemption of redeemable participating
shares

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets from
capital share transactions

Currency Adjustment (Note 2I)

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at end
of financial year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust First Trust First Trust
US Large Emerging United First Trust
Cap Core Markets Kingdom Eurozone
AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ £ €
90,161,751 39,446,517 13,952,462 130,323,482
22,787,974 3,111,377 2,862,450 27,653,044
10,245,650 - 12,820,650 10,469,050
(12,949,850) (15,382,250) (8,299,100) (22,735,350)
(2,704,200) (15,382,250) 4,521,550 (12,266,300)
110,245,525 27,175,644 21,336,462 145,710,226
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF

REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

First Trust First Trust First Trust First Trust
Indxx US Equity Global Equity Germany
NextG Opportunities Income AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF! UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ €
Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at
beginning of financial year 1,214,866 13,176,122 21,581,679 2,736,180
Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations 1,291,910 276,645 1,401,364 216,006
Capital Transactions:
Issuance of redeemable participating shares 8,783,100 9,412,550 - 12,430,400
Redemption of redeemable participating
shares (1,389,850) (6,971,150) (4,622,900) -
Net increase/(decrease) in net assets from
capital share transactions 7,393,250 2,441,400 (4,622,900) 12,430,400
Currency Adjustment (Note 2I) - — — —
Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at end
of financial year 9,900,026 15,894,167 18,360,143 15,382,586

! First Trust Japan AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF and its functional currency

changed from Japanese Yen to US Dollar on 1 February 2021.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at
beginning of financial year

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

Capital Transactions:

Issuance of redeemable participating shares

Redemption of redeemable participating
shares

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets from
capital share transactions

Currency Adjustment (Note 2I)

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at end
of financial year

First Trust First Trust

First Trust Dow Jones Nasdaq®
US Equity International Clean Edge® First Trust
Income Internet Green Energy FactorFX
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF? UCITS ETF? UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ US$
65,510,119 1,551,214 1,467,109 8,889,177
23,310,574 (1,376,688) (310,048) (649,670)
94,864,850 8,174,500 46,454,950 219,728
(61,839,000) (1,359,750) (21,401,350) (1,304,695)
33,025,850 6,814,750 25,053,600 (1,084,967)
121,846,543 6,989,276 26,210,661 7,154,540

2 First Trust Switzerland AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF and its
functional currency changed from Swiss Franc to US Dollar on 1 February 2021.
3 First Trust US Small Cap Core AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy UCITS

ETF on 1 February 2021.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at
beginning of financial year

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

Capital Transactions:

Issuance of redeemable participating shares

Redemption of redeemable participating
shares

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets from
capital share transactions

Currency Adjustment (Note 2I)

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at end
of financial year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust First Trust
Indxx Low Duration
Innovative First Trust First Trust Global
Transaction & Dow Jones Cloud Government
Process Internet Computing Bond
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ €
55,088,408 30,937,126 520,882,046 27,881,399
13,434,053 1,076,569 56,998,584 (1,991,134)
147,642,200 26,252,650 209,128,900 959,900
(64,292,550) (12,838,550) (186,470,100) (6,554,659)
83,349,650 13,414,100 22,658,800 (5,594,759)
151,872,111 45,427,795 600,539,430 20,295,506

63



First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at
beginning of financial year

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

Capital Transactions:

Issuance of redeemable participating shares

Redemption of redeemable participating
shares

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets from
capital share transactions

Currency Adjustment (Note 2I)

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at end
of financial year

First Trust First Trust First Trust First Trust
Capital Value Line® NYSE Arca Nasdaq
Strength  Dividend Index Biotechnology Cybersecurity
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ US$
6,710,688 7,812,968 11,304,183 62,672,059
2,292,213 2,412,539 (773,266) 41,002,832
10,865,000 6,778,345 17,457,400 269,289,950
(7,165,700) - (12,155,750) (32,856,150)
3,699,300 6,778,345 5,301,650 236,433,800
12,702,201 17,003,852 15,832,567 340,108,691

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF

REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

First Trust First Trust First Trust
Strategic Metal ~ Global Capital IPOX®
and Energy Strength Europe Equity
Equity ESG Leaders Opportunities
UCITS Fund* UCITS ETF? UCITS ETF*¢ Total
US$ US$ € €
Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at
beginning of financial year - - - 943,482,349
Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations 195,863 (34,704) 220,447 170,196,796
Capital Transactions:
Issuance of redeemable participating shares 1,780,000 38,111,260 2,000,040 806,578,593
Redemption of redeemable participating
shares (755,585) (32,516,900) - (441,744,075)
Net increase/(decrease) in net assets from
capital share transactions 1,024,415 5,594,360 2,000,040 364,834,518
Currency Adjustment (Note 2I) - - - 79,485,041
Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at end
of financial year 1,220,278 5,559,656 2,220,487 1,557,998,704

4 First Trust Strategic Metal and Energy Equity UCITS Fund was launched on 8 February 2021.
3 First Trust Global Capital Strength ESG Leaders UCITS ETF was launched on 9 March 2021.

6 First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF was launched on 21 June 2021.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Trust Global Funds plc
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

1. Organisation

First Trust Global Funds plc (the “Company”) is constituted as an open-ended investment company with variable capital in Ireland under
registration number 514357 at its registered office, Ten Earlsfort Terrace, Dublin 2 D02 T380, Ireland. The Company is structured as an
umbrella fund and comprises separate sub-funds of the Company. It has segregated liability between the sub-funds and is organised
under the laws of Ireland as a public limited company pursuant to the Companies Act 2014 (the “Companies Act”), the European
Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011, as amended (the “UCITS
Regulations”) and the Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in
Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019, (the “Central Bank UCITS Regulations”).

As at 31 December 2022, the Board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) had approved 31 sub-funds (each a “Fund” and
collectively the “Funds”), of which 25 had external investment. Six Funds that are due to be launched in the future are First Trust Asia
Pacific ex-Japan AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF, First Trust All Weather UCITS Fund, First Trust Nasdaq Artificial Intelligence and Robotics
UCITS ETF, First Trust S-Network Streaming & Gaming UCITS ETF, First Trust Indxx Metaverse UCITS ETF and First Trust Nasdaq
Lux Digital Health Solutions UCITS ETF.

Unless otherwise indicated, all share classes listed in the table below and overleaf are unhedged.

Sub-Fund Name Share Class D;,V(: gs;ld Date of Launch Exchanges
First Trust US Large Cap Core .
AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF Class A Shares Accumulating 09/04/2013
Euronext Dublin, London Stock
Exchange, Deutsche Boerse
Class B Shares Distributing - 28/05/2015
quarterly
First Trust Emerging Markets . Euronext Dublin, London Stock
AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF Class A Shares Accumulating 09/04/2013 Exchange
First Trust United Kingdom .
Class A Shares Accumulatin 09/04/2013
AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF g Euronext Dublin, London Stock
Exchange
Class B Shares Distributing - 15/04/2016
quarterly
Euronext Dublin, London Stock
First Trust Eurozone . Exchange, Euronext
AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF Class A Shares Accumulating 217102014 Amsterdam, Borsa Italiana,
Deutsche Boerse
Class B Shares Distributing - 16/08/2018 Euronext Dublin, London Stock
quarterly Exchange
First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS Class A Shares Accumulating 24/06/2015 Euronext Dublin, Londqn Stock
ETF Exchange, Borsa Italiana
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First Trust Global Funds plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

1. Organisation (continued)

Dividend

UCITS ETF

Sub-Fund Name Share Class . Date of Launch Exchanges
Policy
. . Euronext Dublin, London
First Trust US Equity . ’
Opportunities UCITS ETF Class A Shares Accumulating 14/08/2015 Stock Exch;l:llr%:, Euronext
First Tr“StCGl‘;ba] Equity Class A Shares Accumulating 28/08/2015
Income UCITS ETF Euronext Dublin, London
Stock Exchange, Euronext
e Paris
Class B Shares Distributing 20/10/2016
quarterly
First Trust Germany Distributing - Euronext Dublin,
AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF Class A Shares quarterly 01/04/2016 Deutsche Boerse
First Trust US Equity Income Distributing - Euronext Dublin, London
UCITS ETF Class A Shares quarterly 1410472016 Stock Exchange
Class B Shares Accumulating 09/05/2017 Euronext D.Ubhn’ Borsa
Italiana
First Trust Dow Jones .
International Internet UCITS Class A Shares Accumulating 17/01/2017 Euronext Dublin, Londop
ETF Stock Exchange, Borsa Italiana
First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Euronext Dublin, London
Edge® Green Energy UCITS Class A Shares Accumulating 14/03/2017 Stock Exchange, Deutsche
ETF Boerse, Euronext Amsterdam
First Trust FactorFX UCITS Class A Shares Accumulating 27/07/2017 Euronext Dublin, London
Stock Exchange
ETF
Class B Shares GBP . Euronext Dublin, London
(Hedged) Accumulating 29/11/2017 Stock Exchange
Class C Shares EUR . Euronext Dublin, Euronext
(Hedged) Accumulating 29/11/2017 Amsterdam
First Trust Indxx Innovative Euronext Dublin. London
Transaction & Process UCITS Class A Shares Accumulating 09/04/2018 ’ .
ETF Stock Exchange, Borsa Italiana
. Euronext Dublin, London
First Trust Dow Jones Internet Class A Shares Accumulating 18/06/2018 Stock Exchange, Euronext

Amsterdam
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First Trust Global Funds plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

1. Organisation (continued)

Sub-Fund Name Share Class D;,‘:gg;d Date of Launch Exchanges
Euronext Dublin, London
First Trust Cloud Computing . Stock Exchange, Euronext
UCITS ETF Class A Shares Accumulating 27/12/2018 Amsterdam, Borsa Italiana,
Deutsche Boerse
First Trust Low Duration Class (%S;a;fg GBP D‘Stlr;?it‘:rl]ng - 06/10/2020 E“r‘)‘s‘i’)‘éfgﬁﬁ;‘zmd"“
Global Government Bond & d y &
UCITS ETF istributing - i
Class C Shares Distributing 18/11/2019 Euronext Dublin, Euronext
quarterly Amsterdam
First Trust Capital Strength . Euronext Dublin, London
UCITS ETF Class A Shares Accumulating 27/01/2020 Stock Exchange
. . Euronext Dublin, London
First Trust Value Line® . ’
Dividend Index UCITS ETF Class A Shares Accumulating 12/02/2020 Stock Exclllga:riz, Deutsche
First Trust NYSE Arca . Euronext Dublin, London
Biotechnology UCITS ETF Class A Shares Accumulating 27/05/2020 Stock Exchange, Borsa Italiana
First Trust Nasd Euronext Dublin, London
st Lrustvasaaq Class A Shares Accumulating 27/05/2020 Stock Exchange, Borsa
Cybersecurity UCITS ETF .
Italiana, Deutsche Boerse
First Trust Strategic Metal and . .
Energy Equity UCITS Fund Class A Shares Accumulating 08/02/2021 Not Listed
First Trust Global Capital Euronext Dublin, London
Strength ESG Leaders UCITS Class A Shares Accumulating 09/03/2021 Stock Exchange, Euronext
ETF Amsterdam
First Trust IPOX® Europe .
Equity Opportunities UCITS Class A Shares Accumulating 21/06/2021 Euronext Dublin, Londqn
ETF Stock Exchange, Borsa Italiana
Class A Shares Accumulating 31/03/2022 Euronext Dublin, London
First Trust Alerian Disruptive Stock Excha.rllge, Deutsche
Technology Real Estate Borse
UCITS ETF* o .
Class B Shares Distributing - 31/03/2022 Euronext Dublin, London
quarterly Stock Exchange
First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Class A Shares Accumulating 21/04/2022 Euronext Dublin, London

Edge® Smart Grid
Infrastructure UCITS ETF*

Stock Exchange, Deutsche
Borse

* Please refer to Note 19 for details of significant events during the financial year.
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1. Organisation (continued)

The investment objective of First Trust US Large Cap Core AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF (the “US Large Cap ETF”) is to aim to provide
investors with a total return, taking into account capital and income returns, which reflects the return of an equity index called the
NASDAQ AlphaDEX® Large Cap Core Index (the “NLCC Index”). In order to achieve its investment objective, the investment policy of
the US Large Cap ETF is to invest at least 90% of its net assets in a portfolio of equity securities that consists of the equity securities of
the NLCC Index.

Subject to Schedule III of the Company’s prospectus, First Trust Advisors L.P. (the “Investment Manager”) may also invest in a
portfolio of assets which may comprise money market or short-term instruments such as government securities, bankers’ acceptances,
certificates of deposit, and eligible collective investment schemes which are either money market funds and/or which have a similar
investment objective and policies as that of the US Large Cap ETF. The amount which may be invested in such money market
instruments, short-term instruments and eligible collective investment schemes shall not exceed 10% of the net asset value (the “NAV”
or “Net Asset Value”) of the US Large Cap ETF.

The investment objective of First Trust Emerging Markets AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF (the “Emerging Markets ETF”) is to aim to provide
investors with a total return, taking into account capital and income returns, which reflects the return of an equity index called the
NASDAQ AlphaDEX® Emerging Markets Index (the “NEM Index”). In order to achieve its investment objective, the investment policy
of the Emerging Markets ETF is to invest at least 90% of its net assets in a portfolio of equity securities that consists of the equity
securities of the NEM Index or in depositary receipts that may include American Depositary Receipts (“ADRs”), Global Depositary
Receipts (“GDRs”) or European Depositary Receipts (“EDRs”) representing securities in the NEM Index where direct investment in a
constituent security of the NEM Index is not possible.

Subject to Schedule III of the Company’s prospectus, the Investment Manager may also invest in a portfolio of assets which may
comprise money market or short-term instruments such as government securities, bankers’ acceptances, certificates of deposit, and
eligible collective investment schemes which are either money market funds and/or which have a similar investment objective and
policies as that of the Emerging Markets ETF. The amount which may be invested in such money market instruments, short-term
instruments and eligible collective investment schemes shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of the Emerging Markets ETF.

The investment objective of First Trust United Kingdom AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF (the “UK ETF”) is to seek to provide investors with a
total return, taking into account capital and income returns, which reflects the return of an equity index called the NASDAQ AlphaDEX®
United Kingdom Index (the “UK Index”). In order to achieve its investment objective, the investment policy of the UK ETF is to invest
at least 90% of its net assets in a portfolio of equity securities that consists of the equity securities of the UK Index or in depositary
receipts that may include ADRs, GDRs or EDRs representing securities in the UK Index where direct investment in a constituent
security of the UK Index is not possible. At all times, at least 75% of the total assets of the UK ETF will be invested in the equity
securities of issuers domiciled in the United Kingdom.

Subject to Schedule III of the Company’s prospectus, the Investment Manager may also invest in a portfolio of assets which may
comprise money market or short-term instruments such as government securities, bankers’ acceptances, certificates of deposit, and
eligible collective investment schemes which are either money market funds and/or which have a similar investment objective and
policies as that of the UK ETF. The amount which may be invested in such money market instruments, short-term instruments and
eligible collective investment schemes shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of the UK ETF.

The investment objective of First Trust Eurozone AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF (the “Eurozone ETF”) is to provide investors with a total
return, taking into account capital and income returns, which reflects the return of an equity index called the NASDAQ AlphaDEX®
Eurozone Index (the “EZ Index”). In order to achieve its investment objective, the investment policy of the Eurozone ETF is to invest at
least 90% of its net assets in a portfolio of equity securities that consists of the equity securities of the EZ Index or in depositary receipts
that may include ADRs, GDRs or EDRs representing securities in the EZ Index where direct investment in a constituent security of the
EZ Index is not possible.

Subject to Schedule III of the Company’s prospectus, the Investment Manager may also invest in a portfolio of assets which may
comprise money market or short-term instruments such as government securities, bankers’ acceptances, certificates of deposit, and
eligible collective investment schemes which are either money market funds and/or which have a similar investment objective and
policies as that of the Eurozone ETF. The amount which may be invested in such money market instruments, short-term instruments and
eligible collective investment schemes shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of the Eurozone ETF.

The investment objective of First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF (the “Indxx NextG ETF”) is to provide investors with investment
results that correspond generally to the price and yield, (before the Indxx NextG ETF’s fees and expenses), of an equity index called the
Indxx 5G & NextG Thematic Index (the “Indxx NextG Index”). In order to achieve its investment objective, the investment policy of the
Indxx NextG ETF is to invest at least 90% of its net assets in a portfolio of common stocks that consists of the equity securities of the
Index NextG Index or in depositary receipts that may include ADRs, GDRs or EDRs representing securities in the Indxx NextG Index
where direct investment in a constituent security of the Indxx NextG Index is not possible.
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1. Organisation (continued)

Subject to Schedule III of the Company’s prospectus, the Investment Manager may also invest in a portfolio of assets which may
comprise money market or short-term instruments such as government securities, bankers’ acceptances, certificates of deposit, and
eligible collective investment schemes which are either money market funds and/or which have a similar investment objective and
policies as that of the Indxx NextG ETF. The amount which may be invested in such money market instruments, short-term instruments
and eligible collective investment schemes shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of the Indxx NextG ETF.

The investment objective of First Trust US Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF (the “US Equity Opportunities ETF”) is to provide
investors with investment results that correspond generally to the price and yield of an equity index called the IPOX®-100 U.S. Index
(the “IPOX®-100 Index”). In order to achieve its investment objective, the investment policy of the US Equity Opportunities ETF is to
invest at least 90% of its net assets in a portfolio of equity securities that consists of the equity securities of the IPOX®-100 Index or in
depositary receipts that may include ADRs, GDRs or EDRs representing securities in the IPOX®-100 Index where direct investment in a
constituent security of the IPOX®-100 Index is not possible.

Subject to Schedule III of the Company’s prospectus, the Investment Manager may also invest in a portfolio of assets which may
comprise money market or short-term instruments such as government securities, bankers’ acceptances, certificates of deposit, and
eligible collective investment schemes which are either money market funds and/or which have a similar investment objective and
policies as that of the US Equity Opportunities ETF. The amount which may be invested in such money market instruments, short-term
instruments and eligible collective investment schemes shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of the US Equity Opportunities ETF.

The investment objective of First Trust Global Equity Income UCITS ETF (the “Global ETF”) is to provide investors with investment
results that correspond generally to the price and yield of an equity index called the NASDAQ Global High Equity Income Index (the
“Global Index”). In order to achieve its investment objective, the investment policy of the Global ETF is to invest at least 90% of its net
assets in a portfolio of equity securities that consists of the equity securities of the Global Index or in depositary receipts that may include
ADRs, GDRs or EDRs representing securities in the Global Index where direct investment in a constituent security of the Global Index
is not possible.

Subject to Schedule III of the Company’s prospectus, the Investment Manager may also invest in a portfolio of assets which may
comprise money market or short-term instruments such as government securities, bankers’ acceptances, certificates of deposit, and
eligible collective investment schemes which are either money market funds and/or which have a similar investment objective and
policies as that of the Global ETF. The amount which may be invested in such money market instruments, short-term instruments and
eligible collective investment schemes shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of the Global ETF.

The investment objective of First Trust Germany AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF (the “Germany ETF”) is to provide investors with investment
results that correspond generally to the price and yield of an equity index called the NASDAQ AlphaDEX® Germany Index (the
“Germany Index”). In order to achieve its investment objective, the investment policy of the Germany ETF is to invest at least 90% of its
net assets in a portfolio of equity securities that consists of the equity securities of the Germany Index or in depositary receipts that may
include ADRs, GDRs or EDRs representing securities in the Germany Index where direct investment in a constituent security of the
Germany Index is not possible.

Subject to Schedule III of the Company’s prospectus, the Investment Manager may also invest in a portfolio of assets which may
comprise money market or short-term instruments such as government securities, bankers’ acceptances, certificates of deposit, and
eligible collective investment schemes which are either money market funds and/or which have a similar investment objective and
policies as that of the Germany ETF. The amount which may be invested in such money market instruments, short-term instruments and
eligible collective investment schemes shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of the Germany ETF.

The investment objective of First Trust US Equity Income UCITS ETF (the “US Equity ETF”) is to provide investors with investment
results that correspond generally to the price and yield of an equity index called the NASDAQ US High Equity Income Index (the “US
High Equity Index”). In order to achieve its investment objective, the investment policy of the US Equity ETF is to invest at least 90% of
its net assets in a portfolio of equity securities that consists of the equity securities of the US High Equity Index or in depositary receipts
that may include ADRs, GDRs or EDRs representing securities in the US High Equity Index where direct investment in a constituent
security of the US High Equity Index is not possible.

Subject to Schedule III of the Company’s prospectus, the Investment Manager may also invest in a portfolio of assets which may
comprise money market or short-term instruments such as government securities, bankers’ acceptances, certificates of deposit, and
eligible collective investment schemes which are either money market funds and/or which have a similar investment objective and
policies as that of the US Equity ETF. The amount which may be invested in such money market instruments, short-term instruments and
eligible collective investment schemes shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of the US Equity ETF.
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The investment objective of First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF (the “International Internet ETF”) is to provide
investors with investment results that correspond generally to the price and yield, (before the International Internet ETF's fees and
expenses), of an equity index called the Dow Jones International Internet Index (the “International Internet Index”). In order to achieve
its investment objective, the investment policy of the International Internet ETF is to invest at least 90% of its net assets in a portfolio of
the equity securities of the International Internet Index or in depositary receipts that may include ADRs, GDRs or EDRs representing
securities in the International Internet Index where direct investment in a constituent security of the International Internet Index is not
possible.

Subject to Schedule III of the Company’s prospectus, the Investment Manager may also invest in a portfolio of assets which may
comprise money market or short-term instruments such as government securities, bankers’ acceptances, certificates of deposit and
eligible collective investment schemes which are either money market funds and/or which have a similar investment objective and
policies as that of the International Internet ETF. The amount which may be invested in such money market instruments, short-term
instruments and eligible collective investment schemes shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of the International Internet ETF.

The investment objective of First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy UCITS ETF (the “Clean Edge ETF”) is to provide investors
with investment results that correspond generally to the price and yield, (before the Clean Edge ETF's fees and expenses), of an equity
index called Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy Index™ (the “Clean Edge Index™). In order to achieve its investment objective, the
investment policy of the Clean Edge ETF is to invest at least 90% of its net assets in a portfolio of equity securities that consists of the
equity securities of the Clean Edge Index or in depositary receipts that may include ADRs, GDRs or EDRs representing securities in the
Clean Edge Index where direct investment in a constituent security of the Clean Edge Index is not possible.

Subject to Schedule III of the Company’s prospectus, the Investment Manager may also invest in a portfolio of assets which may
comprise money market or short-term instruments such as government securities, bankers’ acceptances, certificates of deposit and
eligible collective investment schemes which are either money market funds and/or which have a similar investment objective and
policies as that of the Clean Edge ETF. The amount which may be invested in such money market instruments, short-term instruments
and eligible collective investment schemes shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of the Clean Edge ETF.

The investment objective of First Trust FactorFX UCITS ETF (the “FactorFX ETF”) is to deliver to investors total returns with lower
correlation to the broader equity and bond markets over the medium to long term through its exposure to global currencies and related
markets. In order to achieve its investment objective, the investment policy of the FactorFX ETF is to invest 25% to 100% of its net
assets in a portfolio of sovereign fixed income securities. The FactorFX ETF may also invest in forward currency contracts, futures,
swaps and options. FactorFX ETF intends to pursue an actively managed investment strategy.

The Investment Manager or First Trust Global Portfolios Limited (the “Sub-Investment Manager””) may invest in sovereign fixed income
securities which will be traded or dealt in on Regulated Markets worldwide. These sovereign fixed income securities may be in
developed or emerging markets, may be either fixed or floating and Investment Grade or below Investment Grade and the average
duration of these securities is likely to be less than two years. The FactorFX ETF may invest up to 30% of its NAV in below Investment
Grade fixed income securities. The FactorFX ETF may also invest up to 30% of its NAV in sovereign fixed income securities issued in
emerging markets. The amount which may be invested in such money market funds shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of the FactorFX
ETF.

The investment objective of First Trust Indxx Innovative Transaction & Process UCITS ETF (the “Indxx ETF”) is to provide investors
with investment results that correspond generally to the price and yield of an equity index called the Indxx Blockchain Index (the
“Blockchain Index”). In order to achieve its investment objective, the investment policy of the Indxx ETF is to invest at least 90% of its
net assets in a portfolio of equity securities that consists of the equity securities (or corresponding ADRs or GDRs) within the Blockchain
Index or in ADRs or GDRs representing securities in the Blockchain Index where direct investment in a constituent security of the
Blockchain Index is not practicable or possible.

Subject to Schedule III of the Company’s prospectus, the Investment Manager may also invest in a portfolio of assets which may
comprise money market or short-term instruments such as Investment Grade fixed and floating government securities, bankers’
acceptances, certificates of deposit and eligible collective investment schemes which are either money market funds and/or which have a
similar investment objective and policies as that of the Indxx ETF. The amount which may be invested in such money market
instruments, short-term instruments and eligible collective investment schemes shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of the Indxx ETF.
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The investment objective of First Trust Dow Jones Internet UCITS ETF (the “Dow Jones ETF”) is to provide investors with a total
return, taking into account capital and income returns, which reflects the return of an equity index called the Dow Jones Internet
Composite Index™ (the “Dow Jones Index”). In order to achieve its investment objective, the investment policy of the Dow Jones ETF
is to invest at least 90% of its net assets in a portfolio of equity securities that consists of the equity securities of the Dow Jones Index or
other depositary receipts representing securities in the Dow Jones Index where direct investment in a constituent security of the Dow
Jones Index is not practicable or possible.

Subject to Schedule III of the Company’s prospectus, the Investment Manager may also invest in a portfolio of assets which may
comprise money market or short-term instruments such as Investment Grade fixed and floating government securities, bankers’
acceptances, certificates of deposit and eligible collective investment schemes which are either money market funds and/or which have a
similar investment objective and policies as that of the Dow Jones ETF. The amount which may be invested in such money market
instruments, short-term instruments and eligible collective investment schemes shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of the Dow Jones ETF.

The investment objective of First Trust Cloud Computing UCITS ETF (the “Cloud Computing ETF”) is to provide investors with
investment results that correspond generally to the price and yield of an equity index called the ISE CTA Cloud Computing™ Index (the
“Cloud Computing Index”). In order to achieve its investment objective, the investment policy of the Cloud Computing ETF is to invest
at least 90% of its net assets in a portfolio of equity securities that consists of the equity securities of the Cloud Computing Index or in
depositary receipts that may include ADRs, GDRs or EDRs representing securities in the Cloud Computing Index where direct
investment in a constituent security of the Cloud Computing Index is not practicable or possible.

Subject to Schedule III of the Company’s prospectus, the Investment Manager may also invest in a portfolio of assets which may
comprise money market or short-term instruments such as Investment Grade fixed and floating government securities, bankers’
acceptances, certificates of deposit, and eligible collective investment schemes which are either money market funds and/or which have a
similar investment objective and policies as that of the Cloud Computing ETF. The amount which may be invested in such money
market instruments, short-term instruments and eligible collective investment schemes shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of the Cloud
Computing ETF.

The investment objective of First Trust Low Duration Global Government Bond UCITS ETF (the “Low Duration ETF”) is to deliver
total returns to investors over the medium to long term by investing in sovereign Fixed Income Securities globally. In order to achieve its
investment objective, the investment policy of the Low Duration ETF is to invest at least 80% of its NAV in a portfolio of global
sovereign fixed income securities. The Low Duration ETF intends to pursue an actively managed investment strategy.

The Sub-Investment Manager may invest primarily in Investment Grade rated fixed income securities which are listed, traded or dealt on
Regulated Markets worldwide, including developed and emerging market countries (including Russia) and which are issued by
governments, local authorities, Supranational Organisations and public sector bodies and will seek to minimise the effect of the
underlying currency exposure of those securities by utilising currency hedging transactions. The Sub-Investment Manager may also use
interest rate financial derivative instruments in order to manage and hedge its interest rate exposure. The financial derivative instruments
used may be forward foreign exchange contracts, currency futures, interest rate futures and interest rate swaps. The Low Duration ETF’s
investment in money market funds shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of the Low Duration ETF.

The investment objective of First Trust Capital Strength UCITS ETF (the “Capital Strength ETF”) is to provide investors with
investment results that correspond generally to the price and yield, (before the Capital Strength ETF's fees and expenses), of an equity
index called The Capital Strength Index™ (“The Capital Strength Index”). In order to achieve its investment objective, the investment
policy of the Capital Strength ETF is to invest at least 90% of its net assets in the common stocks and real estate investment trusts
(“REITs”) that comprise The Capital Strength Index or in depositary receipts that may include ADRs, GDRs or EDRs representing
securities in The Capital Strength Index where direct investment in a constituent security of The Capital Strength Index is not possible.

Subject to Schedule III of the Company’s prospectus, the Investment Manager may also invest in a portfolio of assets which may
comprise money market or short-term instruments such as Investment Grade fixed and floating government securities, bankers’
acceptances, certificates of deposit, and eligible collective investment schemes which are either money market funds and/or which have a
similar investment objective and policies as that of the Capital Strength ETF. The amount which may be invested in such money market
instruments, short-term instruments and eligible collective investment schemes shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of the Capital Strength
ETF.
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The investment objective of First Trust Value Line® Dividend Index UCITS ETF (the “Value Line Dividend ETF”) is to provide
investors with investment results that correspond generally to the price and yield, (before the Value Line Dividend ETF's fees and
expenses), of an equity index called the Value Line® Dividend Index (the “Value Line Dividend Index”). In order to achieve its
investment objective, the investment policy of the Value Line Dividend ETF is to invest at least 90% of its net assets in the common
stocks and depositary receipts that comprise the Value Line Dividend Index or in depositary receipts that may include ADRs, GDRs or
EDRs representing securities in the Value Line Dividend Index where direct investment in a constituent security of the Value Line
Dividend Index is not possible.

Subject to Schedule III of the Company’s prospectus, the Investment Manager may also invest in a portfolio of assets which may
comprise money market or short-term instruments such as Investment Grade fixed and floating government securities, bankers’
acceptances, certificates of deposit, and eligible collective investment schemes which are either money market funds and/or which have a
similar investment objective and policies as that of the Value Line Dividend ETF. The amount which may be invested in such money
market instruments, short-term instruments and eligible collective investment schemes shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of the Value
Line Dividend ETF.

The investment objective of First Trust NYSE Arca Biotechnology UCITS ETF (the “Biotechnology ETF”) is to provide investors with
investment results that correspond generally to the price and yield, (before the Biotechnology ETF's fees and expenses), of an equity
index called the NYSE Arca Biotechnology IndexS™ (the “Biotechnology Index”). In order to achieve its investment objective, the
investment policy of the Biotechnology ETF is to invest at least 90% of its net assets in the common stocks and depositary receipts that
comprise the Biotechnology Index or in depositary receipts that may include ADRs, GDRs or EDRs representing securities in the
Biotechnology Index where direct investment in a constituent security of the Biotechnology Index is not possible.

Subject to Schedule III of the Company’s prospectus, the Investment Manager may also invest in a portfolio of assets which may
comprise money market or short-term instruments such as Investment Grade fixed and floating government securities, bankers’
acceptances, certificates of deposit, and eligible collective investment schemes which are either money market funds and/or which have a
similar investment objective and policies as that of the Biotechnology ETF. The amount which may be invested in such money market
instruments, short-term instruments and eligible collective investment schemes shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of the Biotechnology
ETF.

The investment objective of First Trust Nasdaq Cybersecurity UCITS ETF (the “Cybersecurity ETF”) is to provide investors with
investment results that correspond generally to the price and yield, (before the Cybersecurity ETF's fees and expenses), of a total return
equity index called the Nasdaq CTA Cybersecurity IndexS™ (the “Cybersecurity Index”). In order to achieve its investment objective, the
investment policy of the Cybersecurity ETF is to invest at least 90% of its net assets in the common stocks and depositary receipts that
comprise the Cybersecurity Index or in depositary receipts that may include ADRs or GDRs representing securities in the Cybersecurity
Index where direct investment in a constituent security of the Cybersecurity Index is not possible.

Subject to Schedule III of the Company’s prospectus, the Investment Manager may also invest in a portfolio of assets which may
comprise money market or short-term instruments such as Investment Grade fixed and floating government securities, bankers’
acceptances, certificates of deposit, and eligible collective investment schemes which are either money market funds and/or which have a
similar investment objective and policies as that of the Cybersecurity ETF. The amount which may be invested in such money market
instruments, short-term instruments and eligible collective investment schemes shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of the Cybersecurity
ETF.

The investment objective of First Trust Strategic Metal and Energy Equity UCITS Fund (the “Strategic UCITS Fund”) is to provide
investors with long term returns, through capital growth. In order to achieve its investment objective, the investment policy of the
Strategic UCITS Fund is to invest in a diversified portfolio of equity securities related to gold and oil which are listed or traded on
Regulated Markets worldwide. The equity securities related to gold and oil in which the Strategic UCITS Fund will invest shall primarily
consist of common stocks (and their equivalent for other corporate structures such as limited partnerships, land trusts and royalty income
trusts, which may be purchased instead of corporate structures in some jurisdictions for tax benefit purposes). The securities in which the
Strategic UCITS Fund will invest will be listed or traded on Regulated Markets worldwide. The Strategic UCITS Fund may also invest
up to 10% of the NAV in other transferable securities such as convertible securities and warrants. The Strategic UCITS Fund intends to
pursue an actively managed investment strategy.

The Investment Manager will identify the potential universe of gold and oil stocks in which to invest by screening for equity securities
issued by companies deriving a substantial part of their income from, or having a substantial portion of their assets in gold and oil related
sectors and industries and which may include companies involved in mining, exploration and production of gold and oil. The Investment
Manager will then create a diversified portfolio by including the largest gold and oil stocks in the investment universe by reference to
market capitalization. The Strategic UCITS Fund's portfolio will consist of two ‘sleeves’ of up to 150 stocks each, one comprising of
gold stocks and the other comprising oil stocks.
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Cash is a residual element of the investment process. Cash may be held on deposit by the Strategic UCITS Fund. Cash equivalents may
also be held by the Strategic UCITS Fund from time to time. Cash equivalents are commercial paper, banker’s acceptances, certificates
of deposit and government securities or securities issued by any Supranational Organisation, provided these securities are listed, traded
or dealt in on a Regulated Market and are rated investment grade or better by at least one Nationally Recognized Statistical Ratings
Organization ("NRSRQO"). Cash deposits and cash equivalents held by the Strategic UCITS Fund will not generally exceed 10% of its
NAV, but in exceptional circumstances (for example in an uncertain market environment) the Strategic UCITS Fund may hold in excess
of 10% of its NAV in cash or cash equivalents. The Strategic UCITS Fund will not invest more than 10% of its NAV in units or shares
of eligible collective investment schemes, including exchange traded funds. The eligible collective investment schemes in which the
Strategic UCITS Fund may invest will have similar investment objectives and policies to the Strategic UCITS Fund. The Strategic
UCITS Fund does not intend to use borrowing or financial derivative instruments.

The investment objective of First Trust Global Capital Strength ESG Leaders UCITS ETF (the “ESG Leaders ETF”) is to provide
investors with long term returns, through capital growth. In order to achieve its investment objective, the investment policy of the ESG
Leaders ETF is to invest in a diversified portfolio of global equity securities issued by companies which the Investment Manager
considers to have leading or superior metrics based on environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) related criteria (relative to their
industry peers) and which, in addition, the Investment Manager considers to exhibit “capital strength” in that they are well capitalised
and have strong balance sheets. ESG Leaders ETF intends to pursue an actively managed investment strategy.

Subject to Schedule III of the Company’s prospectus, the Investment Manager may also invest in a portfolio of assets which may
comprise money market or short-term instruments such as Investment Grade fixed and floating government securities, bankers’
acceptances, certificates of deposit, and eligible collective investment schemes which are either money market funds and/or which have a
similar investment objective and policies as that of the ESG Leaders ETF for liquidity purposes. The amount which may be invested in
such money market instruments, short-term instruments and eligible collective investment schemes shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of
the ESG Leaders ETF.

The investment objective of First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF (the “IPOX Europe ETF”) is to provide
investors with investment results that correspond generally to the price and yield, (before the [POX Europe ETF's fees and expenses), of
an equity index called the IPOX®-100 Europe Index (the “IPOX®-100 Index”). In order to achieve its investment objective, the
investment policy of the IPOX Europe ETF is to invest at least 90% of its net assets in a portfolio of equity securities that consists of the
equity securities of the IPOX®-100 Index or in depositary receipts that may include ADRs, GDRs or EDRs representing securities in the
IPOX®-100 Index where direct investment in a constituent security of the IPOX®-100 Index is not possible.

Subject to Schedule III of the Company’s prospectus, the Investment Manager may also invest in a portfolio of assets which may
comprise money market or short-term instruments such as Investment Grade fixed and floating government securities, bankers’
acceptances, certificates of deposit, and eligible collective investment schemes which are either money market funds and/or which have a
similar investment objective and policies as that of the [POX Europe ETF. The amount which may be invested in such money market
instruments, short-term instruments and eligible collective investment schemes shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of the IPOX Europe
ETF.

The investment objective of First Trust Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate UCITS ETF (the “Alerian DTRE ETF”) is to provide
investors with investment results that correspond generally to the price and yield, (before the Alerian DTRE ETF's fees and expenses), to
those of an equity index called the Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate Index (the “Alerian DTRE Index”). In order to achieve its
investment objective, the investment policy of the Alerian DTRE ETF is to invest at least 90% of its net assets in a portfolio of equity
securities that consists of the equity securities of the Alerian DTRE Index or in depositary receipts that may include ADRs, GDRs or
EDRs representing securities in the Alerian DTRE Index where direct investment in a constituent security of the Alerian DTRE Index is
not possible.

Subject to Schedule IIT of the Company's prospectus, the Investment Manager may also invest in a portfolio of assets which may
comprise money market or short-term instruments such as Investment Grade fixed and floating government securities, bankers’
acceptances, certificates of deposit, and eligible collective investment schemes which have a similar investment objective and policies as
that of the Alerian DTRE ETF or are money market funds. The amount which may be invested in such money market instruments, short-
term instruments and eligible collective investment schemes shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of the Alerian DTRE ETF.
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1. Organisation (continued)

The investment objective of First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Smart Grid Infrastructure UCITS ETF (the “Smart Grid Infrastructure
ETF”) is to provide investors with investment results that correspond generally to the price and yield, (before the Smart Grid
Infrastructure ETF's fees and expenses), to those of an equity index called the Nasdaqg OMX Clean Edge Smart Grid Infrastructure Index
(the “Smart Grid Infrastructure Index”). In order to achieve its investment objective, the investment policy of the Smart Grid
Infrastructure ETF is to invest at least 90% of its net assets in a portfolio of equity securities that consists of the equity securities of the
Smart Grid Infrastructure Index or in depositary receipts that may include ADRs, GDRs or EDRs representing securities in the Smart
Grid Infrastructure Index where direct investment in a constituent security of the Smart Grid Infrastructure Index is not possible.

Subject to Schedule IIT of the Company's prospectus, the Investment Manager may also invest in a portfolio of assets which may
comprise money market or short-term instruments such as Investment Grade fixed and floating government securities, bankers’
acceptances, certificates of deposit, and eligible collective investment schemes which have a similar investment objective and policies as
that of the Smart Grid Infrastructure ETF or are money market funds. The amount which may be invested in such money market
instruments, short-term instruments and eligible collective investment schemes shall not exceed 10% of the NAV of the Smart Grid
Infrastructure ETF.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
A. Basis of Preparation and Accounting Convention

These annual audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting Period”) have been prepared in
accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in Ireland (“Irish GAAP”) comprising Financial Reporting Standard (“FRS”)
102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”) issued by the Financial
Reporting Council and Irish statute comprising the Companies Act, the UCITS Regulations, the Central Bank UCITS Regulations and
the listing rules of the Euronext Dublin, Amsterdam and Paris Stock Exchanges, the London Stock Exchange, the Deutsche Boerse and
the Borsa Italiana.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical estimates and assumptions that
may affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the Reporting Period. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount, event or
actions, actual results ultimately may differ from these estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant are disclosed under the fair value estimation note.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company has availed of the exemption from preparation of cash flows as all of the following conditions set out under Section 7.1A
“Statement of Cash Flows” of FRS 102 have been satisfied:

(i) substantially all of the entity's investments are highly liquid i.e. substantially all investments are level 1 or level 2. Please see note 5;
(ii) substantially all of the entity's investments are carried at market value; and
(iii) the entity provides a statement of changes in net assets.

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Company are set out below and overleaf. These policies have been consistently
applied to the financial years presented unless otherwise stated.

B. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Valuation of Investments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

(i) Initial Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
all financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value. The Company has elected to
apply the recognition and measurement provisions of International Accounting Standards (“IAS”) 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition

and Measurement” (“IAS 39”) the disclosure requirements of Section 11 “Basic Financial Instrument” and Section 12 “Other Financial
Instruments Issues” of FRS 102.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

B. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)
Valuation of Investments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)
(ii) Classification

The Company classifies its investments in debt and equity securities as financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss. All financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are classified as held-for-trading. These include
corporate bonds, treasury notes, equities, preference shares and rights. All derivatives in a receivable position are reported as financial
assets held-for-trading. All derivatives in a payable position are reported as financial liabilities held-for-trading.

(iii) Recognition and Derecognition

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised at the trade date being the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the
investment. Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Company has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Realised gains and losses are based on the first in first out method and are
reflected in net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

(iv) Fair Value Estimation

Each Fund’s financial instruments are carried at fair value on the Statement of Financial Position. The fair value of instruments traded in
active markets is based on last traded quoted market prices at the Statement of Financial Position date.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis.

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the financial instruments that have been valued at fair market value as determined in
good faith by the Investment Manager are included in Note 5 Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss.

C. Income Recognition

Interest and dividend income on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss for the financial year is presented as
“Income from investments at fair value through profit or loss” in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on an accrual basis, gross of
withholding tax which is shown separately on the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Dividends shall be recognised when the
shareholder's right to receive payment is established.

D. Income from investments at fair value through profit or loss

The Company records its investment transactions on a trade date basis. Income from investments at fair value through profit or loss
includes accretion of market discount, original issue discounts and amortisation of premiums and is recorded into income over the life of
the underlying investment.

E. Expense Recognition
All expenses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on an accrual basis.
F. Cash, Bank Overdraft, Margin Cash, Cash Collateral & Pledged Collateral

Cash and bank overdrafts are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. Bank overdrafts are classified as financial liabilities. Cash
collateral provided by the Fund is identified in the Statement of Financial Position as Cash collateral and is not included as a component
of cash and bank overdraft. For collateral other than cash, if the party to whom the collateral is provided has the right by contract or
custom to sell or re-pledge the collateral, the Fund classifies that asset in its Statement of Financial Position separately from other assets
and identifies the asset as securities pledged as collateral. Cash collateral receivable/payable in relation to the futures contracts is
identified in the Statement of Financial Position as Margin cash and is not included as a component of cash and bank overdraft. As at 31
December 2022, Margin cash is held with the broker J.P. Morgan Securities LLC for the Low Duration ETF.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
F. Cash, Bank Overdraft, Margin Cash, Cash Collateral & Pledged Collateral (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, there is no Cash collateral receivable/payable on the Funds. As at 31 December 2021, Margin cash was held
with the broker J.P. Morgan Securities LLC for the Low Duration ETF. As at 31 December 2021, there was no Cash collateral
receivable/payable on the Funds.

G. Redeemable Participating Shares

For the FactorFX ETF and Low Duration ETF, redeemable participating shares are redeemable at the shareholder’s option and are
classified as financial liabilities. Participating shares can be redeemed at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of the
Company’s NAV. The participating share is carried at the redemption amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial Position date
if the shareholder exercised its right to put the share back to the Company.

For the US Large Cap ETF, Emerging Markets ETF, UK ETF, Eurozone ETF, Indxx NextG ETF, US Equity Opportunities ETF, Global
ETF, Germany ETF, US Equity ETF, International Internet ETF, Clean Edge ETF, Indxx ETF, Dow Jones ETF, Cloud Computing ETF,
Capital Strength ETF, Value Line Dividend ETF, Biotechnology ETF, Cybersecurity ETF, ESG Leaders ETF, IPOX Europe ETF,
Alerian DTRE ETF and Smart Grid Infrastructure ETF shares can be redeemed on the primary or secondary market and are classified as
financial liabilities. The primary market is the market on which shares of the Funds are issued by the Company to Authorised
Participants (“APs”) or redeemed by the Company from APs. Only APs are permitted to subscribe or redeem shares on the primary
market.

Shares may be purchased or sold on the secondary market by all investors through a relevant recognised stock exchange on which the
shares are admitted to trading or over the counter. The purpose of the listing of the shares on a stock exchange is to enable investors to
buy and sell shares on the secondary market, normally via a broker/dealer or third party administrator, in smaller quantities than would
be possible if they were to subscribe and/or redeem shares through the Company in the primary market.

The fair value of the financial liability for the redeemable participating shares is the redemption amount per share, calculated as the NAV
per share less any associated duties and charges, and any redemption dividend which is payable on the shares redeemed.

H. Distributions to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares

Distributions payable to holders of redeemable participating shares are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The
income, earnings and gains of the Funds will be accumulated and reinvested on behalf of the shareholders except for the US Large Cap
ETF, UK ETF, Eurozone ETF, Global ETF, Germany ETF, US Equity ETF, Low Duration ETF and Alerian DTRE ETF which have
distributing classes. Refer to Statement of Comprehensive Income for further details.

I. Foreign Currency

Items included in the Company’s financial statements are measured and presented using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it operates (the “functional currency”). The functional currency reflects the transactions, events, and conditions
under which each Fund operates and conducts its business. The presentation currency of the Company is Euro.

The functional currency of the Eurozone ETF, Germany ETF, Low Duration ETF and IPOX Europe ETF is Euro.

The functional currency of the US Large Cap ETF, Emerging Markets ETF, Indxx NextG ETF, US Equity Opportunities ETF, Global
ETF, US Equity ETF, International Internet ETF, Clean Edge ETF, FactorFX ETF, Indxx ETF, Dow Jones ETF, Cloud Computing ETF,
Capital Strength ETF, Value Line Dividend ETF, Biotechnology ETF, Cybersecurity ETF, Strategic UCITS Fund, ESG Leaders ETF,
Alerian DTRE ETF and Smart Grid Infrastructure ETF is US Dollar.

The functional currency of the UK ETF is British Pound.

For the purpose of combining the financial statements of the Funds to arrive at total Company figures (as required under Irish company
law), the amounts in the Funds’ Statement of Financial Position have been converted to Euro at the exchange rate ruling at 31 December
2022. The notional foreign exchange gain of €88,974,522 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: gain of €79,485,041) set out in the
Company Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares is due to the use of average
exchange rates when translating the net increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares from
operations, issuance of redeemable participating shares, and redemption of redeemable participating shares, in comparison to the use of
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
I. Foreign Currency (continued)

closing exchange rates when translating the financial year end Statement of Financial Position. This notional foreign exchange
adjustment has no impact on the NAV of the individual Funds.

The Company may invest in assets denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of each Fund. Accordingly, the value of
a shareholder’s investments may be affected favourably or unfavourably by fluctuations in the rates of different currencies. Transactions
in foreign currencies are converted at the foreign exchange rate in effect at the date of the transaction. Assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are converted into Euro at the foreign currency closing exchange rate in effect at the financial year end. Foreign
currency exchange gains and losses relating to investments at fair value through profit or loss, derivative financial investments, and all
other foreign currency exchange gains or losses relating to monetary items, including cash, are reflected in the net gain/(loss) on
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

On 1 February 2021, First Trust Japan AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF and First Trust Switzerland AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed their
names to First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF and First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF, respectively, and both
Funds changed functional currency to USD. The Directors decided to convert to USD from JPY and from CHF as a result of the change
in the underlying index for each Fund and the new investment objective and policy. On 1 February 2021, all items were converted into
the new functional currency USD using the exchange rate as at 1 February 2021. The conversion to USD did not result in an impact to
the Company.

J. Forward Currency Contracts

In a forward currency contract, the Fund agrees to receive or deliver a fixed quantity of one currency for another, at a predetermined
price at a future date. The fair value of forward currency contracts is calculated as the difference between the contracted rate and the
current forward rate that would close out the contract on the Statement of Financial Position date. Gains or losses on forward currency
contracts are included in the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
on the Statement of Financial Position and are shown in the Schedule of Investments. Any realised gains or losses are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income on the trade date. The Funds may enter into these contracts to hedge against changes in currency
exchange rates. The forward currency contracts are used to hedge the currency exposure on individual positions taken by the Funds and
to hedge non-base currency investors.

K. Open Futures Contracts

A futures contract obligates one party to sell and the other party to purchase a specific instrument for an agreed price at an agreed future
date. Futures may be used subject to the conditions and limits laid down by the Central Bank and the constitution of the Company as of
29 January 2020 (the “Constitution”) and subject to any other restrictions or regulations which may affect the portfolio management of
the Funds or the Investment Manager/Sub-Investment Manager. Certain Funds may buy or sell futures to provide an efficient, liquid and
effective method for the management of risks by “locking in” gains and/or protecting against future declines in value. The fair value of
open future contracts is calculated as the difference between the contracted rate and the current rate that would close out the contract on
the Statement of Financial Position date. Gains or losses on futures are included in the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss on the Statement of Financial Position and are shown in the Schedule of
Investments. When the contract is terminated, the Fund will recognise a realised gain or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
equal to the difference between the value of the contract at the time it was entered into and the time it was closed.

L. Transaction Costs

A Fund pays transaction costs, such as commissions, when it buys and sells securities. Transaction costs means any costs and expenses
incurred in respect of the buying and selling of portfolio securities and financial instruments as Investments, including but not limited to
brokerage fees and commission, interest or taxes payable in respect of such purchase and sale transactions. Transaction costs are
included in the purchase and sale of each security.
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3. Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial Year ended 31 December 2022

Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss:

Held for Trading:

Net realised gain/(loss) on investments

Net realised gain/(loss) on derivatives

Net realised gain/(loss) on currency

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
investments

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
derivatives

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on currency

Financial Year ended 31 December 2022

Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss:

Held for Trading:

Net realised gain/(loss) on investments

Net realised gain/(loss) on derivatives

Net realised gain/(loss) on currency

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
investments

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
derivatives

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on currency
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First Trust First Trust First Trust
US Large Emerging United First Trust
Cap Core Markets Kingdom Eurozone
AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ £ €
3,787,591 (2,955,487) (1,104,256) (8,729,833)
- (24,023) 3,198 (431)
(18,473,436) (2,221,908) (2,736,933) (15,193,130)
- (153) 333 3
(14,685,845) (5,201,571) (3,837,658) (23,923,391)

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust

Indxx US Equity Global Equity Germany
NextG Opportunities Income AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ €
(199,824) (4,213,534) (1,232,391) (4,042,388)
- - (32) -

(2,339) 6 (18,330) -
(2,439,768) (1,458,466) (1,078,166) (1,112,243)
_ _ (68) _

(76) - 814 -
(2,642,007) (5,671,994) (2,328,173) (5,154,631)
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3. Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)

Financial Year ended 31 December 2022

Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss:

Held for Trading:

Net realised gain/(loss) on investments

Net realised gain/(loss) on derivatives

Net realised gain/(loss) on currency

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
investments

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
derivatives

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on currency

Financial Year ended 31 December 2022

Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss:

Held for Trading:

Net realised gain/(loss) on investments

Net realised gain/(loss) on derivatives

Net realised gain/(loss) on currency

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
investments

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
derivatives

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on currency
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First Trust

First Trust

First Trust Dow Jones Nasdaq®
US Equity International Clean Edge® First Trust
Income Internet Green Energy FactorFX
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ US$
(4,176,888) (2,395,776) (4,925,898) (250,952)
- - - (844,147)
- (334) - 334
(14,760,710) (596,044) (6,532,914) 66,713
- - - 378,272
— 4 — 726
(18,937,598) (2,992,150) (11,458,812) (649,054)
First Trust First Trust
Indxx Low Duration
Innovative First Trust First Trust Global
Transaction & Dow Jones Cloud Government
Process Internet Computing Bond
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ €
(7,234,751) (13,724,325) (126,622,764) (568,905)
- - - (401,202)
(43,315) - - 4,769
(27,611,842) (8,089,376) (102,020,539) (936,689)
- - - 84,613
32 — — (4,209)
(34,889,876) (21,813,701) (228,643,303) (1,821,623)
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3. Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)

Financial Year ended 31 December 2022

Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss:

Held for Trading:

Net realised gain/(loss) on investments

Net realised gain/(loss) on derivatives

Net realised gain/(loss) on currency

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
investments

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
derivatives

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on currency

Financial Year ended 31 December 2022

Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss:

Held for Trading:

Net realised gain/(loss) on investments

Net realised gain/(loss) on derivatives

Net realised gain/(loss) on currency

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
investments

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
derivatives

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on currency

First Trust First Trust First Trust First Trust
Capital Value Line® NYSE Arca Nasdaq
Strength  Dividend Index Biotechnology Cybersecurity
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ US$
(445,351) 995,797 (2,494,981) (33,791,000)

_ (534) - (45,503)

(944,042) (2,096,946) 1,068,627 (111,214,066)

- (33) - 3,064
(1,389,393) (1,101,716) (1,426,354) (145,047,505)
First Trust

First Trust First Trust First Trust Alerian
Strategic Metal Global Capital IPOX® Disruptive
and Energy Strength Europe Equity Technology
Equity ESG Leaders Opportunities Real Estate
UCITS Fund UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF!
US$ US$ € US$
1,878,738 (1,588,679) (589,128) (174,939)
(12) (229) 3 _

(2,828) (5,002) (1,625) 877
586,843 (695,247) (228,424) (640,748)

7 53 25 28

2,462,748 (2,289,104) (819,149) (814,782)

! First Trust Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate UCITS ETF was launched on 31 March 2022.
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3. Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)

Financial Year ended 31 December 2022

First Trust
Nasdaq®
Clean Edge®
Smart Grid
Infrastructure
UCITS ETF? Total
US$ €
Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss:
Held for Trading:
Net realised gain/(loss) on investments (11,625) (204,892,323)
Net realised gain/(loss) on derivatives - (1,202,872)
Net realised gain/(loss) on currency 823 (126,573)
Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
investments (30,552) (304,729,706)
Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
derivatives - 443,671
Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on currency (18) 432

(41,372) (510,507,371)

2 First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Smart Grid Infrastructure UCITS ETF was launched on 21 April 2022.
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3. Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)

Financial Year ended 31 December 2021

Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss:

Held for Trading:

Net realised gain/(loss) on investments

Net realised gain/(loss) on derivatives

Net realised gain/(loss) on currency

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
investments

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
derivatives

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on currency

Financial Year ended 31 December 2021

Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss:

Held for Trading:

Net realised gain/(loss) on investments

Net realised gain/(loss) on derivatives

Net realised gain/(loss) on currency

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
investments

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
derivatives

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on currency

First Trust First Trust First Trust
US Large Emerging United First Trust
Cap Core Markets Kingdom Eurozone
AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ £ €
20,200,314 7,054,357 2,609,262 23,078,719
- 482 2 -
- (24,130) (195) 32
2,137,262 (5,019,734) (254,763) 2,000,990
- 817 (46) &)
22,337,576 2,011,792 2,354,260 25,079,736

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust

Indxx US Equity Global Equity Germany
NextG Opportunities Income AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF! UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ €
494,511 2,620,596 3,019,564 341,745
1,853 - 83 -
(3,605) - (9,683) -
676,491 (2,323.411) (1,767,686) (114,581)
_ _ 74 _

154 - (474) -
1,169,404 297,185 1,241,878 227,164

! First Trust Japan AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF and its functional currency
changed from Japanese Yen to US Dollar on 1 February 2021.
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3. Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)

Financial Year ended 31 December 2021

Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss:

Held for Trading:

Net realised gain/(loss) on investments

Net realised gain/(loss) on derivatives

Net realised gain/(loss) on currency

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
investments

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
derivatives

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on currency

First Trust First Trust

First Trust Dow Jones Nasdaq®
US Equity International Clean Edge® First Trust
Income Internet Green Energy FactorFX
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF? UCITS ETF? UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ US$
28,676,368 (131,949) (527,835) 144,535
- 12,880 - (112,506)
- (33,811) - 55,941
(6,082,485) (1,199,136) 247,975 (202,013)
- - - (482,731)
- 124 - (4,056)
22,593,883 (1,351,892) (279,860) (600,830)

2 First Trust Switzerland AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF and its
functional currency changed from Swiss Franc to US Dollar on 1 February 2021.
3 First Trust US Small Cap Core AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy UCITS

ETF on 1 February 2021.

Financial Year ended 31 December 2021

Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss:

Held for Trading:

Net realised gain/(loss) on investments

Net realised gain/(loss) on derivatives

Net realised gain/(loss) on currency

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
investments

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
derivatives

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on currency
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First Trust

First Trust

Indxx Low Duration
Innovative First Trust First Trust Global
Transaction & Dow Jones Cloud Government
Process Internet Computing Bond
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ €
18,525,831 5,596,741 132,295,912 (436,898)
(544) - - (870,257)

26,731 - - (16,903)
(6,940,204) (4,359,831) (78,504,541) (764,637)
- - - 100,475

17 - - (288)
11,611,831 1,236,910 53,791,371 (1,988,508)
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3. Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)

Financial Year ended 31 December 2021

Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss:

Held for Trading:

Net realised gain/(loss) on investments

Net realised gain/(loss) on derivatives

Net realised gain/(loss) on currency

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
investments

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on currency

Financial Year ended 31 December 2021

Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss:

Held for Trading:

Net realised gain/(loss) on investments

Net realised gain/(loss) on derivatives

Net realised gain/(loss) on currency

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
investments

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on
derivatives

Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on currency

4 First Trust Strategic Metal and Energy Equity UCITS Fund was launched on 8 February 2021.
5 First Trust Global Capital Strength ESG Leaders UCITS ETF was launched on 9 March 2021.

First Trust First Trust First Trust First Trust

Capital Value Line® NYSE Arca Nasdaq

Strength  Dividend Index Biotechnology Cybersecurity

UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF

US$ US$ US$ US$

1,373,029 846,234 34,233 21,438,099

- - - (245)

- (116) - (6,747)

827,191 1,408,722 (762,205) 18,327,300

- 30 - (312)

2,200,220 2,254,870 (727,972) 39,758,095

First Trust First Trust First Trust

Strategic Metal  Global Capital IPOX®
and Energy Strength Europe Equity
Equity ESG Leaders Opportunities

UCITS Fund* UCITS ETF? UCITS ETF*¢ Total

US$ US$ € €

158,298 (372,937) (66,102) 230,149,105

(50) - - (953,144)

247 (20,015) 1,039 (28,982)

22,980 243,401 284,778 (69,313,685)

- - - (307,716)

3 6 (39) (3,506)

181,478 (149,545) 219,676 159,542,072

® First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF was launched on 21 June 2021.
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4. Taxation

Under current law and practice the Company qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in Section 739B of the Taxes
Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended (the “TCA”). On that basis, it is not chargeable to Irish tax on its income or gains. However, Irish
tax may arise on the happening of a “chargeable event”. A chargeable event includes any distribution payments to shareholders or any
encashment, redemption, cancellation or transfer of shares. No Irish tax will arise on the Company in respect of chargeable events in
respect of:

(a) a shareholder who is neither Irish resident nor ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax purposes, at the time of the chargeable event,
provided appropriate valid declarations in accordance with the provisions of the TCA, are held by the Company; and

(b) certain exempted Irish tax resident shareholders who have provided the Company with the necessary signed statutory declarations.
A chargeable event does not include:

(i) any transaction (which might otherwise be a chargeable event) in relation to shares held in a recognised clearing system as designed
by order of the Revenue Commissioners of Ireland; or

(ii) a transfer of shares between spouses/civil partners and any transfer of shares between spouses/civil partners or former spouses/civil
partners on the occasion of judicial separation, decree of dissolution and/or divorce as appropriate; or

(iii) an exchange by a shareholder, effected by way of arm’s length bargain where no payment is made to the shareholder, of shares in a
Fund for shares in another Fund; or

(iv) an exchange of shares arising on a qualifying amalgamation or reconstruction (within the meaning of Section 739H of the TCA) with
another investment undertaking.

It is the intention of the Directors that the shares of the ETF Funds will at all times be held in a recognised clearing system. On that basis,
it is not envisaged that a chargeable event will arise on which the Company will be liable to account for tax. However, if, for any reason,
the shares cease to be held in a recognised clearing system and the Company becomes liable to account for tax on a chargeable event, the
Company shall be entitled to deduct from the payment arising on that chargeable event an amount equal to the appropriate tax and/or,
where applicable, to repurchase and cancel such number of shares held by the shareholder as is required to meet the amount of tax. The
relevant shareholder shall indemnify and keep the Company indemnified against loss arising to the Company by reason of the Company
becoming liable to account for tax on the happening of a chargeable event.

Other Countries:

Provisions have been made for Capital Gains Taxes payable on certain Brazilian and Indian securities held by the Emerging Markets
ETF and Global Equity ETF and for certain Indian securities held by the Indxx NextG ETF, Indxx ETF and ESG Leaders ETF.

Income and capital gains (if any) received on investments made by the Company may be subject to withholding taxes imposed by the
country from which the investment income/gains are received and such taxes may not be recoverable by the Company or its
shareholders.

5. Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

The Company is required to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used
in making measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

e Level 1 - The unadjusted quoted price in an active market for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date.

e Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable (i.e. developed using market data) for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

e Level 3 - Inputs are unobservable (i.e. for which market data is unavailable) for the asset or liability.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, there were a number of transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy for
financial assets and financial liabilities which were recorded at fair value.
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5. Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021 there were no significant transfers between Level 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy
for financial assets and financial liabilities which were recorded at fair value.

Transfers are deemed to have occurred at the beginning of the financial year.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety is determined on the basis of
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is
assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant
adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to
the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgement, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

As at 31 December 2022 First Trust Emerging Markets AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF had seven fair valued securities, Magnitogorsk Iron &
Steel Works PJSC, Magnit PJSC, Sunac China Holdings Ltd, Tatneft PISC, Huaneng Renewables Corp Ltd 'H', Inter RAO UES PJSC
and RusHydro PJSC held under Level 3 as instructed by the Investment Manager. As at 31 December 2021, First Trust Emerging
Markets AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF had one fair valued security, Huaneng Renewables Corp Ltd 'H', held under Level 3 as instructed by
the Investment Manager.

As at 31 December 2022 First Trust United Kingdom AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF had one fair valued security, EVRAZ PLC, held under
Level 3 as instructed by the Investment Manager. There were no fair valued securities held under Level 3 as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022 First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF had one fair valued security, Mobile TeleSystems PJSC ADR, held under
Level 3 as instructed by the Investment Manager. There were no fair valued securities held under Level 3 as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022 First Trust Global Equity Income UCITS ETF had eight fair valued securities, Alrosa PJSC, Magnitogorsk Iron
& Steel Works PJSC, MMC Norilsk Nickel PJSC, Novolipetsk Steel PJSC, Polyus PJSC, Severstal PAO, Sunac China Holdings Ltd and
Inter RAO UES PJSC held under Level 3 as instructed by the Investment Manager. There were no fair valued securities held under Level
3 as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022 First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF had one fair valued security, Yandex NV — Class A,
held under Level 3 as instructed by the Investment Manager. There were no fair valued securities held under Level 3 as at 31 December
2021.

As at 31 December 2022 First Trust Indxx Innovative Transaction & Process UCITS ETF had two fair valued securities, Gazprom PJSC
ADR and Sberbank of Russia PJSC ADR, held under Level 3 as instructed by the Investment Manager. There were no fair valued
securities held under Level 3 as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022 First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF had one fair valued security, HeadHunter Group
Plc ADR, held under Level 3 as instructed by the Investment Manager. There were no fair valued securities held under Level 3 as at 31

December 2021.

The tables below and overleaf provide an analysis of financial instruments as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 that are
measured at fair value in accordance with FRS 102:

First Trust US Large Cap Core AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Common Stock 88,056,971 - - 88,056,971

Total 88,056,971 - - 88,056,971
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5. Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)

First Trust US Large Cap Core AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2021
Held for Trading

Common Stock
Total

First Trust Emerging Markets AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2022
Held for Trading

Common Stock
Total

First Trust Emerging Markets AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2021
Held for Trading

Common Stock
Total

First Trust United Kingdom AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2022
Held for Trading

Common Stock
Total

First Trust United Kingdom AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2021
Held for Trading

Common Stock
Total
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$
110,149,502 - - 110,149,502
110,149,502 - - 110,149,502
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$
20,152,159 - 51,368 20,203,527
20,152,159 - 51,368 20,203,527
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$
26,895,090 - 375 26,895,465
26,895,090 - 375 26,895,465
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£ £ £ £
17,528,129 - 4,748 17,532,877
17,528,129 - 4,748 17,532,877
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£ £ £ £
21,217,113 - - 21,217,113
21,217,113 - - 21,217,113




First Trust Global Funds plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

5. Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)

First Trust Eurozone AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2022
Held for Trading

Common Stock
Total

First Trust Eurozone AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2021
Held for Trading

Common Stock
Total

First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2022
Held for Trading

Common Stock
Total

First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF!

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2021
Held for Trading

Common Stock
Total

First Trust US Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2022
Held for Trading

Common Stock
Total
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €
92,467,888 — — 92,467,888
92,467,888 - - 92,467,888
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €
145,592,915 — — 145,592915
145,592,915 - - 145,592,915
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$
7,428,983 - 1,136 7,430,119
7,428,983 - 1,136 7,430,119
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$
9,778,030 - - 9,778,030
9,778,030 - - 9,778,030
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$
8,774,877 - - 8,774,877
8,774,877 - - 8,774,877
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

5. Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)
First Trust US Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Common Stock 15,859,048 - - 15,859,048

Total 15,859,048 - - 15,859,048

First Trust Global Equity Income UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Common Stock 15,994,677 - 27,499 16,022,176

Total 15,994,677 - 27,499 16,022,176

First Trust Global Equity Income UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Common Stock 18,258,392 — — 18,258,392

Total 18,258,392 - - 18,258,392

First Trust Germany AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €

Held for Trading

Common Stock 6,590,626 - - 6,590,626

Total 6,590,626 - - 6,590,626

First Trust Germany AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €

Held for Trading

Common Stock 15,386,328 — — 15,386,328

Total 15,386,328 - - 15,386,328
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5. Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)

First Trust US Equity Income UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2022
Held for Trading

Common Stock
Total

First Trust US Equity Income UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2021
Held for Trading

Common Stock
Total

First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2022
Held for Trading

Common Stock
Total

First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF?

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2021
Held for Trading

Common Stock
Total

First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2022
Held for Trading

Common Stock
Total
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$
267,717,759 - - 267,717,759
267,717,759 - - 267,717,759
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$
121,454,462 - — 121,454,462
121,454,462 - - 121,454,462
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$
4,603,420 — 894 4,604,314
4,603,420 - 894 4,604,314
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$
6,982,914 - - 6,982,914
6,982,914 - - 6,982,914
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$
23,614,330 - - 23,614,330
23,614,330 - - 23,614,330
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

5. Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)
First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy UCITS ETF?

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Common Stock 26,205,716 - - 26,205,716

Total 26,205,716 - - 26,205,716

First Trust FactorFX UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Forward Currency Contracts — 212,743 — 212,743

Treasury Notes/Bonds — 1,933,820 — 1,933,820

Total - 2,146,563 - 2,146,563

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Forward Currency Contracts - (36,475) - (36,475)

Total - (36,475) - (36,475)

First Trust FactorFX UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Forward Currency Contracts - 25,297 - 25,297

Treasury Notes/Bonds 4,603,907 2,146,639 - 6,750,546

Total 4,603,907 2,171,936 - 6,775,843

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Forward Currency Contracts - (226,756) - (226,756)

Total - (226,756) - (226,756)
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5. Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)

First Trust Indxx Innovative Transaction & Process UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Common Stock 103,445,185 - 13,568 103,458,753

Total 103,445,185 - 13,568 103,458,753

First Trust Indxx Innovative Transaction & Process UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Common Stock 151,027,955 - — 151,027,955

Total 151,027,955 - - 151,027,955

First Trust Dow Jones Internet UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Common Stock 35,838,074 - - 35,838,074

Total 35,838,074 - - 35,838,074

First Trust Dow Jones Internet UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Common Stock 45,428,289 - — 45,428,289

Total 45,428,289 - - 45,428,289

First Trust Cloud Computing UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Common Stock 254,897,279 - — 254,897,279

Total 254,897,279 - - 254,897,279
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

5. Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)

First Trust Cloud Computing UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2021

Held for Trading
Common Stock
Total

First Trust Low Duration Global Government Bond UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2022

Held for Trading

Forward Currency Contracts
Open Futures Contracts
Treasury Notes/Bonds
Total

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2022

Held for Trading
Forward Currency Contracts
Total

First Trust Low Duration Global Government Bond UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2021

Held for Trading

Forward Currency Contracts
Open Futures Contracts
Treasury Notes/Bonds
Total

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2021

Held for Trading

Forward Currency Contracts
Open Futures Contracts
Total
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$
600,842,186 - — 600,842,186
600,842,186 - - 600,842,186
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

- 144,090 - 144,090

52,639 - - 52,639

— 13,384,375 - 13,384,375

52,639 13,528,465 - 13,581,104
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

- (96,424) - (96,424)

- (96,424) - (96,424)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

- 128,476 - 128,476

23,559 - - 23,559
2,406,316 16,897,552 - 19,303,868
2,429,875 17,026,028 - 19,455,903
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

- (135,727) - (135,727)

(616) - - (616)
(616) (135,727) - (136,343)
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5. Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)
First Trust Capital Strength UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Common Stock 13,856,992 - - 13,856,992

Total 13,856,992 - - 13,856,992

First Trust Capital Strength UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Common Stock 12,669,673 - - 12,669,673

Total 12,669,673 - - 12,669,673

First Trust Value Line® Dividend Index UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Common Stock 21,697,067 — — 21,697,067

Total 21,697,067 - - 21,697,067

First Trust Value Line® Dividend Index UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Common Stock 16,933,372 - - 16,933,372

Total 16,933,372 - - 16,933,372

First Trust NYSE Arca Biotechnology UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Common Stock 6,602,203 - - 6,602,203

Total 6,602,203 - - 6,602,203
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5. Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)

First Trust NYSE Arca Biotechnology UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2021
Held for Trading

Common Stock
Total

First Trust Nasdaq Cybersecurity UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2022
Held for Trading

Common Stock
Total

First Trust Nasdaq Cybersecurity UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2021

Held for Trading
Common Stock
Total

First Trust Strategic Metal and Energy Equity UCITS Fund

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2022

Held for Trading
Common Stock
Total

First Trust Strategic Metal and Energy Equity UCITS Fund*

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2021
Held for Trading

Common Stock
Total
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$
15,826,837 - - 15,826,837
15,826,837 - - 15,826,837
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$
458,747,552 - — 458,747,552
458,747,552 - — 458,747,552
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$
339,720,698 - — 339,720,698
339,720,698 - - 339,720,698
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$
10,394,861 - - 10,394,861
10,394,861 - - 10,394,861
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$
1,210,011 - - 1,210,011
1,210,011 - - 1,210,011
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5. Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)
First Trust Global Capital Strength ESG Leaders UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Common Stock 31,660,867 - - 31,660,867

Total 31,660,867 - - 31,660,867

First Trust Global Capital Strength ESG Leaders UCITS ETF?

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Common Stock 5,556,937 — - 5,556,937

Total 5,556,937 - - 5,556,937

First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €

Held for Trading

Common Stock 1,518,067 — 126 1,518,193

Total 1,518,067 - 126 1,518,193

First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF¢

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €

Held for Trading

Common Stock 2,213,921 - - 2,213,921

Total 2,213,921 - - 2,213,921

First Trust Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate UCITS ETF’

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Common Stock 2,775,529 - - 2,775,529

Total 2,775,529 - - 2,775,529
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5. Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)
First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Smart Grid Infrastructure UCITS ETF?

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

As at 31 December 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Held for Trading

Common Stock 1,463,444 - — 1,463,444

Total 1,463,444 - - 1,463,444

! First Trust Japan AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF and its functional currency
changed from Japanese Yen to US Dollar on 1 February 2021.

2 First Trust Switzerland AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF and its
functional currency changed from Swiss Franc to US Dollar on 1 February 2021.

3 First Trust US Small Cap Core AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy UCITS
ETF on 1 February 2021.

4 First Trust Strategic Metal and Energy Equity UCITS Fund was launched on 8 February 2021.

5 First Trust Global Capital Strength ESG Leaders UCITS ETF was launched on 9 March 2021.

6 First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF was launched on 21 June 2021.

7 First Trust Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate UCITS ETF was launched on 31 March 2022.

8 First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Smart Grid Infrastructure UCITS ETF was launched on 21 April 2022.

There were no financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss for the US Large Cap ETF, Emerging Markets ETF, UK ETF,
Eurozone ETF, Indxx NextG ETF, US Equity Opportunities ETF, Global ETF, Germany ETF, US Equity ETF, International Internet
ETF, Clean Edge ETF, Indxx ETF, Dow Jones ETF, Cloud Computing ETF, Capital Strength ETF, Value Line Dividend ETF,
Biotechnology ETF, Cybersecurity ETF, Strategic UCITS Fund, ESG Leaders ETF, IPOX Europe ETF, Alerian DTRE ETF and Smart
Grid Infrastructure ETF at 31 December 2022.

There were no financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss for the US Large Cap ETF, Emerging Markets ETF, UK ETF,
Eurozone ETF, Indxx NextG ETF, US Equity Opportunities ETF, Global ETF, Germany ETF, US Equity ETF, International Internet
ETF, Clean Edge ETF, Indxx ETF, Dow Jones ETF, Cloud Computing ETF, Capital Strength ETF, Value Line Dividend ETF,
Biotechnology ETF, Cybersecurity ETF, Strategic UCITS Fund, ESG Leaders ETF and IPOX Europe ETF at 31 December 2021.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

5. Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)

The following table shows a reconciliation of movements in fair value of financial investments categorised within Level 3 between the
beginning and the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022

First Trust First Trust First Trust First Trust
Emerging United Indxx Global Equity
Markets Kingdom NextG Income
AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® UCITS UCITS
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF ETF ETF
US$ £ US$ US$
Opening balance 375 - - -
Purchases 8,531 67,713 8,520 64,708
Sales - (736) - (40,355)
Transfers into Level 3 1,068,959 188,168 56,739 399,774
Transfers out of Level 3 - - - -
Realised gain/(loss) - 131 - (53,246)
Change in unrealised gain/(loss)* (1,026,497) (250,528) (64,123) (343,382)
Closing Balance 51,368 4,748 1,136 27,499
First Trust First Trust First Trust
Dow Jones Indxx IPOX®
International Innovative Europe Equity
Internet Transaction & Opportunities
UCITS Process UCITS
ETF UCITS ETF ETF
US$ US$ €
Opening balance - - -
Purchases 12,327 727,770 -
Sales - (74,446) -
Transfers into Level 3 96,861 3,643,030 16,084
Transfers out of Level 3 - - -
Realised gain/(loss) - (48,772) -
Change in unrealised gain/(loss)* (108,294) (4,234,014) (15,958)
Closing Balance 894 13,568 126
As at 31 December 2021
First Trust
Emerging
Markets
AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF
US$
Opening balance 378
Purchases -
Sales -
Transfers into Level 3 -
Transfers out of Level 3 -
Realised gain/(loss) -
Change in unrealised gain/(loss)* 3)
Closing Balance 375

* As of 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the securities detailed on page 87 have been fair valued.
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6. Accrued Expenses

As at 31 December 2022

Management fees
Total accrued expenses

As at 31 December 2022

Management fees
Total accrued expenses

As at 31 December 2022

Management fees
Total accrued expenses

As at 31 December 2022

Management fees
Total accrued expenses
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First Trust First Trust First Trust

US Large Emerging United First Trust
Cap Core Markets Kingdom Eurozone
AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ £ €

52,700 14,584 10,756 54,828

52,700 14,584 10,756 54,828

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust

Indxx US Equity Global Equity Germany
NextG Opportunities Income AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ €

4,822 5,326 8,771 4,210

4,822 5,326 8,771 4,210

First Trust First Trust
First Trust Dow Jones Nasdaq®

US Equity International Clean Edge® First Trust
Income Internet Green Energy FactorFX
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ US$

133,606 2,917 14,232 1,873

133,606 2,917 14,232 1,873
First Trust First Trust
Indxx Low Duration
Innovative First Trust First Trust Global
Transaction & Dow Jones Cloud Government
Process Internet Computing Bond
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ €

62,602 17,287 143,426 6,042

62,602 17,287 143,426 6,042
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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6. Accrued Expenses (continued)

As at 31 December 2022

Management fees
Total accrued expenses

As at 31 December 2022

Management fees
Administration fees
Depositary fees

Audit fees

Professional fees

Other expenses

Total accrued expenses

As at 31 December 2022

Management fees
Administration fees
Depositary fees

Audit fees

Professional fees

Other expenses

Total accrued expenses

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust

Capital Value Line® NYSE Arca Nasdaq
Strength Dividend Index Biotechnology Cybersecurity
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ US$
7,656 13,911 3,598 255,029
7,656 13,911 3,598 255,029
First Trust
First Trust First Trust First Trust Alerian
Strategic Metal Global Capital IPOX® Disruptive
and Energy Strength Europe Equity Technology
Equity ESG Leaders Opportunities Real Estate
UCITS Fund UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF*
US$ US$ € US$
5,770 19,184 917 1,548
1,249 - - -
5,044 - - -
9,377 - - -
1,329 - - -
7,917 - - -
30,686 19,184 917 1,548
First Trust
Nasdaq®
Clean Edge®
Smart Grid
Infrastructure
UCITS ETF* Total
US$ €
754 799,221
- 1,170
- 4726
- 8,786
- 1,246
- 7,418
754 822,567

* Please refer to Note 19 for details of significant events during the financial year.
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6. Accrued Expenses (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

Management fees
Total accrued expenses

As at 31 December 2021

Management fees
Total accrued expenses

As at 31 December 2021

Management fees
Total accrued expenses

As at 31 December 2021

Management fees
Total accrued expenses
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First Trust First Trust First Trust

US Large Emerging United First Trust
Cap Core Markets Kingdom Eurozone
AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ £ €

60,423 18,166 11,554 81,020

60,423 18,166 11,554 81,020
First Trust First Trust First Trust First Trust
Indxx US Equity Global Equity Germany
NextG Opportunities Income AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF! UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ €

6,313 8,658 9,210 6,905

6,313 8,658 9,210 6,905

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust Dow Jones Nasdaq®
US Equity International Clean Edge® First Trust
Income Internet Green Energy FactorFX
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF? UCITS ETF3 UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ US$
54,760 3,769 13,577 4,545
54,760 3,769 13,577 4,545

First Trust

First Trust

Indxx Low Duration
Innovative First Trust First Trust Global
Transaction & Dow Jones Cloud Government
Process Internet Computing Bond
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ €

77,021 20,483 299,522 7,778

77,021 20,483 299,522 7,778
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6. Accrued Expenses (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust

Capital Value Line® NYSE Arca Nasdaq
Strength Dividend Index Biotechnology Cybersecurity
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
US$ US$ US$ US$
Management fees 6,249 9,786 7,026 162,151
Total accrued expenses 6,249 9,786 7,026 162,151
As at 31 December 2021
First Trust First Trust First Trust
Strategic Metal Global Capital IPOX®
and Energy Strength Europe Equity
Equity ESG Leaders Opportunities
UCITS Fund* UCITS ETF® UCITS ETF?¢ Total
US$ US$ € €
Management fees 606 3,144 1,201 783,736
Administration fees 580 - - 510
Depositary fees 3,484 — — 3,064
Directors’ fees 138 - - 121
Audit fees 6,502 - - 5,717
Professional fees 1,666 — — 1,465
Other expenses 1,843 — — 1,621
Total accrued expenses 14,819 3,144 1,201 796,234

! First Trust Japan AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF and its functional currency
changed from Japanese Yen to US Dollar on 1 February 2021.

2 First Trust Switzerland AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF and its
functional currency changed from Swiss Franc to US Dollar on 1 February 2021.

3 First Trust US Small Cap Core AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy UCITS
ETF on 1 February 2021.

4 First Trust Strategic Metal and Energy Equity UCITS Fund was launched on 8 February 2021.

3 First Trust Global Capital Strength ESG Leaders UCITS ETF was launched on 9 March 2021.

® First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF was launched on 21 June 2021.

7. Share Capital

On incorporation the authorised and fully paid share capital of the Company was 2 subscriber shares valued at €2.00 with no par
value and 500,000,000,000 participating shares of no par value. The subscriber shares do not form part of the Company’s NAV
and are disclosed in the financial statements by way of this note only. In the opinion of the Directors, the disclosure reflects the
nature of the Company’s investment business. The subscriber shares do not entitle the holders to any dividends and on winding up
entitle the holders to receive the amount paid up thereon but not otherwise participate in the net assets of the Company. The
Company reserves the right to redeem some or all of the subscriber shares provided that the Company at all times has a minimum
issued share capital to the value of €300,000.

Each of the participating shares of the Company entitles the holder to one vote per share, dividends as the Directors may from
time to time declare and, in the event of a winding up or dissolution of the Company, be entitled, in priority to the holders of the
subscriber shares, firstly to an amount equal to the NAV of the shares of each class or series held at the date of winding up and,
after payment to the holders of the subscriber shares of the nominal amount paid up thereon, to participate in surplus assets of the
Company (if any).

First Trust Global Funds plc Annual Report 103



First Trust Global Funds plc
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

7. Share Capital (continued)

The issued and fully paid redeemable participating share capital is at all times equal to the NAV of the Company. Redeemable
participating shares are redeemable at the shareholders option and are classified as financial liabilities.

The following tables show the movement in share classes for the Funds during the financial year ended 31 December 2022:

As at 31 December 2022

Class A
Opening balance
Shares issued
Shares redeemed
Closing balance

Class B
Opening balance
Shares issued
Shares redeemed
Closing balance

As at 31 December 2022

Class A
Opening balance
Shares issued
Shares redeemed
Closing balance

Class B
Opening balance
Shares issued
Shares redeemed
Closing balance
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First Trust First Trust First Trust

US Large Emerging United First Trust
Cap Core Markets Kingdom Eurozone
AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Shares Shares Shares Shares
875,002 800,002 485,002 3,080,002
168,467 50,000 148,920 398,190
(255,000) (150,000) (125,000) (1,159,091)
788,469 700,002 508,922 2,319,101
675,002 - 315,002 670,002
5,397 - 32,216 9,265
(45,000) - (87,360) (198,234)
635,399 - 259,858 481,033
First Trust First Trust First Trust First Trust
Indxx US Equity Global Equity Germany
NextG Opportunities Income AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Shares Shares Shares Shares
350,002 350,002 45,002 500,002
50,000 100,000 3,890 50,000
(50,000) (150,000) (33,000) (250,000)
350,002 300,002 15,892 300,002
- - 355,002 -
_ - 40,989 -
- - (5,000) -
- - 390,991 -
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7. Share Capital (continued)

As at 31 December 2022

Class A
Opening balance
Shares issued
Shares redeemed
Closing balance

Class B
Opening balance
Shares issued
Shares redeemed
Closing balance

Class B GBP (Hedged)
Opening balance

Shares issued

Shares redeemed
Closing balance

Class C EUR (Hedged)
Opening balance

Shares issued

Shares redeemed
Closing balance

As at 31 December 2022

Class A
Opening balance
Shares issued
Shares redeemed
Closing balance

Class B GBP (Hedged)
Opening balance

Shares issued

Shares redeemed
Closing balance
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First Trust First Trust

First Trust Dow Jones Nasdaq®
US Equity International Clean Edge® First Trust
Income Internet Green Energy FactorFX
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Shares Shares Shares Shares
2,800,002 300,002 1,000,002 115,002
5,599,174 175,000 2,700,000 15,000
(170,584) (150,000) (2,400,000) (115,000)
8,228,592 325,002 1,300,002 15,002
1,000,002 - - -
465,980 - - -
(387,753) - - -
1,078,229 - - -
- - - 25,002
— — — (15,000)
- - - 10,002
- - - 210,002
- - - 15,000
— — — (125,000)
- - - 100,002

First Trust

First Trust

Indxx Low Duration
Innovative First Trust First Trust Global
Transaction & Dow Jones Cloud Government
Process Internet Computing Bond
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Shares Shares Shares Shares
4,700,002 1,450,002 13,700,002 -
1,150,000 1,600,000 3,100,000 -
(1,900,000) (950,000) (6,250,000) -
3,950,002 2,100,002 10,550,002 —

- - - 50,002

- - - (45,000)

- - - 5,002
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7. Share Capital (continued)

As at 31 December 2022

Class C
Opening balance
Shares issued
Shares redeemed
Closing balance

As at 31 December 2022

Class A
Opening balance
Shares issued
Shares redeemed
Closing balance

As at 31 December 2022

Class A
Opening balance
Shares issued
Shares redeemed
Closing balance

Class B
Opening balance
Shares issued
Shares redeemed
Closing balance
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First Trust

First Trust

Indxx Low Duration
Innovative First Trust First Trust Global
Transaction & Dow Jones Cloud Government
Process Internet Computing Bond
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Shares Shares Shares Shares

- - - 1,050,002

- - - 95,000

- - - (300,000)

— — — 845,002

First Trust First Trust First Trust First Trust
Capital Value Line® NYSE Arca Nasdaq
Strength Dividend Index Biotechnology Cybersecurity
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Shares Shares Shares Shares
450,002 700,002 800,002 10,000,002
200,000 350,000 300,000 11,675,000
(100,000) (100,000) (750,000) (3,250,000)
550,002 950,002 350,002 18,425,002
First Trust

First Trust First Trust First Trust Alerian
Strategic Metal Global Capital IPOX® Disruptive
and Energy Strength Europe Equity Technology
Equity ESG Leaders Opportunities Real Estate
UCITS Fund UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF*
Shares Shares Shares Shares
20,232 150,002 100,002 -
254,151 900,000 50,000 100,002
(138,309) (50,000) (50,000) (9,218)
136,074 1,000,002 100,002 90,784

- - - 59,232

- - - 59,232
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7. Share Capital (continued)

As at 31 December 2022

Class A
Opening balance
Shares issued
Shares redeemed
Closing balance

First Trust
Nasdaq
Clean Edge®
Smart Grid®

Infrastructure

UCITS ETF*
Shares

50,002

50,002

* Please refer to Note 19 for details of significant events during the financial year.

The following tables show the movement in share classes for the Funds during the financial year ended 31 December 2021:

As at 31 December 2021

Class A
Opening balance
Shares issued
Shares redeemed
Closing balance

Class B
Opening balance
Shares issued
Shares redeemed
Closing balance
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First Trust First Trust First Trust

US Large Emerging United First Trust
Cap Core Markets Kingdom Eurozone
AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX® AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Shares Shares Shares Shares
875,002 1,250,002 485,002 3,380,002
150,000 - 300,000 300,000
(150,000) (450,000) (300,000) (600,000)
875,002 800,002 485,002 3,080,002
725,002 - 115,002 670,002
- - 200,000 -
(50,000) - - -
675,002 - 315,002 670,002
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7. Share Capital (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

Class A
Opening balance
Shares issued
Shares redeemed
Closing balance

Class B
Opening balance
Shares issued
Shares redeemed
Closing balance

As at 31 December 2021

Class A
Opening balance
Shares issued
Shares redeemed
Closing balance

Class B
Opening balance
Shares issued
Shares redeemed
Closing balance

Class B GBP (Hedged)
Opening balance

Shares issued

Shares redeemed
Closing balance

Class C EUR (Hedged)
Opening balance

Shares issued

Shares redeemed
Closing balance
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First Trust

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust

Indxx US Equity Global Equity Germany
NextG Opportunities Income AlphaDEX®
UCITS ETF! UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Shares Shares Shares Shares
50,002 300,002 45,002 100,002
350,000 200,000 - 400,000
(50,000) (150,000) - -
350,002 350,002 45,002 500,002
_ - 455,002 -

- - (100,000) -

— — 355,002 -

First Trust

First Trust

First Trust Dow Jones Nasdaq®
US Equity International Clean Edge® First Trust
Income Internet Green Energy FactorFX
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF? UCITS ETF3 UCITS ETF
Shares Shares Shares Shares
1,850,002 50,002 50,002 115,002
2,800,000 300,000 1,800,000 -
(1,850,000) (50,000) (850,000) -
2,800,002 300,002 1,000,002 115,002
800,002 - - -
450,000 - — _
(250,000) — _ _
1,000,002 — — —
- - - 35,002
- - - (10,000)
- - - 25,002
- - - 250,002
- - - 10,000
- - - (50,000)
- - - 210,002
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7. Share Capital (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

Class A
Opening balance
Shares issued
Shares redeemed
Closing balance

Class B GBP (Hedged)
Opening balance

Shares issued

Shares redeemed
Closing balance

Class C
Opening balance
Shares issued
Shares redeemed
Closing balance

As at 31 December 2021

Class A
Opening balance
Shares issued
Shares redeemed
Closing balance
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First Trust

First Trust

Indxx Low Duration
Innovative First Trust First Trust Global
Transaction & Dow Jones Cloud Government
Process Internet Computing Bond
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Shares Shares Shares Shares
2,000,002 1,050,002 13,100,002 -
4,750,000 800,000 4,900,000 -
(2,050,000) (400,000) (4,300,000) -
4,700,002 1,450,002 13,700,002 -

- - - 100,002

— — — (50,000)

— — — 50,002

- - - 1,300,002

- - - 50,000

— — — (300,000)

— — — 1,050,002

First Trust First Trust First Trust First Trust
Capital Value Line® NYSE Arca Nasdaq
Strength Dividend Index Biotechnology Cybersecurity
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Shares Shares Shares Shares
300,002 400,002 550,002 2,200,002
450,000 300,000 850,000 8,900,000
(300,000) — (600,000) (1,100,000)
450,002 700,002 800,002 10,000,002
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7. Share Capital (continued)

As at 31 December 2021
First Trust First Trust First Trust
Strategic Metal Global Capital IPOX®
and Energy Strength Europe Equity
Equity ESG Leaders Opportunities
UCITS Fund* UCITS ETF? UCITS ETF?¢
Shares Shares Shares
Class A
Opening balance - - -
Shares issued 33,118 1,100,002 100,002
Shares redeemed (12,886) (950,000) —
Closing balance 20,232 150,002 100,002

! First Trust Japan AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF and its functional currency
changed from Japanese Yen to US Dollar on 1 February 2021.

2 First Trust Switzerland AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF and its
functional currency changed from Swiss Franc to US Dollar on 1 February 2021.

3 First Trust US Small Cap Core AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy UCITS
ETF on 1 February 2021.

4 First Trust Strategic Metal and Energy Equity UCITS Fund was launched on 8 February 2021.

5 First Trust Global Capital Strength ESG Leaders UCITS ETF was launched on 9 March 2021.

® First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF was launched on 21 June 2021.

8. Efficient Portfolio Management

The Company may, on behalf of the Funds and subject to the conditions and within the limits laid down by the Central Bank, employ
techniques and instruments relating to transferable securities for efficient portfolio management purposes as described in the prospectus.

Transactions for the purposes of efficient portfolio management may be undertaken with a view to achieving a reduction in risk, a
reduction in costs or an increase in capital or income returns to a Fund and may not be speculative in nature. These techniques and
instruments may include investments in currency related transactions such as forward currency contracts, options on currencies, futures
and swap agreements in order to hedge against certain currency risks.

The Central Bank requires that all UCITS that use financial derivative instruments employ a risk management process which enables it
to accurately manage, measure and monitor the various risks associated with financial derivative instruments. This is documented in the
Company’s risk management process which is a document filed with the Central Bank (the “Risk Management Process”).

The revenue arising from the efficient portfolio management techniques consists of revenues from stock lending, repurchase and reverse
repurchase arrangement interest income (disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income) and realised gains/losses on forward
foreign currency contracts, options on currencies, futures, contracts for differences and swap agreements (disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income). These revenues are subject to transaction costs which are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial liability.

Such techniques and instruments will be utilised in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. New techniques and
instruments may be developed which may be suitable for use by the Company and the Company (subject as aforesaid) may employ such
techniques. Please refer to the Schedule of Investments for details of the open forward currency and futures contracts held as at 31
December 2022.
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9. Significant Agreements and Operating Expenses
A. The Administrator

The Manager (as defined below) has appointed BNY Mellon Fund Services (Ireland) Designated Activity Company (the
“Administrator”) to act as administrator and transfer agent for the Strategic UCITS Fund with responsibility for performing the day to
day administration of the Company, including the calculation of the NAV and the NAV per share of the Fund. The Company will pay to
the Administrator an annual fee up to 0.065% of the average NAV of the Strategic UCITS Fund; subject to a minimum fee of up to
US$75,000 per annum (with VAT thereon, if applicable). Such fees shall accrue daily and be paid monthly in arrears. Minimum
Administrator fees have been waived for three financial years from the launch date of the Fund.

The Manager (as defined below) of the US Large Cap ETF, Emerging Markets ETF, UK ETF, Eurozone ETF, Indxx NextG ETF, US
Equity Opportunities ETF, Global ETF, Germany ETF, US Equity ETF, International Internet ETF, Clean Edge ETF, FactorFX ETF,
Indxx ETF, Dow Jones ETF, Cloud Computing ETF, Low Duration ETF, Capital Strength ETF, Value Line Dividend ETF,
Biotechnology ETF, Cybersecurity ETF, ESG Leaders ETF, IPOX Europe ETF, Alerian DTRE ETF and Smart Grid Infrastructure ETF
discharges the fees of the Administrator in respect of the relevant Fund. The Manager does not discharge the fees of the Administrator in
respect of the Strategic UCITS Fund. These fees are discharged by the Fund.

The Company shall pay fixed transaction fees to the Administrator in respect of all Funds which shall be charged at normal commercial
rates. In addition, the Administrator shall be entitled to be reimbursed its reasonable vouched out-of-pocket expenses.

B. The Manager

First Trust Global Portfolios Management Limited (the “Manager”) has been appointed as Manager of the Company pursuant to the
Management Agreement. Under the terms of the Management Agreement, the Manager has responsibility for the management and
administration of the Company affairs, subject to the overall supervision and control of the Directors. The Management Agreement
between the Company and the Manager became effective on the 25 September 2019.

The Manager was incorporated as a private company limited by shares in Ireland under the Companies Act, under registration number
637071 on 6 November 2018 and is authorised by the Central Bank to act as a UCITS management company pursuant to the UCITS
Regulations. The Manager’s main business is the provision of fund management services to UCITS. The Manager is a wholly owned
subsidiary of First Trust Global Enterprises L.P. which is a limited partnership established under the laws of the State of Illinois in the
United States of America.

The Manager is managed and supervised by its Board. The Board oversees the general management and conduct of all aspects of the
Company’s business, including its compliance with its obligations under the UCITS Regulations, the Central Bank Regulations and the
Central Bank’s Fund Management Company Guidance.

With the exceptions of Kathleen Brown and Bronwyn Wright, the Directors of the Manager are also the Directors of the Company.
Under the Management Agreement, the Company will pay to the Manager in respect of each Fund, a management fee in the amount
specified in the table overleaf, which shall be calculated and accrue daily and be payable monthly in arrears.

For the ETF Funds, the Manager is responsible for discharging all operational expenses, including but not limited to, fees and expenses
of the Investment Manager, Depositary, Administrator, Distributor, Registrar and Directors, the costs of maintaining the Funds and any
registration of the Funds with any governmental or regulatory authority; preparation, printing and posting of prospectuses, sales literature
and reports to shareholders, regulatory fees of the Central Bank or stock exchange and other governmental agencies; marketing expenses;
insurance premiums; fees and expenses for legal, audit and other services; paying for sub-licensing fees related to each Fund’s Index
(where relevant) and any distribution fees or expenses but excluding interest, taxes, brokerage commissions and other expenses
connected with execution of portfolio transactions, and extraordinary expenses.
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9. Significant Agreements and Operating Expenses (continued)

B. The Manager (continued)

First Trust US Large Cap Core AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

Management Fee as a Percentage of NAV of each Class

Class A 0.75%
Class B 0.75%
First Trust Emerging Markets AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

Class A 0.80%
First Trust United Kingdom AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

Class A 0.75%
Class B 0.75%
First Trust Eurozone AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

Class A 0.75%
Class B 0.75%
First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF

Class A 0.70%
First Trust US Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF

Class A 0.65%
First Trust Global Equity Income UCITS ETF

Class A 0.70%
Class B 0.70%
First Trust Germany AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

Class A 0.75%
First Trust US Equity Income UCITS ETF

Class A 0.65%
Class B 0.65%
First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF

Class A 0.65%
First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy UCITS ETF

Class A 0.60%
First Trust FactorFX UCITS ETF

Class A 0.75%
Class B GBP (Hedged) 0.75%
Class C EUR (Hedged) 0.75%
First Trust Indxx Innovative Transaction & Process UCITS

ETF

Class A 0.65%
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B. The Manager (continued)

First Trust Dow Jones Internet UCITS ETF

Management Fee as a Percentage of NAV of each Class

Class A 0.55%
First Cloud Computing UCITS ETF

Class A 0.60%
First Trust Low Duration Global Government Bond UCITS

ETF

Class B GBP (Hedged) 0.55%
Class C 0.55%
First Trust Capital Strength UCITS ETF

Class A 0.60%
First Trust Value Line® Dividend Index UCITS ETF

Class A 0.70%
First Trust NYSE Arca Biotechnology UCITS ETF

Class A 0.60%
First Trust Nasdaq Cybersecurity UCITS ETF

Class A 0.60%
First Trust Strategic Metal and Energy Equity UCITS Fund

Class A 0.60%
First Trust Global Capital Strength ESG Leaders UCITS ETF

Class A 0.75%
First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF

Class A 0.65%
First Trust Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate

UCITS ETF!

Class A 0.60%
Class B 0.60%
First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Smart Grid Infrastructure

UCITS ETF?

Class A 0.63%*

! First Trust Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate UCITS ETF was launched on 31 March 2022.
2 First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Smart Grid Infrastructure UCITS ETF was launched on 21 April 2022.

*Effective 21 October 2022, the fee rate changed from 0.70% to 0.63%.

The Manager will receive from US Large Cap ETF, Emerging Markets ETF, UK ETF, Eurozone ETF, Indxx NextG ETF, US Equity
Opportunities ETF, Global ETF, Germany ETF, US Equity ETF, International Internet ETF, Clean Edge ETF, FactorFX ETF, Indxx
ETF, Dow Jones ETF, Cloud Computing ETF, Low Duration ETF, Capital Strength ETF, Value Line Dividend ETF, Biotechnology
ETF, Cybersecurity ETF, Strategic UCITS Fund, ESG Leaders ETF, IPOX Europe ETF, Alerian DTRE ETF and Smart Grid
Infrastructure ETF an annual management fee as disclosed in the table above based on each Fund’s average daily net assets.
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9. Significant Agreements and Operating Expenses (continued)

B. The Manager (continued)

With respect to the US Large Cap ETF, UK ETF, Eurozone ETF, Global ETF, Germany ETF, US Equity ETF and Low Duration ETF
there is a further 0.10% fee waiver from the annual management fees which shall expire on 18 May 2023.

In the event that a Fund’s operational, establishment and/or registration expenses combined exceed the stated management fees, the
Manager shall discharge any excess out of its own assets.

C. The Investment Manager

The Manager has appointed First Trust Advisors L.P. (the “Investment Manager”) to act as Investment Manager for the Funds. The
Investment Manager is a limited partnership with one limited partner, Grace Partners of DuPage L.P., and one general partner, The
Charger Corporation.

Under the investment management agreement, the Manager will pay to the relevant Investment Manager an investment management fee,
which shall be calculated and accrue daily and be payable monthly in arrears. For the financial years ended 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021, no fees were paid by the Manager to the Investment Manager.

In addition, the Investment Manager shall be entitled to be reimbursed for its reasonable vouched out-of-pocket expenses.

Out of the investment management fee, the respective Investment Manager/Sub-Investment Manager shall discharge the fees and
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses of First Trust Global Portfolios Limited as distributor of the Company.

D. The Sub-Investment Manager

The Manager has appointed First Trust Global Portfolios Limited as a Sub-Investment Manager of the FactorFX ETF and the Low
Duration ETF.

The Sub-Investment Manager shall be liable to either the FactorFX ETF or the Low Duration ETF and the Investment Manager for any
losses, liabilities, actions, proceedings, claims, costs and expenses (“Losses”) sustained by reason of its negligence, fraud, bad faith,
reckless disregard or wilful default in respect of its obligations and duties under the sub-investment management agreements. The
Investment Manager shall pay the fees and expenses of the Sub-Investment Manager out of its own fees. For the financial years ended 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021, no fees were paid by the Investment Manager to the Sub-Investment Manager.

First Trust Global Enterprises L.P., an affiliate of First Trust, has a 97% ownership interest in First Trust Global Portfolios Limited the
Sub-Investment Manager of the FactorFX ETF and the Low Duration ETF.

E. Performance Fees
No performance fees are payable in respect of the Funds.
F. The Depositary

The Manager has appointed The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Dublin Branch (the “Depositary”) to act as the Depositary to the
Company.

The Depositary receives a fiduciary fee for its services in respect of the Strategic UCITS Fund at a rate of up to 0.025% per annum of the
average NAV of the Fund, subject to a minimum fee of up to US$17,500 per Fund per annum (plus VAT, if any). The fee shall accrue
daily and be calculated and payable monthly in arrears. Minimum Depositary fees have been waived for three financial years from the
launch date.

The Depositary shall also be entitled to receive transaction charges and sub-custodian fees which shall be charged at normal commercial
rates. The Depositary is also entitled to reimbursement of its reasonable vouched out-of-pocket expenses.

The Manager will discharge the fees of the Depositary in respect of the US Large Cap ETF, Emerging Markets ETF, UK ETF, Eurozone
ETF, Indxx NextG ETF, US Equity Opportunities ETF, Global ETF, Germany ETF, US Equity ETF, International Internet ETF, Clean
Edge ETF, FactorFX ETF, Indxx ETF, Dow Jones ETF, Cloud Computing ETF, Low Duration ETF, Capital Strength ETF, Value Line
Dividend ETF, Biotechnology ETF, Cybersecurity ETF, ESG Leaders ETF, IPOX Europe ETF, Alerian DTRE ETF and Smart Grid
Infrastructure ETF.

The Manager does not discharge the fees of the Depositary in respect of the Strategic UCITS Fund. These fees are discharged by the
Fund.
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9. Significant Agreements and Operating Expenses (continued)

G. Expense Cap

The Manager has voluntarily undertaken to limit the aggregate annual operating expenses of the Strategic UCITS Fund for the financial
period to: 0.75% of the average daily NAV of the Class A share class, excluding any performance fee, interest, taxes, brokerage fees and
extraordinary expenses. The expenses above the cap as set out in the Statement of Comprehensive Income represent the expenses that the

Manager has undertaken to discharge in order to meet the limits set out above. The expense cap shall remain in effect at least until 18
May 2023.

H. Audit Fees

The following table sets out the fees of the independent auditors for the financial years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021°
Statutory Audit fees €162,500 (VAT excl) €179,000 (VAT excl)
Tax advisory fees €46,750 (VAT excl) €Nil

The above figures represent the actual audit fees charged during the financial year. The audit fees reflected in the financial statements
relate to amounts booked as an expense to the Fund. As per Note 9B, audit fees are paid by the Manager and the financial statements
reflect the proportion that is paid by the Fund.

There were no other assurance services or other non-audit services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditors of the Company
during the financial year.

*Relates to fee paid to Deloitte Ireland LLP.

I. Other Fees

The Manager will discharge the fees and expenses of the registrar of the Funds. In addition to the fees and expenses the Funds incur
directly, fees will also be payable by any investment funds in which the Funds invest.

10. Related Party and Connected Persons Transactions

Director Relationships

Mr. James A. Bowen is the Chief Executive Officer of First Trust Portfolios L.P. and its affiliate, First Trust Advisors L.P., which is the
Investment Manager of the Company.

Mr. Andy Roggensack is President of First Trust Portfolios L.P. and its affiliate, First Trust Advisors L.P., which is the Investment
Manager of the Company.

Mr. David G. McGarel is Chief Investment Officer and Chief Operating Officer of First Trust Portfolios L.P. and its affiliate, First Trust
Advisors L.P., which is the Investment Manager of the Company.

Ms. Bronwyn Wright, Mr. Michael Boyce and Mr. Tom Coghlan are independent non-executive Directors to the Company.

The Independent Directors shall be entitled to be paid a fee from the assets of the Company by way of remuneration for their services at
a rate to be determined from time to time by the Directors and notified to the shareholders from time to time by the Directors, provided
that the aggregate amount of each Directors’ remuneration in any one year shall not exceed €20,000 or other such maximum amount as
may be determined by the Directors, and disclosed in the prospectuses or the Company’s annual or interim financial statements. The
Directors will be entitled to be reimbursed by the Company for all reasonable disbursements and out-of-pocket expenses incurred by
them. During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, total Directors’ fees of €60,000 (31 December 2021: €60,000) were paid by
the Investment Manager for the Company to the Independent Directors. The Directors who held office at 31 December 2022 and their
connected persons and the Company Secretary had no interest in the shares of the Company or any of its Funds’ at that date or at 1
January 2022 or at any time during the Reporting Period. Additionally, the Directors had no transactions or interest in any transactions or
any of the Funds of the Company. Mr. James Bowen, Mr. Andy Roggensack and Mr. David G. McGarel are employees of the
Investment Manager and do not receive a fee for their services as Directors.
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10. Related Party and Connected Persons Transactions (continued)

Director Relationships (continued)

Fees paid to First Trust Global Portfolios Management Limited in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2022 were
€9,309,632 (31 December 2021: €8,156,895) of which €799,221 was outstanding as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021:
€783,736).

11. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks

A. General

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks — market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk),
credit/counterparty risk, and liquidity risk, which are discussed in this note.

The Company has delegated responsibility for the investment and re-investment of the Company’s assets to the Investment Manager
pursuant to the investment management agreement. First Trust Advisers L.P. appointed First Trust Global Portfolios Limited as Sub-
Investment Manager (the “Sub-Investment Manager”) in respect of certain Funds. While the Directors and the Manager are responsible
for monitoring the risks associated with the Company and its Funds including the overall supervision of investment performance risk
monitoring, the day to day management of investment risk has been delegated to the Investment Manager/Sub-Investment Manager.

The Investment Manager/Sub-Investment Manager will be responsible to the Company, and ultimately the Directors, in regard to the
investment management of the assets of the Company.

B. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of instruments held will fluctuate due to changes in market prices resulting from price risk, currency
risk and interest rate risk.

(i) Price Risk

Price risk arises when the fair value or future cash flows of an investment fluctuates because of changes in market prices, other than
those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument, its issuer, or factors affecting similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The investments of the Funds at 31 December 2022 are classified by category of investment. As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021 the overall market exposures were as follows:

First Trust US Large Cap Core AlphaDEX® UCITS As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

ETF December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

US$ % of net assets US$ % of net assets

Common Stock 88,056,971 99.80 110,149,502 99.91

Total Investments 88,056,971 99.80 110,149,502 99.91
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11. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

B. Market Risk (continued)

(i) Price Risk (continued)

First Trust Emerging Markets AlphaDEX® UCITS
ETF

Common Stock
Total Investments

First Trust United Kingdom AlphaDEX® UCITS
ETF

Common Stock
Total Investments

First Trust Eurozone AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

Common Stock
Total Investments

First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF!

Common Stock
Total Investments

First Trust US Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF

Common Stock
Total Investments

First Trust Global Equity Income UCITS ETF

Common Stock
Total Investments

First Trust Germany AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

Common Stock
Total Investments
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As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

US$ % of net assets US$ % of net assets

20,203,527 99.17 26,895,465 98.97

20,203,527 99.17 26,895,465 98.97

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

£ Y% of net assets £ Y% of net assets

17,532,877 99.70 21,217,113 99.44

17,532,877 99.70 21,217,113 99.44

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

€ % of net assets € % of net assets

92,467,888 99.82 145,592,915 99.92

92,467,888 99.82 145,592,915 99.92

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

US$ % of net assets US$ % of net assets

7,430,119 99.24 9,778,030 98.77

7,430,119 99.24 9,778,030 98.77

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

US$ % of net assets US$ % of net assets

8,774,877 99.80 15,859,048 99.78

8,774,877 99.80 15,859,048 99.78

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

US$ % of net assets US$ % of net assets

16,022,176 99.31 18,258,392 99.45

16,022,176 99.31 18,258,392 99.45

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

€ % of net assets € % of net assets

6,590,626 99.57 15,386,328 100.02

6,590,626 99.57 15,386,328 100.02
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B. Market Risk (continued)

(i) Price Risk (continued)

First Trust US Equity Income UCITS ETF

Common Stock
Total Investments

First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS
ETF?

Common Stock
Total Investments

First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy
UCITS ETF?

Common Stock
Total Investments

First Trust FactorFX UCITS ETF

Treasury Notes/Bonds
Total Investments

First Trust Indxx Innovative Transaction & Process
UCITS ETF

Common Stock
Total Investments

First Trust Dow Jones Internet UCITS ETF

Common Stock
Total Investments

First Trust Cloud Computing UCITS ETF

Common Stock
Total Investments
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As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

US$ % of net assets US$ % of net assets

267,717,759 99.91 121,454,462 99.68

267,717,759 99.91 121,454,462 99.68

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

US$ % of net assets US$ % of net assets

4,604,314 98.95 6,982,914 99.91

4,604,314 98.95 6,982,914 99.91

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

US$ % of net assets US$ % of net assets

23,614,330 99.94 26,205,716 99.98

23,614,330 99.94 26,205,716 99.98

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

US$ % of net assets US$ % of net assets

1,933,820 82.00 6,750,546 94.35

1,933,820 82.00 6,750,546 94.35

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

US$ % of net assets US$ % of net assets

103,458,753 99.54 151,027,955 99.44

103,458,753 99.54 151,027,955 99.44

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

US$ % of net assets US$ % of net assets

35,838,074 100.03 45,428,289 100.00

35,838,074 100.03 45,428,289 100.00

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

US$ % of net assets US$ % of net assets

254,897,279 99.65 600,842,186 100.05

254,897,279 99.65 600,842,186 100.05
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B. Market Risk (continued)
(i) Price Risk (continued)

First Trust Low Duration Global Government Bond
UCITS ETF

Treasury Notes/Bonds
Total Investments

First Trust Capital Strength UCITS ETF

Common Stock
Total Investments

First Trust Value Line® Dividend Index UCITS ETF

Common Stock
Total Investments

First Trust NYSE Arca Biotechnology UCITS ETF

Common Stock
Total Investments

First Trust Nasdaq Cybersecurity UCITS ETF

Common Stock
Total Investments

First Trust Strategic Metal and Energy Equity
UCITS Fund*

Common Stock
Total Investments

First Trust Global Capital Strength ESG Leaders
UCITS ETF?

Common Stock
Total Investments
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As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

€ % of net assets € % of net assets

13,384,375 94.28 19,303,868 95.11

13,384,375 94.28 19,303,868 95.11

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

US$ % of net assets US$ % of net assets

13,856,992 99.75 12,669,673 99.74

13,856,992 99.75 12,669,673 99.74

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

US$ % of net assets US$ % of net assets

21,697,067 99.69 16,933,372 99.59

21,697,067 99.69 16,933,372 99.59

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

US$ % of net assets US$ % of net assets

6,602,203 100.01 15,826,837 99.96

6,602,203 100.01 15,826,837 99.96

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

US$ % of net assets US$ % of net assets

458,747,552 99.85 339,720,698 99.89

458,747,552 99.85 339,720,698 99.89

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

US$ % of net assets US$ % of net assets

10,394,861 96.51 1,210,011 99.16

10,394,861 96.51 1,210,011 99.16

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

US$ % of net assets US$ % of net assets

31,660,867 99.49 5,556,937 99.95

31,660,867 99.49 5,556,937 99.95
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B. Market Risk (continued)
(i) Price Risk (continued)

First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities

UCITS ETF*¢

Common Stock

Total Investments

First Trust Alerian Disruptive Technology Real
Estate UCITS ETF*

Common Stock

Total Investments

First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Smart Grid
Infrastructure UCITS ETF*

Common Stock

Total Investments

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

€ % of net assets € % of net assets

1,518,193 99.54 2,213,921 99.70

1,518,193 99.54 2,213,921 99.70

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

US$ % of net assets US$ % of net assets

2,775,529 99.34 - -

2,775,529 99.34 - -

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2022 December 2021 December 2021
Fair Value Fair Value

US$ % of net assets US$ % of net assets

1,463,444 99.77 - -

1,463,444 99.77 - -

'First Trust Japan AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF and its functional currency

changed from Japanese Yen to US Dollar on 1 February 2021.

2 First Trust Switzerland AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF and its
functional currency changed from Swiss Franc to US Dollar on 1 February 2021.
3 First Trust US Small Cap Core AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy UCITS

ETF on 1 February 2021.

4 First Trust Strategic Metal and Energy Equity UCITS Fund was launched on 8 February 2021.
5 First Trust Global Capital Strength ESG Leaders UCITS ETF was launched on 9 March 2021.
8 First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF was launched on 21 June 2021.

" Please refer to Note 19 for details of significant events during the financial year.

Management considers 10% to be a reasonable possible change in market price.

The following table sets forth a sensitivity analysis showing gains and losses that are associated with a fluctuation in market prices of

10% as at 31 December 2022:

Fund

First Trust US Large Cap Core AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF
First Trust Emerging Markets AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF
First Trust United Kingdom AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF
First Trust Eurozone AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF
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Investments

Common Stock

Common Stock

Common Stock

Common Stock

Common Stock

Fair Value

US$88,056,971
US$20,203,527
£17,532,877
€92,467,888

US$7,430,119

Change in
rate

+/-10%
+/-10%
+/-10%
+/-10%

+/-10%

Effect on NAV

+/- 8,805,697

+/- 2,020,353

+/- 1,753,288

+/- 9,246,789

+/- 743,012
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11. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

B. Market Risk (continued)

(i) Price Risk (continued)

Fund Investments

First Trust US Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF Common Stock

First Trust Global Equity Income UCITS ETF Common Stock

First Trust Germany AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF Common Stock

First Trust US Equity Income UCITS ETF Common Stock

First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF Common Stock

First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy UCITS

ETF Common Stock

First Trust Indxx Innovative Transaction & Process UCITS

ETF Common Stock

First Trust Dow Jones Internet UCITS ETF Common Stock

First Trust Cloud Computing UCITS ETF Common Stock

First Trust Capital Strength UCITS ETF Common Stock

First Trust Value Line® Dividend Index UCITS ETF Common Stock

First Trust NYSE Arca Biotechnology UCITS ETF Common Stock

First Trust Nasdaq Cybersecurity UCITS ETF Common Stock

First Trust Strategic Metal and Energy Equity UCITS Fund Common Stock

First Trust Global Capital Strength ESG Leaders UCITS

ETF Common Stock

First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS

ETF Common Stock

First Trust Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate

UCITS ETF* Common Stock

First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Smart Grid Infrastructure

UCITS ETF* Common Stock

* Please refer to Note 19 for details of significant events during the financial year.
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Fair Value

US$8,774,877
US$16,022,176
€6,590,626
US$267,717,759

US$4,604,314

US$23,614,330

US$103,458,753
US$35,838,074
US$254,897,279
US$13,856,992
US$21,697,067
US$6,602,203
US$458,747,552

US$10,394,861

US$31,660,867

€1,518,193

US$2,775,529

US$1,463,444

Change in
rate

+/-10%
+/-10%
+/-10%
+/-10%

+/-10%

+/-10%

+/-10%
+/-10%
+/-10%
+/-10%
+/-10%
+/-10%
+/-10%

+/-10%

+/-10%

+/-10%

+/-10%

+/-10%

Effect on NAV

+/- 877,488

+/- 1,602,218

+/- 659,063

+/- 26,771,776

+/- 460,431

+/- 2,361,433

+/- 10,345,875

+/- 3,583,807

+/- 25,489,728

+/- 1,385,699

+/- 2,169,707

+/- 660,220

+/- 45,874,755

+/- 1,039,486

+/- 3,166,087

+/- 151,819

+/- 277,553

+- 146,344



First Trust Global Funds plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

11. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

B. Market Risk (continued)

(i) Price Risk (continued)

The following table sets forth a sensitivity analysis showing gains and losses that are associated with a fluctuation in market prices of 5%

as at 31 December 2021:

Fund Investments

First Trust US Large Cap Core AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF  Common Stock

First Trust Emerging Markets AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF Common Stock

First Trust United Kingdom AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF Common Stock

First Trust Eurozone AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF Common Stock

First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF Common Stock

First Trust US Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF Common Stock

First Trust Global Equity Income UCITS ETF Common Stock

First Trust Germany AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF Common Stock

First Trust US Equity Income UCITS ETF Common Stock

First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF Common Stock

First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Green Energy UCITS

ETF Common Stock

First Trust Indxx Innovative Transaction & Process UCITS

ETF Common Stock

First Trust Dow Jones Internet UCITS ETF Common Stock
First Trust Cloud Computing UCITS ETF Common Stock
First Trust Capital Strength UCITS ETF Common Stock
First Trust Value Line® Dividend Index UCITS ETF Common Stock
First Trust NYSE Arca Biotechnology UCITS ETF Common Stock
First Trust Nasdaq Cybersecurity UCITS ETF Common Stock
First Trust Strategic Metal and Energy Equity UCITS Fund Common Stock

First Trust Global Capital Strength ESG Leaders UCITS

ETF Common Stock
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Fair Value

US$110,149,502

US$26,895,465
£21,217,113
€145,592,915
US$9,778,030
US$15,859,048
US$18,258,392

€15,386,328

US$121,454,462

US$6,982,914

US$26,205,716

US$151,027,955

US$45,428,289

US$600,842,186

US$12,669,673
US$16,933,372

US$15,826,837

US$339,720,698

US$1,210,011

US$5,556,937

Change in
rate

+/-5%
+/-5%
+/-5%
+/-5%
+/-5%
+/-5%
+/-5%
+/-5%
+/-5%

+/-5%

+/-5%

+/-5%
+/-5%
+/-5%
+/-5%
+/-5%
+/-5%
+/-5%

+/-5%

+/-5%

Effect on NAV

+/- 5,507,475

+/- 1,344,773

+/- 1,060,856

+/- 7,279,646

+/- 488,902

+/- 792,952

+/- 912,920

+/- 769,316

+/- 6,072,723

+/- 349,146

+/- 1,310,286

+/- 7,551,398

+/-2,271,414

+/- 30,042,109

+/- 633,484

+/- 846,669

+/- 791,342

+/- 16,986,035

+/- 60,501

+/- 277,847



First Trust Global Funds plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

11. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

B. Market Risk (continued)

(i) Price Risk (continued)

Change in
Fund Investments Fair Value rate Effect on NAV
First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF Common Stock €2,213,921 +/-5% +/- 110,696

(ii) Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a Fund’s net assets will fluctuate due to changes in foreign currency rates. Consequently, the
assets of a Fund as measured in its functional currency relative to other currencies may fluctuate in a manner which may have an adverse
effect on the value of the Fund’s assets denominated in currencies other than its base currency.

Monetary assets, such as cash, are assets which hold a right to receive a fixed or determinable amount of currency. Non-monetary assets,
such as transferable securities, are assets in which the right to receive a fixed or determinable amount of currency is absent.

The tables below and overleaf summarise the Funds’ assets and liabilities, monetary and non-monetary, which are denominated in a
currency other than its functional currency as at 31 December 2022:

Monetary Assets Non-Monetary Monetary and Forward FX

Assets non-monetary Contracts

liabilities Total
First Trust Emerging Markets AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF
As at 31 December 2022
Currency
Brazilian Real 77,479 2,404,939 - - 2,482,418
Chilean Peso - 836,544 - - 836,544
Egyptian Pound 216 - - - 216
Hong Kong Dollar 2,680 4,691,677 - - 4,694,357
Hungarian Forint - 341,204 - - 341,204
Indian Rupee 103 1,649,083 - - 1,649,186
Indonesian Rupiah — 871,727 — — 871,727
Malaysian Ringgit 1 48,751 - - 48,752
Mexican Peso — 448,678 (50) — 448,628
Philippine Peso 2 122,826 — — 122,828
Polish Zloty 397 577,187 - - 577,584
Russian Ruble 29,942 17,091 (34,727) - 12,306
South African Rand 58 1,009,030 - - 1,009,088
Taiwan Dollar - 2,235,885 - - 2,235,885
Thailand Baht - 974,901 - - 974,901
Turkish Lira - 3,670,880 - - 3,670,880
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First Trust Global Funds plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

11. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

B. Market Risk (continued)

(ii) Currency Risk (continued)
Monetary Assets

First Trust United Kingdom AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF
As at 31 December 2022

Currency
Euro 7,652
US Dollar 27

First Trust Eurozone AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF
As at 31 December 2022

Currency

US Dollar 483

First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF
As at 31 December 2022

Currency

Australian Dollar -

Canadian Dollar 1,215
Euro 1,406
Hong Kong Dollar -

Indian Rupee -
Indonesian Rupiah -
Japanese Yen 56
Korean Won 3,850
Malaysian Ringgit -
Mexican Peso -
New Zealand Dollar -
Norwegian Krone -
Philippine Peso -
Pound Sterling 1,965
Qatar Riyal -
Singapore Dollar -
South African Rand -
Swedish Krona -
Swiss Franc -
Taiwan Dollar -
Thailand Baht -
UAE Diram -
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Non-Monetary
Assets

41,513
120,615
664,604
389,851
317,285

41,636
829,341
332,081

42,926

41,699

42,278

41,360

41,231
135,289

42,358

40,456

79,740
164,144

41,615
644,472

43,634

39,774

Monetary and
non-monetary
liabilities

Forward FX
Contracts

Total

7,652
27

483

41,513
121,830
666,010
389,851
317,285

41,636
829,397
335,931

42,926

41,699

42,278

41,360

41,231
137,254

42,358

40,456

79,740
164,144

41,615
644,472

43,634

39,774



First Trust Global Funds plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

11. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

B. Market Risk (continued)

(ii) Currency Risk (continued)

Monetary Assets Non-Monetary Monetary and
Assets non-monetary

liabilities
First Trust Global Equity Income UCITS ETF
As at 31 December 2022
Currency
Australian Dollar 853 381,208 -
Brazilian Real 19,294 820,424 -
Canadian Dollar 2,192 623,287 —
Chilean Peso 16,660 100,808 -
Chinese Yuan Renminbi 1,589 — -
Czech Koruna - 17,522 -
Danish Krone - 473,003 -
Euro 59,690 3,553,472 -
Hong Kong Dollar 23 2,139,863 -
Hungarian Forint - 49,740 -
Indian Rupee 6,298 153,867 -
Indonesian Rupiah - 196,906 -
Israeli Shekel — 81,907 (3,528)
Japanese Yen 1,846 2,049,560 —
Korean Won 34,788 386,795 —
Malaysian Ringgit - 25,732 -
Mexican Peso - 95,781 -
Norwegian Krone - 94,928 -
Polish Zloty - 49,626 -
Pound Sterling 3,807 881,022 -
Russian Ruble 1,725 6,533 (1,725)
Singapore Dollar - 26,688 -
South African Rand 27,120 156,438 (6,601)
Swedish Krona 63 63,966 -
Swiss Franc - 565,426 -
Taiwan Dollar - 979,055 -
Thailand Baht - 32,691 -
Turkish Lira - 23,873 -
First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF
As at 31 December 2022
Currency
Australian Dollar - 134,905 -
Canadian Dollar - 240,453 -
Euro - 838,702 (151)
Hong Kong Dollar - 1,118,241 -
Japanese Yen 209 184,317 -
Korean Won 345 202,205 -
Pound Sterling - 125,759 -
South African Rand — 184,084 —
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Forward FX
Contracts

3,528

(24,335)

Total

382,061
833,437
624,772
117,468
1,589
17,522
473,003
3,613,162
2,139,886
49,740
160,165
196,906
81,907
2,051,406
397,248
25,732
95,781
94,928
49,626
884,829
6,533
26,688
156,438
64,029
565,426
979,055
32,691
23,873

134,905
240,453
838,551
1,118,241
184,526
202,550
125,759
184,084



First Trust Global Funds plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

11. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

B. Market Risk (continued)

(ii) Currency Risk (continued)

First Trust FactorFX UCITS ETF
As at 31 December 2022

Currency

Australian Dollar
Brazilian Real
Canadian Dollar
Chilean Peso
Colombian Peso
Euro

Hungarian Forint
Indian Rupee
Indonesian Rupiah
Japanese Yen
Mexican Peso
New Zealand Dollar
Norwegian Krone
Peruvian New Sol
Philippine Peso
Polish Zloty
Pound Sterling
Singapore Dollar
South African Rand
Swedish Krona
Swiss Franc
Thailand Baht
Turkish Lira

Monetary Assets

Non-Monetary
Assets

44,369

158,179

53,381

190,171
48,524

131,117
375,763

First Trust Indxx Innovative Transaction & Process UCITS ETF

As at 31 December 2022
Currency

Australian Dollar
Canadian Dollar
Danish Krone
Euro

Hong Kong Dollar
Indian Rupee
Japanese Yen
Korean Won
Pound Sterling
Russian Ruble
Singapore Dollar
South African Rand
Swedish Krona
Swiss Franc

UAE Diram
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2,805,662
812,035
1,329,339
20,420,033
9,959,523
2,988,439
1,381,485
2,340,123
2,446,264
13,415
900,340

1,037,556
3,114,478
2,033,932

Monetary and
non-monetary
liabilities

Forward FX
Contracts

105,674

114,704
281,792
2,024,427
234,669
94,476
15,983
(87,650)
220,413

98,654
44,079
126,102
183,200

130,896
(49,962)
(724,624)
(11,283)
4,474

Total

45,734
105,674
158,655
114,704
281,792

2,133,047
234,669

94,476

15,983
(87,650)
220,413
210,672

49,122

98,654

44,079
126,102
318,564
451,226
130,896

(49,962)
(724,624)
(11,283)
4,474

2,805,662
812,035
1,329,339
20,420,033
9,959,523
2,988,439
1,381,485
2,348,509
2,446,266
13,415
900,340
13
1,037,556
3,114,478
2,033,932



First Trust Global Funds plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

11. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

B. Market Risk (continued)

(ii) Currency Risk (continued)

Monetary Assets Non-Monetary Monetary and
Assets non-monetary

liabilities
First Trust Low Duration Global Government Bond UCITS ETF
As at 31 December 2022
Currency
Australian Dollar 11,358 2,004,227 -
Canadian Dollar 44,064 390,321 -
Chilean Peso 3,228 210,386 —
Danish Krone 2,449 431,170 -
Hungarian Forint 12,504 429,684 -
Indonesian Rupiah 3,158 343,170 —
Israeli Shekel 544 86,441 -
Japanese Yen 3,908 - -
Mexican Peso 2,061 343,667 —
New Zealand Dollar 20,266 919,434 -
Norwegian Krone 4,937 348,328 -
Peruvian New Sol 16,960 575,207 -
Polish Zloty 2,017 173,604 -
Pound Sterling 3,573 448,199 (275)
Romanian Leu 15,482 567,778 -
Singapore Dollar 11,444 1,004,281 -
Swedish Krona 3,205 196,591 -
Thailand Baht 152 118,085 -
US Dollar 121,710 375,788 -
First Trust Value Line® Dividend Index UCITS ETF
As at 31 December 2022
Currency
Canadian Dollar 6,798 - -
First Trust Nasdaq Cybersecurity UCITS ETF
As at 31 December 2022
Currency
Euro 15 14,514,971 (16)
Japanese Yen 295,208 13,669,846 -
Korean Won 15,663 1,217,638 -
Pound Sterling 7 8,464,001 -
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Forward FX
Contracts

(2,027,203)
(442,109)
(200,636)
(450,560)
(421,579)
(331,953)

(90,240)

(349,258)
(947,185)
(351,742)
(563,204)
(170,399)
(355,822)
(544.,438)
(998,050)
(206,788)
(114,427)
(462,265)

Total

(11,618)
(7,724)
12,978
(16,941)
20,609
14,375
(3,255)
3,908
(3,530)
(7,485)
1,523
28,963
5222
95,675
38,822
17,675
(6,992)
3,810
35,233

6,798

14,514,970
13,965,054
1,233,301
8,464,008



First Trust Global Funds plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

11. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

B. Market Risk (continued)

(ii) Currency Risk (continued)
Monetary Assets Non-Monetary Monetary and
Assets non-monetary

liabilities
First Trust Strategic Metal and Energy Equity UCITS Fund
As at 31 December 2022
Currency
Australian Dollar — 511,865 —
Canadian Dollar 4,653 1,335,019 -
Danish Krone 204 - -
Euro 1,209 - -
Pound Sterling 243 226,577 -
First Trust Global Capital Strength ESG Leaders UCITS ETF
As at 31 December 2022
Currency
Australian Dollar — 585,707 -
Canadian Dollar 7,473 1,896,945 —
Euro 582,120 3,834,487 (582,120)
Indian Rupee - 1,831,272 -
Indonesian Rupiah - 1,318,263 -
Japanese Yen 5,924 1,263,393 -
Pound Sterling 29,518 1,844,622 (29,517)
South African Rand 5 617,505 (30,803)
Swiss Franc - 1,920,760 -
Taiwan Dollar - 1,276,959 -
Thailand Baht - 653,307 -
First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF
As at 31 December 2022
Currency
Danish Krone - 71,519 -
Norwegian Krone — 63,828 —
Pound Sterling - 237,277 -
Swedish Krona - 114,001 -
Swiss Franc - 44,160 -
US Dollar 4,704 258,818 -
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Forward FX
Contracts

(709_)

Total

511,865
1,338,963
204

1,209
226,820

585,707
1,902,362
3,834,487
1,831,272
1,318,263
1,269,317
1,844,623

617,510
1,920,760
1,276,959

653,307

71,519
63,828
237,277
114,001
44,160
263,016



First Trust Global Funds plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

11. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

B. Market Risk (continued)

(ii) Currency Risk (continued)

Monetary Assets Non-Monetary Monetary and
Assets non-monetary
liabilities
First Trust Alerian Disruptive Technology Real Estate UCITS ETF*
As at 31 December 2022

Currency

Australian Dollar 924 125,779 -
Canadian Dollar 243 55,351 -
Euro - 34,622 -
Hong Kong Dollar - 20,154 -
Japanese Yen 684 204,510 -
Pound Sterling 312 193,314 -
Singapore Dollar - 119,276 -

First Trust Nasdaq® Clean Edge® Smart Grid Infrastructure UCITS ETF*
As at 31 December 2022

Currency

Brazilian Real — 13,247 —
Canadian Dollar 209 35,926 -
Danish Krone — 9,381 -
Euro 10 315,568 -
Hong Kong Dollar - 3,702 -
Japanese Yen - 18,465 -
Korean Won 69 52,408 -
Pound Sterling 1,926 121,194 -
Swiss Franc — 127,231 -
Taiwan Dollar - 881 -

* Please refer to Note 19 for details of significant events during the financial year.

Forward FX
Contracts

Total

126,703
55,594
34,622
20,154

205,194

193,626

119,276

13,247
35,950
9,381
315,578
3,702
18,465
52,477
123,120
127,231
881

There were no assets and liabilities, monetary and non-monetary, which are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency
as at 31 December 2022 for the US Large Cap ETF, US Equity Opportunities ETF, Germany ETF, US Equity ETF, Clean Edge ETF,

Dow Jones ETF, Cloud Computing ETF, Capital Strength ETF and Biotechnology ETF.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

11. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

B. Market Risk (continued)

(ii) Currency Risk (continued)

The tables below and overleaf summarise the Funds’ assets and liabilities, monetary and non-monetary, which are denominated in a

currency other than its functional currency as at 31 December 2021:

Monetary Assets Non-Monetary Monetary and
Assets non-monetary

liabilities
First Trust Emerging Markets AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF
As at 31 December 2021
Currency
Brazilian Real 33,897 2,497,121 -
Egyptian Pound 340 - -
Hong Kong Dollar 10,809 10,725,176 —
Hungarian Forint - 284,456 -
Indian Rupee 10,494 3,556,634 -
Indonesian Rupiah — 172,756 —
Malaysian Ringgit 767 396,161 -
Mexican Peso — 844,751 —
Philippine Peso 2 62,833 -
Polish Zloty 187 531,971 -
Russian Ruble 2,442 895,884 -
South African Rand 62 2,306,093 -
Taiwan Dollar - 2,945,132 -
Thailand Baht - 349,894 -
Turkish Lira - 709,532 -

First Trust United Kingdom AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

As at 31 December 2021

Currency

Euro 11,532 - -
US Dollar 4,641 - -

First Trust Eurozone AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF
As at 31 December 2021
Currency

US Dollar 450 - -
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Forward FX
Contracts

Total

2,530,239
340
10,735,985
284,456
3,567,128
172,756
396,928
844,751
62,835
532,158
898,326
2,306,155
2,945,132
349,894
709,532

11,532
4,641

450



First Trust Global Funds plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

11. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

B. Market Risk (continued)

(ii) Currency Risk (continued)

First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF!
As at 31 December 2021

Currency

Australian Dollar
Canadian Dollar
Euro

Hong Kong Dollar
Indian Rupee
Japanese Yen
Korean Won
Malaysian Ringgit
New Zealand Dollar
Norwegian Krone
Philippine Peso
Pound Sterling
Qatar Riyal
Singapore Dollar
South African Rand
Swedish Krona
Swiss Franc
Taiwan Dollar
Thailand Baht
UAE Diram
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Monetary Assets

1,854
2,052

8,458

588
2,677

1,557

1,262
176

131

Non-Monetary
Assets

59,529
175,299
830,041
458,374
444,001
966,500
361,876

60,673

58,321

59,946

54,332
172,564

58,005

54,402
118,417
239,807

58,173
658,135

60,245

51,351

Monetary and
non-monetary
liabilities

(336)
(953)
(4,597)
(1,462)
(2,448)
(2,531)
(2,014)
(292)
(332)
(330)
(377)
(965)
(207)
(344)
(676)
(1,340)
(565)

(182_)

Forward FX
Contracts

336
953
4,597
1,462

2,531
292
332
330
965
344
676

1,340
565

182

Total

59,529
177,153
832,093
458,374
450,011
967,088
362,539

60,673

58,321

59,946

53,955
174,121

57,798

55,664
118,593
239,807

58,173
658,135

60,245

51,351



First Trust Global Funds plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

11. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

B. Market Risk (continued)

(ii) Currency Risk (continued)

Monetary Assets Non-Monetary Monetary and
Assets non-monetary

First Trust Global Equity Income UCITS ETF

As at 31 December 2021

Currency

Australian Dollar 413 1,034,870
Brazilian Real 15,789 559,919
Canadian Dollar 3,737 1,204,419
Chinese Yuan Renminbi 2,284 -
Danish Krone 5,359 -
Euro 2 1,857,932
Hong Kong Dollar 166,240 2,794,370
Hungarian Forint - 41,995
Indian Rupee 10,194 243,643
Indonesian Rupiah - 50,467
Israeli Shekel — 16,820
Japanese Yen 171,587 2,189,118
Korean Won 28,902 271,485
Malaysian Ringgit 182 68,815
Mexican Peso - 165,071
Norwegian Krone 19,010 3,689
Polish Zloty - 78,557
Pound Sterling 5,030 1,327,290
Russian Ruble - 290,291
Singapore Dollar 25 188,392
South African Rand 6,013 617,289
Swedish Krona 24,168 182,622
Swiss Franc — 263,665
Taiwan Dollar 98,964 737,081
Thailand Baht 9,340 93,625
Turkish Lira - 35,717
First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF?

As at 31 December 2021

Currency

Australian Dollar - 183,387
Canadian Dollar - 711,789
Euro - 1,011,114
Hong Kong Dollar - 1,415,442
Japanese Yen 192 303,165
Korean Won 667 422,618
Pound Sterling — 161,257
South African Rand 38 167,278
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liabilities

(20,970)

(343)
(134,521)
(239)
(1,846)
(16,828)
(99,338)
(58,243)

(1,793)
(15,305)

(15,958_)
(3,474)

(65,036)
(17,201)

Forward FX
Contracts

5,185

(5,359)
343
(31,103)
239

16,828
(70,785)
35,612

(17,216)
15,305

9,945
(20,695)
(33,928)

7,861

Total

1,035,283
559,923
1,208,156
2,284

1,857,934
2,794,986
41,995
253,837
48,621
16,820
2,190,582
277,756
68,997
165,071
3,690
78,557
1,332,320
290,291
188,417
617,289
182,621
263,665
737,081
93,625
35,717

183,387
711,789
1,011,114
1,415,442
303,357
423,285
161,257
167,316



First Trust Global Funds plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

11. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

B. Market Risk (continued)

(ii) Currency Risk (continued)

Monetary Assets

First Trust FactorFX UCITS ETF
As at 31 December 2021

Currency

Australian Dollar 488
Brazilian Real -
Canadian Dollar 85,360
Chilean Peso -

Colombian Peso -
Czech Koruna -
Euro 8,932
Hungarian Forint -
Indian Rupee -
Indonesian Rupiah -
Israeli Shekel -
Japanese Yen -
Korean Won -
Mexican Peso -
New Zealand Dollar 73,610

Norwegian Krone 1,294
Philippine Peso -
Polish Zloty -
Pound Sterling 3,745
Russian Ruble -
Singapore Dollar 21,477
South African Rand -

Swedish Krona -
Swiss Franc -
Turkish Lira -

Non-Monetary
Assets

209,910

646,942
197,407

33,939
1,058,441

First Trust Indxx Innovative Transaction & Process UCITS ETF

As at 31 December 2021
Currency

Australian Dollar -
Canadian Dollar -
Danish Krone -
Euro -
Hong Kong Dollar -
Indian Rupee -
Japanese Yen -
Korean Won 8,211
Pound Sterling -
Singapore Dollar -
South African Rand 14
Swedish Krona -
Swiss Franc _
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3,520,709
1,299,064
2,147,706
27,201,243
12,643,447
4,126,021
3,311,525
3,006,235
3,776,818
1,351,800

1,739,889
4,402,137

Monetary and
non-monetary
liabilities

(105,626)

(206,533)

Forward FX
Contracts

(218.855)
266,058
(79,348)

77,257
248,575
(431,447)
4,085,707
(284,887)
617,098
184,746
88,042
(254,088)
(257,947)
174,169
(50,902)
106,918
101,918
(105,558)
528,926
575,467
208,056
173,886
(335,270)
(2,038,019)
60,930

Total

(218,367)
266,058
215,922

77,257
248,575
(431,447)
4,094,639
(284,887)
617,098
184,746
88,042
(254,088)
(257,947)
174,169
669,650
199,993
101,918
(105,558)
566,610
575,467
1,081,441
173,886
(335,270)
(2,038,019)
60,930

3,520,709
1,299,064
2,147,706
27,201,243
12,643,447
4,126,021
3,311,525
3,014,446
3,776,818
1,351,800
14
1,739,889
4,402,137



First Trust Global Funds plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

11. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

B. Market Risk (continued)

(ii) Currency Risk (continued)
Monetary Assets Non-Monetary Monetary and Forward FX

Assets non-monetary Contracts

liabilities Total
First Trust Low Duration Global Government Bond UCITS ETF
As at 31 December 2021
Currency
Australian Dollar 148,025 2,761,978 - (2,914,213) (4,210)
Canadian Dollar 8,947 1,446,896 (348) (1,471,840) (16,345)
Chilean Peso 10,751 691,553 - (693,508) 8,796
Czech Koruna 7,704 452,965 - (464,774) (4,105)
Danish Krone 1,880 220,608 - (285,047) (62,559)
Hungarian Forint 15,202 953,692 - (974,604) (5,710)
Indonesian Rupiah 5,988 639,583 - (634,698) 10,873
Israeli Shekel 10,832 724,966 - (737,182) (1,384)
Mexican Peso 2,779 517,757 - (548,126) (27,590)
New Zealand Dollar 21,197 1,100,026 - (1,116,998) 4,225
Norwegian Krone 10,763 832,362 - (842,998) 127
Peruvian New Sol 27,644 1,083,791 (259) (1,118,047) (6,871)
Polish Zloty 3,584 338,563 (239) (370,276) (28,368)
Pound Sterling 174 - (1,286) 892,831 891,719
Romanian Leu 8,194 374,943 - (369,022) 14,115
Singapore Dollar 20,984 1,920,736 - (1,902,338) 39,382
Swedish Krona 4,645 227,420 - (242,756) (10,691)
US Dollar 188,335 2,406,316 - (2,465,170) 129,481
First Trust Value Line® Dividend Index UCITS ETF
As at 31 December 2021
Currency
Canadian Dollar 3,689 - - - 3,689
First Trust Nasdaq Cybersecurity UCITS ETF
As at 31 December 2021
Currency
Euro - 7,978,117 (80,602) 80,602 7,978,117
Japanese Yen 179,669 8,961,648 (134,320) 134,320 9,141,317
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First Trust Global Funds plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

11. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

B. Market Risk (continued)

(ii) Currency Risk (continued)
Monetary Assets Non-Monetary Monetary and
Assets non-monetary

liabilities
First Trust Strategic Metal and Energy Equity UCITS Fund?
As at 31 December 2021
Currency
Australian Dollar - 44,183 -
Canadian Dollar 572 194,397 —
Pound Sterling — 28,987 -
First Trust Global Capital Strength ESG Leaders UCITS ETF*
As at 31 December 2021
Currency
Canadian Dollar 1,329 422,902 -
Danish Krone — 109,009 -
Egyptian Pound - 107,528 (13)
Euro - 440,722 -
Hong Kong Dollar - 112,043 -
Indian Rupee — 111,393 —
Pound Sterling - 558,498 -
South African Rand 185 - -
Swedish Krona - 106,495 -
Swiss Franc — 230,617 -
Taiwan Dollar 356 315,281 -

First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF?

As at 31 December 2021

Currency

Danish Krone — 11,746 -
Norwegian Krone — 38,010 —
Pound Sterling - 193,560 -
Swedish Krona 122 325,579 -
Swiss Franc - 88,643 -
US Dollar 4,315 420,680 -

Forward FX
Contracts

(6)

Total

44,183
194,963
28,987

423,777
109,009
107,515
440,722
112,043
111,393
558,498

185
106,495
230,617
315,637

11,746
38,010
193,560
325,701
88,643
424,995

! First Trust Japan AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF and its functional currency

changed from Japanese Yen to US Dollar on 1 February 2021.

2 First Trust Switzerland AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF changed its name to First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF and its

functional currency changed from Swiss Franc to US Dollar on 1 February 2021.

3 First Trust Strategic Metal and Energy Equity UCITS Fund was launched on 8 February 2021.
* First Trust Global Capital Strength ESG Leaders UCITS ETF was launched on 9 March 2021.
3 First Trust IPOX® Europe Equity Opportunities UCITS ETF was launched on 21 June 2021.

There were no assets and liabilities, monetary and non-monetary, which are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency
as at 31 December 2021 for the US Large Cap ETF, US Equity Opportunities ETF, Germany ETF, US Equity ETF, Clean Edge ETF,

Dow Jones ETF, Cloud Computing ETF, Capital Strength ETF and Biotechnology ETF.
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First Trust Global Funds plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

11. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

B. Market Risk (continued)

(ii) Currency Risk (continued)
Management considers 8% to be a reasonable possible change in exchange rates of currencies.

The following tables set forth a sensitivity analysis showing gains and losses that are associated with a fluctuation in the exchange rate of
currencies of 8% as at 31 December 2022:

Fund Net Assets  Change in rate Effect on NAV
First Trust Emerging Markets AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

Brazilian Real 2,482,418 +/- 8% +/- 198,593
Chilean Peso 836,544 +/- 8% +/- 66,924
Egyptian Pound 216 +/- 8% +/- 17
Hong Kong Dollar 4,694,357 +/- 8% +/- 375,549
Hungarian Forint 341,204 +/- 8% +/- 27,296
Indian Rupee 1,649,186 +/- 8% +/- 131,935
Indonesian Rupiah 871,727 +/- 8% +/- 69,738
Malaysian Ringgit 48,752 +/- 8% +/- 3,900
Mexican Peso 448,628 +/- 8% +/- 35,890
Philippine Peso 122,828 +/- 8% +/- 9,826
Polish Zloty 577,584 +/- 8% +/- 46,207
Russian Ruble 12,306 +/- 8% +/- 984
South African Rand 1,009,088 +/- 8% +/- 80,727
Taiwan Dollar 2,235,885 +/- 8% +/- 178,871
Thailand Baht 974,901 +/- 8% +/- 77,992
Turkish Lira 3,670,880 +/- 8% +/- 293,670
First Trust United Kingdom AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF

Euro 7,652 +/- 8% +/- 612
US Dollar 27 +/- 8% +/-2

First Trust Eurozone AlphaDEX® UCITS ETF
US Dollar 483 +/- 8% +/- 39
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First Trust Global Funds plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

11. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

B. Market Risk (continued)

(ii) Currency Risk (continued)

Fund Net Assets
First Trust Indxx NextG UCITS ETF

Australian Dollar 41,513
Canadian Dollar 121,830
Euro 666,010
Hong Kong Dollar 389,851
Indian Rupee 317,285
Indonesian Rupiah 41,636
Japanese Yen 829,397
Korean Won 335,931
Malaysian Ringgit 42,926
Mexican Peso 41,699
New Zealand Dollar 42,278
Norwegian Krone 41,360
Philippine Peso 41,231
Pound Sterling 137,254
Qatar Riyal 42,358
Singapore Dollar 40,456
South African Rand 79,740
Swedish Krona 164,144
Swiss Franc 41,615
Taiwan Dollar 644,472
Thailand Baht 43,634
UAE Diram 39,774
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Change in rate

+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%

Effect on NAV

+/- 3,321
+/- 9,746
+/- 53,281
+/- 31,188
+/- 25,383
+/- 3,331
+/- 66,352
+/- 26,874
+/- 3,434
+/- 3,336
+/- 3,382
+/- 3,309
+/- 3,298
+/- 10,980
+/- 3,389
+/- 3,236
+/- 6,379
+/- 13,132
+/- 3,329
+/- 51,558
+/- 3,491
+/- 3,182



First Trust Global Funds plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

11. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

B. Market Risk (continued)

(ii) Currency Risk (continued)

Fund

First Trust Global Equity Income UCITS ETF
Australian Dollar
Brazilian Real
Canadian Dollar
Chilean Peso
Chinese Yuan Renminbi
Czech Koruna
Danish Krone

Euro

Hong Kong Dollar
Hungarian Forint
Indian Rupee
Indonesian Rupiah
Israeli Shekel
Japanese Yen
Korean Won
Malaysian Ringgit
Mexican Peso
Norwegian Krone
Polish Zloty

Pound Sterling
Russian Ruble
Singapore Dollar
South African Rand
Swedish Krona
Swiss Franc
Taiwan Dollar
Thailand Baht
Turkish Lira

First Trust Dow Jones International Internet UCITS ETF
Australian Dollar

Canadian Dollar

Euro

Hong Kong Dollar

Japanese Yen

Korean Won

Pound Sterling

South African Rand
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Net Assets

382,061
833,437
624,772
117,468
1,589
17,522
473,003
3,613,162
2,139,886
49,740
160,165
196,906
81,907
2,051,406
397,248
25,732
95,781
94,928
49,626
884,829
6,533
26,688
156,438
64,029
565,426
979,055
32,691
23,873

134,905
240,453
838,551
1,118,241
184,526
202,550
125,759
184,084

Change in rate

+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%

+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%

Effect on NAV

+/- 30,565
+/- 66,675
+/- 49,982
+/- 9,397
+/- 127

+/- 1,402
+/- 37,840
+/- 289,053
+/- 171,191
+/- 3,979
+/- 12,813
+/- 15,752
+/- 6,553
+/- 164,112
+/- 31,780
+/- 2,059
+/- 7,662
+/- 7,594
+/- 3,970
+/- 70,786
+/- 523

+/- 2,135
+/- 12,515
+/- 5,122
+/- 45,234
+/- 78,324
+/-2,615
+/- 1,910

+/- 10,792
+/- 19,236
+/- 67,084
+/- 89,459
+/- 14,762
+/- 16,204
+/- 10,061
+/- 14,727



First Trust Global Funds plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

11. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

B. Market Risk (continued)

(ii) Currency Risk (continued)

Fund

First Trust FactorFX UCITS ETF

Australian Dollar
Brazilian Real
Canadian Dollar
Chilean Peso
Colombian Peso
Euro

Hungarian Forint
Indian Rupee
Indonesian Rupiah
Japanese Yen
Mexican Peso
New Zealand Dollar
Norwegian Krone
Peruvian New Sol
Philippine Peso
Polish Zloty
Pound Sterling
Singapore Dollar
South African Rand
Swedish Krona
Swiss Franc
Thailand Baht
Turkish Lira
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Net Assets

45,734
105,674
158,655
114,704
281,792

2,133,047
234,669

94,476

15,983
(87,650)
220,413
210,672

49,122

98,654

44,079
126,102
318,564
451,226
130,896
(49,962)

(724,624)
(11,283)
4,474

Change in rate

+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%
+/- 8%

Effect on NAV

+/- 3,659
+/- 8,454
+- 12,692
+-9,176
+- 22,543
+- 170,644
+- 18,774
+/- 7,558
+-1,279
+-7,012
+- 17,633
+/- 16,854
+-3,930
+/- 7,892
+/- 3,526
+/- 10,088
+/- 25485
+/- 36,098
+- 10,472
+/- 3,997
+/- 57,970
+/-903
+/- 358



First Trust Global Funds plc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

11. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

B. Market Risk (continued)

(ii) Currency Risk (continued)

Fund

First Trust Indxx Innovative Transaction & Process UCITS
ETF

Australian Dollar
Canadian Dollar
Danish Krone

Euro

Hong Kong Dollar
Indian Rupee
Japanese Yen
Korean Won

Pound Sterling
Russian Ruble
Singapore Dollar
South African Rand
Swedish Krona
Swiss Franc

UAE Diram

First Trust Low Duration Global Government Bond UCITS
ETF

Australian Dollar
Canadian Dollar
Chilean Peso
Danish Krone
Hungarian Forint
Indonesian Rupiah
Israeli Shekel
Japanese Yen
Korean Won
Mexican Peso
New Zealand Dollar
Norwegian Krone
Peruvian New Sol
Polish Zloty
Pound Sterling
Romanian Leu
Singapore Dollar
Swedish Krona
Thailand Baht

US Dollar

First Trust Value Line® Dividend Index UCITS ETF
Canadian Dollar

First Trust Nasdaq Cybersecurity UCITS ETF
Euro

Japanese Yen

Korean Won

Pound Sterling
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Net Assets

2,805,662
812,035
1,329,339
20,420,033
9,959,523
2,988,439
1,381,485
2,348,509
2,446,266
13,415
900,340
13
1,037,556
3,114,478
2,033,932

(11,618)
(7,724)
12,978
(16,941)